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“ M has always put a high emphasis on quality, and Glodyne

DecisionOne's commitment to high-quality services is why the company
is recognized as a Top Supplier for M. Glodyne DecisionOne's

engineered services helps result in enhanced asset protection, reduced
operating cost, and enhanced security for M's technology

solutions—enabling us to achieve our business goals in what has been a
challenging business climate.”

3

3

3

Rory J. Yanchek

General Manager,3M

Customer insights drive us forward

“ We have been able to transform our processes using
Glodyne’ education managed services. With the
services our college administrative operation have
become more efficient, we have been able to generate
meaningful reports across functions and timely
information sharing amongst teachers, students,
parents and administrative staff has been possible.

Glodyne has been providing high standard services to
our institution and we look forward to strengthen our
relationship with Team Glodyne. ”

Dr. Jagmeet Madan

Principal, SNDT Women’s University
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Letter to Shareholders

Dear fellow shareholders,

Some time back we were travelling through the rural heart land of a state, during which we stopped to stretch our legs and have tea at

a small stall. While waiting I happened to watch a person seated under a tree interacting with a couple of villagers. A village lady

walked to this person, pulled out a card, did her finger scan and took some money from that person. It was a great moment for me,

because the lady was one of the beneficiaries of the government scheme being implemented by us, which also has financial

inclusion services attached to it. To my mind this is what your company stands for – supporting transformation and enabling inclusion.

Innovative insights driven services that make our customers lives easy and empowered, drive us forward. And our customer

spectrum spans across that lady in the village who earlier was not even aware of basic banking facility and now who operates her

own bank account, to a CIO of a Fortune 100 company who trusts our team for business continuity and better return on IT.

We have seen our company scale tremendously, by moving up the value chain of technology services as well as geographical

expansion. But what excite me are the possibilities that appear before us - which are to envision, and which inspire our best efforts to

build transformational services to cater to these market making opportunities. I am excited and hopeful that we will continue to make

progress in our niche area of technology managed services.

Glodyne has built strong skills and capabilities to provide path breaking array of technology infrastructure management services

(IMS) on a managed services model across banking, education and government verticals in India. The successful rollouts of

ambitious and transformational projects in India clearly demonstrate Glodyne’ domain expertise in implementing and managing

large technology led projects in the country. These are market creating opportunities and we are determined to emerge as a very

strong contender in these sectors.

For the financial year 2010-11, Glodyne has registered revenues of 1,750 cr on a consolidated basis, 133% growth over FY 2009 -

10. The EBITDA grew by 85% over FY 2009-10 to 316.25 cr. Net profit for FY 2010-11, was 174.12 cr, up 74% over FY 2009-10.

The basic EPS for the year is at 40.32 against 24.56 which is adjusted for the share split from face value 10 to face value 6.

Glodyne is creating new markets:

Highlights for the year:
`

` `

` ` ` `



Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman and Managing Director

Letter to Shareholders

Our company’s geographical mix for the year was 58:42 (India: North America), the share of North America increasing because of

the DecisionOne Corporation’s acquisition.

During the year, Glodyne was proud to associate with the UIDAI in the launch of the first set of ‘Aadhar’ numbers in the Country from

the Tembhli village of Nandurbar district, Maharashtra. UID is a transformational and a historic project being implemented in the

country and Glodyne is committed to provide all possible support to the program, having earlier done the proof of concept for UIDAI

in the state of Bihar.

During the year, Glodyne initiated major IMS program pilots and conducted many proof of concepts. The company partnered with

few governments on a Public-Private Partnership model to implement public distribution system, MNREGS and labour automation

programs.

The company is in the process of implementing financial inclusion services for its various bank partners for reaching out to more

than 45 million citizens. We are on our way to become a leader in this space which will bring banking services to the millions of

unbanked population of India. We are implementing the largest urban as well as rural financial inclusion programs across different

states. Our unique social program supported financial inclusion services ensure that the accounts managed under the program

remain active accounts.

In the last five years, Glodyne has acquired five companies. All the acquisitions have helped us to open up new opportunities in

important markets or sectors. In the year, Glodyne completed the acquisition of DecisionOne Corporation, one of the largest

independent technology infrastructure management services company in North America, headquartered at Philadelphia. It is a

$200 mln revenue company which we acquired for an enterprise value of $104mn. This acquisition has enabled in-roads for

Glodyne into the world’s largest IMS market, added marquee clients in North America with strong long term relationships and

provides us with an opportunity to expand our services base. Glodyne DecisionOne’s management is upbeat on expanding

business and improving efficiencies through re-aligning the cost and revenue matrix by adding off shoring benefits. The

management is focussed on to leverage Glodyne DecisionOne’s high end service capabilities to address large IMS deals in North

America which is the largest IMS market in the world.

We have been implementing large technology led social initiatives in the areas of MNREGS, financial inclusion, public distribution

system and empowerment of the unorganized workforce. We are also expanding our education managed services across

enterprise (universities) and retail (colleges and schools) segments. Moving forward with the above initiatives we will continue our

journey forward in which our levers of growth have put us in a strong position and we are determined to expand on the strong niche

that the company has built in the geographies we serve. Over the last few quarters our team has built a strong execution pipeline in

the financial inclusion, e-governance and education sectors in India, and our focus is to ensure operational efficiencies and

expansion in these projects. In our NorthAmerica business we are working to re-align our cost and transform our services mix in the

forth coming quarters.

There are very few things as powerful as human passion. During the year, we doubled the size of our senior leadership team and

are delighted that a new set of next in command leaders have emerged from within. We are counting on Glodyne to grow more

leadership that will take us to the next level. I am confident with the aligned leadership and a more responsive internal structure

Glodyne would continue to scale new heights.

Continuous value creation is our focus and Glodyne is determined to deliver the maximum value to our clients, employees, and all

the stakeholders. The trust that you - our investors - place in us every day is something we take very seriously. Thank you all for

joining us on this amazing journey and I expect your support in the future.

Geographical Expansion:

The way forward:

Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2010 - 201105
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“When Allscripts moved to partner with Glodyne DecisionOne to
provide hardware support for the IT environments of all our
ambulatory clients, we had three key objectives: to maintain
industry-leading service levels, retain our valued clients, and
reduce costs. Glodyne DecisionOne scored high honors on all three
counts—delivering significant year-over-year cost savings, the
multivendor and healthcare industry experience and workload
scalability to deliver on existing SLAs, and an implementation plan
that managed the transition flawlessly, resulting in no client loss.
Overall, the transition was a “non-event” from our clients
perspective.”

Jesse Alexander

Director, Outsourcing Business Operations

Allscripts

"Glodyne and its team have been delivering best-in-class technology
infrastructure services to our various facilities maintaining highest standards
and security for the last few years. Glodyne has become our trusted service
provider, and has supported Defence Research and Development Organization
in managing a responsive, aligned and change ready technology environment.
We value our relationship and we wish Glodyne all the success"

Suranjan Pal

Director, DRDO



Divvyani A. Sarnaaik RSP Sinha Shantanu Rooj



Annand Sarnaaik Alok SharmaDhiren B. Kothary
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“In our endeavor to promote e-communication and reduce
paper-work, our vision of transforming the school into an e-school
has yielded fruits of accomplishment. It is very heartening to note
that at the World Education Summit – 2011 held recently at New
Delhi, we were honoured to receive the award,“Best ICT Enabled
School”

I, on behalf of my school, would like to place on record our
heartfelt appreciation to team “GLODYNE” that has brought
glory to the school.

We have been able to convert our processes using Glodyne’s
technology. With their skill and expertise, our administrative
operations have become very resourceful and we have been able
to build an intelligent rapport across functions. I look forward to
strengthening our ties with more innovative ICT practices.”

Revathi Srinivasan

Director – Education and Principal,

Smt. Sulochanadevi Singhania School

Customer insights drive us forward

NATIONAL BANK FOR AGRICULTURE
AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT

“ Glodyne has been providing us with seamless and high quality IMS services so
that our systems are agile, efficient and responsive since April 2006. They
provide us with timely intelligent reports which enable us to take informed
business decisions. Glodyne has been a great partner and we expect the
relationship to strengthen with time.”

K.C.Panda

General Manager,NABARD



Snapshot of last 4 Years

FY 10 -11         FY 09 - 10       FY 08  - 09        FY 07  - 08

FY 10 -11         FY 09 - 10       FY 08  - 09        FY 07  - 08

30,785.83

5.35

30,791.18

3,525.69

21,627.41

25,153.10

5,638.08

410.65

5,227.43

492.98

4,734.45

673.25

4,061.20

0.02

4,061.18

74,926.87

(632.60)

74,294.27

8,230.12

49,589.72

57,819.84

16,474.43

1,388.69

15,085.74

2,089.00

12,996.74

325.91

3,286.71

10,035.94

35.89

10,000.05

175,052.27

93.52

175,145.79

46,809.40

96,617.67

143,427.07

31,718.72

3,248.54

28,470.18

5,174.41

23,295.77

-

5,776.52

17,519.25

107.70

17,411.55

11.1220.99

` In Lakhs`

` In Lakhs`Consolidated Profit & Loss Summary

Consolidated Balance Sheet Summary

Particular

Sources of Funds

Total Shareholders’ Funds

Total Liabilities

Application of Funds

Total Fixed Assets

Goodwill

Investments

Net Current Assets

Net Worth

Equity Share Capital

Share Suspense Account

Securities Premium Suspense Account

Share Application Money (Pending Allotment)

Convertible Warrants

Reserves and Surplus

Loans

Deferred Tax Liability

Minority Interest

Gross Block

Less: Depreciation

Net Block

Capital Work in Progress

Intangible Assets Pending Capitalization

Gross Current Assets

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

50,102.34

1,005.79

51,108.13

5,960.27

33,641.88

39,602.15

11,505.98

764.68

10,741.30

933.30

9,808.00

2,023.28

7,784.72

4.75

7,779.97

- -

16,119.30

1,110.92

-

-

-

15,008.38

8,806.83

548.27

173.01

9,528.11

7,113.89

2,147.22

4,966.67

5,500.35

10,467.02

3,367.34

0.01

18,163.72

6,350.68

11,813.04

16,119.30

-

--

1,087.76

89.12

7,561.51

8,738.39

3,386.90

402.84

93.31

3,883.05

4,157.85

1,074.48

3,083.37

206.20

3,289.57

3,367.34

0.01

7,342.67

1,378.15

5,964.52

8,738.39

-

-

-

2,251.33

277.96

2401.33

-

-

24,592.54

29,523.16

9,769.28

1,116.97

208.90

11,095.15

17,455.91

4,925.36

12,530.55

2,355.72

15,696.06

3,367.34

3.63

29,588.21

8,036.93

21,551.28

29,523.16

809.79

2,629.52

-

-

4.08

52,254.97

1,080.00

55,968.57

60,187.76

1,687.78

316.61

62,192.15

45,196.64

19,379.51

25,817.13

403.88

26,366.85

47,526.44

3.63

74,085.71

29,821.91

44,263.80

55,968.57

145.84

Particular

Total Income

Total Expenses

PBDIT

PBDT

Profit Before Taxation

Profit/(Loss)After Taxation

Profit/(Loss)After Minority Interest

Earnings Per Share (EPS)*

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

Employee Cost

Operating & Administrative Expenses

Interest & Finance Charges

Depreciation

Adjustment on account of Alignment in Accounting Policy

Taxation

Minority Interest

24.5640.32

* Issue of bonus and subdivision of face value of Shares
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“Now with e-shakti my correct wages for the
day’s work that I have done gets calculated and it
directly goes to my bank account. I get my money
at my doorsteps and it saves my time & money as
I do not need to travel far to go to the bank. I am
happy as now I get work assigned regularly, get
paid in time and no one can take my money.”

Rajmatiya Devi

E-shakti Beneficiary,Patna

Customer insights drive us forward

“ I feel proud to be part of my village and state's transformation.

The banking services for the rural poor has the power to

transform their lives, plus it has given meaningful employment to

thousands of individuals like me. We now understand and can feel

the real power of technology. I will always fully support

Glodyne’s banking for all services .”

Dilip Kumar

Dariyapur, Karanja Gowai

Block Naubatpur, Dist Patna
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Net Worth In Lakhs`
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Debt Equity Ratio
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CEO Dialogue

1.What according to you were the major highlights of the year for the Industry and for Glodyne?

2.What are the key measures that India should

take to realize the full potential of using

technology for social inclusion?

3.What was the reason for Glodyne to focus on financial inclusion?

4.Tell us the most exciting event in the year and why does it hold so much value to you?

The year 2010-11 was a mix of both opportunities as well as challenges for the IT Services and for infrastructure management

services (IMS) sector, the area where Glodyne is focused on. Global markets have been under pressure and the clients across

sectors have been working on strategies to enhance their returns on IT investments. For the IMS industry, I see this as an

opportunity, if we are able to re-align the delivery of services on a combination of remote – onsite model; it would provide the clients

with better services, intelligent reports, and if on a managed services asset based model we will be able to significantly enhance

delivery efficiencies, which would lead to overall better value to the customer.

In India, we have been experiencing major thrust by central agencies and government bodies on initiatives that enable financial

and social inclusion. These are huge opportunities for Glodyne and we possess strong advantage as we have already

demonstrated how technology services can ensure successful implementation of these large transformational programs. Even

government understands the importance of building an accountable and transparent mechanism for their various social programs.

We have experienced this in most our interactions with various officials on how together we can achieve the program results timely,

effectively and successfully. The overall opportunity in India across the sectors of banking, government and education remain

almost untapped and we expect a lot of transformation to happen in these sectors which will be primarily led by technology.

I think once the UIDAI accomplishes its path breaking

objective of creating identity of every citizen of the

country, a lot of transformation would ride on it. I feel

the state bodies should focus on faster adoption for

implementation of the scheme. I also feel there are

two basic requirements that need to be put in place

which will ensure faster implementations. One is to

build effective and robust connectivity across the rural

landscape of the country, so that the last mile interface

is successfully achieved. Second being digitization

and automation of the back-end which would be the

back bone for all initiatives. If we are able to achieve

these two things, I feel a lot of innovation, transition

and transformation would happen across spectrum which will benefit every citizen centric program and also all benefit all the

stakeholders in the system.

Well, it has to be the acquisition of DecisionOne Corporation. It was a bold move, however a very calculated decision as we were

acquiring a company which of larger than our own revenue size when we initiated the dialogue. With DecisionOne, now we have

the presence across North America, and an opportunity to do a lot of transition and transformation across processes, services and

delivery mechanism.

Technology has the power of reach, speed, efficiency and accountability. In India, today more than 60% of the population is not

covered under any kind of basic banking service. It is a known fact that financial inclusion is a basic framework on which social

inclusion can thrive. We at Glodyne identified this opportunity, which was to reach out to remote/unbanked locations and population

and ensure that everyone has the opportunity of having basic banking facility within their reach. On our strong IMS back ground,

we have created an entire financial inclusion framework which includes creation of a private cloud, managed services at the front

end, financial inclusion IPR, process blueprinting and creating a network which ensures that our banking partners are able reach

the unbanked population. The interesting part for Glodyne is that our financial inclusion programs go synergistically with our social

programs, which enhances our service opportunities and for our banking partners it ensures they acquire active accounts. We

intend to be a leader in the financial inclusion space in the country and we have built the base for achieving the same.
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CEO Dialogue

5.What is the way forward for your North America

business strategy?

6.So how do you see the geographical mix changing for the next year?

7.Do we see more M&Adeals in the future?

8.Any new internal initiatives that have been launched in

Glodyne?

9.Any last thoughts for the shareholders?

We intend to re-align the cost matrix in the short term, in the

long term we intend to expand the services across our

clients in the geography, as there are a lot of opportunities

to provide them with innovative IMS services which are

more responsive and provide better value. We have

completed the soft integration, which was focused on key

management and client retention, and have re-aligned the

structure to ensure we achieve our services expansion and

cost optimization targets. We have created a 24 month

plan which will yield the cost and revenue benefits in the

long run. During the year, we closed a USD 42 mln IMS

deal in the retail space which is a positive indicator of the

opportunities for Glodyne DecisionOne.

Well we have primarily been an India focused company, we have built sustainable and niche growth levers for the company which

will be our drivers for growth. With Glodyne DecisionOne we now have a significant revenue base in North America, which we

expect will grow post the benefits starts accruing. For FY 2010-11 our India – US geographical mix was 58:42.

We do understand and have experienced that a right strategic acquisition can be a strong growth lever for the Company. In Glodyne

we have a focused M&A team which keeps looking at the various

opportunities in the areas of our interest. If there is a strategic fit,

which can provide multi-fold benefits to our core businesses, we

would definitely look at such opportunities with interest.

During the year, we have re-aligned our internal organization

structure which has lead to verticalization of services, a strategic

direction which would support our key milestone to be a billion dollar

global IMS company in the near future. As per our expansion

strategy in North America, we have initiated a managed services

unit which will focus on high value direct clients on a remote-onsite

delivery model. In line with the strategic direction, we have initiated

in the year a strong leadership alignment program which also

includes identification and grooming of future Glodyne leaders to support our growth. We have always been focused on being

gender inclusive company and we wish to have 40% of our team comprising of women employees in the future.Also, Glodyne Care

Foundation launched its flagship program ‘Nanhe Kadam’, which is a unique employee engagement program in the area of

children’s education and health.

Your company is on a strong growth path and we are confident that we shall continue the momentum. We are building a new

paradigm in the IMS space with our services, and we are determined to be a leader in the areas we operate in. We are thankful to all

our shareholders for their valued support.



“I am very excited that i attend special english classes of nanhe kadam in my
school. I am able to read and write better, earlier i read many english words but i
did not know how to pronouns it but now i can. The class are a lot of fun and we
learn tricks and learn new things. This class also help me to be disciplaned.”

Written by Pooja, 11 years old – She is from a Hindi medium

school and is learning English under Nanhe Kadam’s

education initiatives.

Customer insights drive us forward

India has made progress in terms of increasing primary

education attendance rate and expanding literacy to

approximately two thirds of the population. India's

improved education system is often cited as one of the

main contributors to the economic rise of India.

However, India continues to face stern challenges.

Despite growing investment in education, a third is still

illiterate; only 15% of Indian students reach high school,

and just 7% graduate.

‘Nanhe Kadam’ an initiative by Glodyne Care

Foundation- Glodyne Technoserve Limited CSR arm, is

dedicated to the cause of uplifting rural children by focus

on areas like Education and Health.

‘Nanhe Kadam’ is an initiative designed to decrease the dropouts and encourage continuity in education through the

middle years of school in the rural areas of the country where the problem tends to be most acute. The program will

reward children who demonstrate academic excellence and discipline during the middle school years. The first version

of the program targets the top students to exemplify the right behaviors. The subsequent versions will broaden the

base for more inclusion.

NanheKadam
Empowering Future of India

An initiative of
Glodyne Care Foundation
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Deloitte Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific

Deloitte Technology Fast 50 India

Inc. India 500 Glodyne ranked 8th

Bihar Infocomm 2010

World Education Awards

“Best Under A Billion $” Forbes 2010

Maharashtra IT Award 2010
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Directors’ Report 
To,
The Members of   
Glodyne Technoserve Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fourteenth Annual Report of your Company, together with the Audited 
Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS: (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year Ended

March 31, 2011
Year Ended

March 31, 2011
Year Ended

March 31, 2010
Total Income 98,881.83 175,145.79 74,294.27
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxes 20,025.01 23,295.77 12,996.74
Less: Provision for Income Tax (net off short / (excess) provision 
for earlier years)

5,100.00 5,205.00 2,570.72

Less: Provision for deferred tax/wealth Tax /fringe benefit tax 508.85 571.52 715.99
Add: Adjustment on account of Alignment in Accounting Policy - - 325.91
Profit / (Loss) After Taxes 14,416.16 17,519.25 10,035.94
Less: Transfer to Minority Interest - 107.70 35.89
Profit available for Appropriation 14,416.16 17,411.55 10,000.05
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 1,441.62 1,441.62 1,917.19
Less: Proposed Dividend @  ` 4.2 per share 1,845.80 1,845.80 1,103.70
Less: Provision for Tax on Dividend 299.44 299.44 183.31
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 17,853.74 18,930.69 13,015.67
Less: Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve - - 42.00
Less: Utilized for bonus issue of shares - - 118.73
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 28,683.04 32,755.39 19,734.79

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

On a Consolidated basis, your Company has recorded a total income of ` 175,145.79 Lakhs for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2011, an increase of 133% compared to last year’s figure of ` 74,294.27 Lakhs. The Earnings before Interest, Tax, 
Depreciation and Adjustments (EBITDA) stood at ` 31,625.20 Lakhs as compared to last years ` 17,107.03 Lakhs, recording a 
growth of 85%. The Company’s profit after tax stood at ` 17,411.55 Lakhs as compared to previous year’s ` 10,000.05 Lakhs, 
recording a growth of 74%. The Consolidated Results of last year included 9 months’ financials of DecisionOne Corporation, 
U.S.A., a Company acquired by your Company in the year and therefore may not be strictly comparable with previous year 
consolidated results.

DIVIDEND:

Enthused by the continued impressive performance of your Company during the year under review, with expansion of its top 
line and bottom line, and following the Company’s policy for dividend payout, your Directors recommend for your approval, 
a dividend of ` 4.20/- on equity share of ` 6/- each, (Previous year a dividend of ` 4.20/- on equity share of ` 10/- each). 
Considering the split of equity shares during the year from the face value of ` 10/- each to face value of ` 6/- each, the effective 
dividend for the year under review works out at 70% compared to 42% of the previous year. The dividend amount will absorb 
a total ` 1845.80 Lakhs, excluding corporate tax on dividend.

The register of members and share transfer books will remain closed on September 15, 2011 and the dividend will be paid to 
members whose names appear in the Register of Members as on September 14, 2011; in respect of shares held in dematerialised 
form, it will be paid to members whose names are furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited, as beneficial owners. 

FINANCE AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

A) Strategic Acquisitions / Mergers:

Overseas Acquisition:

Your Company continued on its growth path through a healthy mix of organic and inorganic route. As a part of this strategy and 
in a major leap towards expanding its presence in one of the largest IMS market in the world i.e. US, the Company during the 
year acquired DecisionOne Corporation. 
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DecisionOne is one of the largest, profitable pure-play technology IMS companies in North America, with revenue of 
$200 million. DecisionOne has extensive capabilities in providing onsite and remote IMS in the U.S. and Canada. Among 
its key clients are a number of large enterprise customers including Fortune 500 companies and virtually every major IT 
manufacturer and IT service provider. The acquisition will significantly enhance Glodyne’s position in the $524 billion global 
technology IMS opportunity and strengthen its global reach with a robust onsite-remote IMS delivery model. Glodyne expects 
to significantly strengthen its position in the North American market with the addition of marquee clients and highly skilled 
professionals. The transaction also deepens and broadens the service offering portfolio across many segments, including: 
data center, networking, server, workstation, and storage services, as well as application management and remote technology 
infrastructure management services. Company paid a Enterprise Value of US $ 104 million for the acquisition, which was 
funded by a combination of the debt, equity and internal accruals. The Company has been working on the integration process 
of DecisionOne with your Company. DecisionOne is one of the subsidiary companies of Glodyne.  

B) Sub division (split) of equity shares:

During the year under review, as per the approval granted by the members of the Company at the 13th Annual General Meeting, 
the Company has subdivided its equity share of face value of ` 10/- each to the face value ` 6/- each. As on March 31, 2011, 
the paid-up equity share capital is ` 26,29,51,680 divided into 4,38,25,280 equity shares of ` 6/- each. Pursuant to subdivision, 
5408 equity shares have arisen which as per the shareholder consent have been issued in name of the Independent Directors 
who held the said shares in trust. Accordingly the proportionate amount on sale of shares is being distributed to the entitled 
shareholders.

C) Increase in Share Capital:

During the year, pursuant to the amalgamation of Compulink Systems Limited and Broadllyne Technologies Limited with the 
Company, the authorized capital of the Company increased by ` 15 Crores and ` 1 Crores respectively. Further, the Company 
increased its Authorized Capital and the Capital as on March 31, 2011 stood at ` 59.10 Crores, consisting of Nine Crore Equity 
Shares of ` 6/- each and Eighty Five Lakhs Preference Shares of ` 6/- each.

The Company has also issued and allotted:

 a) 5,28,403 equity shares of the face value of ` 10/- each (pre subdivision) to the shareholders of Compulink Systems 
Limited (CSL) on approval of Scheme of Amalgamation of CSL with the Company, the equity share capital of the 
Company is increased from 2,39,75,913 equity shares to 2,45,04,316 equity shares.

 b) 17,20,284 equity shares of the face value of ` 10/- each (pre subdivision) to the shareholders of Broadllyne 
Technologies Limited (BTL) on approval of Scheme of Amalgamation of BTL with the Company, the equity share 
capital of the Company is increased from 2,45,04,316 equity shares to 2,62,24,600 equity shares.

 c) 79,988 equity shares of the face value of ` 10/- each (pre subdivision) on exercise of Stock Options under the 
Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company during the year.

 d)  14,53,221 equity shares of the face value of ` 10/- each (pre subdivision) on preferential basis in accordance with 
the consent of the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 10, 2010 and SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations to the foreign shareholders with the intend of utilizing the funds for the Company’s acquisition. The 
details of the utilization of funds have been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the 
requirement of the Listing Agreement.

 e) 6,00,000 Convertible warrants at ̀  180/- per warrant issued to Glodyne Global Pvt. Limited, a promoter group Company. 
Post sub-division of the shares of the Company, the no. of warrants has proportionately increased to 10,00,000 
warrants, carrying the right to apply and seek allotment of  one equity share of  ` 6/- each and at a premium of ` 426 
per share i.e. total of ` 432 per share. Warrants issued to the promoters’ group Company are pending exercise of 
options for acquiring equal number of equity shares, on or before December 22, 2011.

As a result of the above, as on March 31, 2011, the Company’s  paid up capital stood increased  to ` 26,29,51,680 consisting 
of 43,825,280 equity shares of ` 6/- each.

DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, 
Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary will be retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting In accordance with Company’s  policy 
for rotation of independent Directors, Mr. Dhiren Kothary would retire from the directorship. The Board of Directors puts on 
record its appreciation towards the contribution made by Mr. Kothary to the Company over the years.

Directors’ Report 
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Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors has approved the appointment of Mr. Bryan Sanderson, Dr. Mohan Kaul  & 
Mr. Samar Ray as Additional Directors on the Board.

Shareholders attention is drawn to the relevant items appearing in the Notice of the A.G.M. and the explanatory statement, 
seeking the approval of the members in this matter.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

During the year and pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at their meeting held on December 24, 2010, the Company 
has formulated Glodyne Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010. The Stock Options under this Scheme & earlier ESOS Scheme 
ESOS 2006 were also increased proportionately to give effect to the split of the face value of the equity share of the Company 
from ` 10/- each to ` 6/- each. 

In accordance with the Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2006 & Glodyne Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2010 of the 
Company, a total number of 60,000 Stock Options (post subdivision no.) & 11,80,980 Stock Options (post subdivision no.) 
respectively were granted during the year by the Compensation Committee. The particulars required under the SEBI (Employee 
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 are annexed to and form part of this report. 
No employee was issued stock option during the year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Company at the 
time of grant.

The issuance of equity shares pursuant to exercise of Options does not affect the profit and loss account of the Company, as 
the exercise is made at the market price as per SEBI Guidelines. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has complied with the Corporate Governance norms as stipulated under the provisions of the Listing 
Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. A separate section on Corporate Governance Report and a Certificate from 
the Company’s Statutory Auditors confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company as 
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are annexed to and forms part of this report.

STATUTORY INFORMATIONS:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, EFFORTS FOR EXPORT MARKET DEVELOPMENT, R & D ACTIVITIES, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

As required under Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder, the necessary details are 
given hereunder:

Conservation of Energy

At your Company’s offices and facilities we make efforts to conserve energy as various levels and also make use of equipments 
which would save energy. In the internal IT set up owned by the organization, the Company uses technology equipments which 
make optimal use of energy resources, at all the stages of its activities.

As your Company’s business comprises of Technology IMS and Software Services and related activities, the operations are not 
energy intensive. Hence there are no particulars required to be furnished in respect of conservation of energy.

Export Market Development

The Company has been providing services to client in the US market. The Company has been making efforts for further client 
mining in the geographies for export development. Subsequent to the acquisition of DecisionOne and integration of the US 
Company with parent company, the Company expects to provide offshore services to a larger client base in US, and thereby 
trying to increase the export revenues.

Research & Development Activities

Your Company has undertaken programs in the Technology IMS Market in India which are focused on the Social Sector 
schemes.  The Company invests and carries out the research and development activities for upgrading its products and 
services delivered to its customers.  For such purposes,  some of the specific areas like process changes for service delivery, 
up gradation / customization of the products / solutions offered by the Company, version enhancements, security features are 
being carried out by the Company. Your company has developed its own applications and service capabilities to cater to large 
scale technology programs deployed in the social sectors / e - governance programs.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo / Technology Absorption

During the year under review, the Company has earned ` 15,223.80 Lakhs in foreign currency (Previous year ` 11,200.41 
Lakhs) and has spent ` 37.28 Lakhs (Previous year - ` 17.95 Lakhs). Details of the same are available vide note nos. B - 6 & 
7 of the Notes in Schedule L forming part of the Audited Accounts, attached herewith.

The Company has not imported any foreign technology & hence the requisite particulars in this regard are Nil.

Directors’ Report 
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DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 217(2A):

The disclosure about the details of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits specified under Section 217(2A) 
of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of employees) Rules, 1975, during the year under review 
forms part of the Directors’ Report. However, having regard to the provisions of Section 219 (i) (b) (iv) of the Companies 
Act, 1956, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to all the shareholders of the Company and 
others entitled thereto. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors hereby confirm:

 (i) that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2011, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 (ii) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year under review and of the profit for the year under review;

 (iii) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 (iv) that the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2011 on a going concern basis.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

As on March 31, 2011, your Company’s subsidiaries included Glodyne Peoplepower Limited, Smaarftech Technologies 
Private Limited, Glodyne Technoserve Inc. and its step down subsidiaries including DecisionOne Corporation USA and its 2 
subsidiaries and Compulink USA Inc., Compulink Software Pte. Ltd., Compulink Europe Ltd.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has granted general exemption under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956 exempting 
companies from attaching copies of the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
of Subsidiaries as specified under Section 212(1) of the Companies Act, 1956 subject to publication of certain summarised 
financial information of the subsidiaries in the Annual Report. Accordingly these documents related to subsidiaries are not 
attached to the Balance Sheet and the summarised financial information related to subsidiaries is included in the Annual 
Report. The annual accounts of the subsidiaries along with the related information will be made available to the Members 
seeking such information at any point of time. The annual accounts of the subsidiaries are also available for inspection during 
business hours at the Registered Office of the Company for inspection by any interested shareholder.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits falling within the purview of Section 58A of the Company’s Act, 1956 during the 
year under review, and as such, no principal or interest amount was outstanding on the date of the Balance sheet.

CORPORATE  SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

Green Initiative

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” vide Circular No. 17/2011 
dated 21.04.2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011, respectively, by allowing paperless compliances by companies 
through electronic mode. Companies are now permitted to send various communications / documents (including Notice of 
General Meetings, Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and all other documents including Postal 
Ballot documents) to its Members, through electronic mode, to the registered e-mail addresses of the Members. 

Your Company proposes to henceforth effect all communications / documents, as may be allowed from time to time, including 
Annual Report for the Financial Year 2010-11, in electronic form to its Members, to the e-mail address provided / updated by 
you and made available to the Company by the Depositories, which will be deemed to be your registered e-mail address for 
serving the necessary communications / documents. Your Directors also request you to register your e-mail address with your 
DP for the purpose of serving of documents by the Company in electronic mode, if your e-mail address is not registered with 
your Depository Participant (DP).

Directors’ Report 
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Glodyne Care Foundation

We are committed to contributing to the society and initiated setting up of “Glodyne Care Foundation”, a not-for-profit trust 
setup to support our social initiatives. The foundation is setup to promote the object of imparting education, providing medical 
aid, helping the poor etc. The Foundation embodies corporate systems and processes driven organization operating on a not 
for profit basis, with the overall aim to create and support meaningful and innovative activities that will address some of India’s 
most pressing development challenges. The Foundation is being formed with an initial contribution of ` 1 Lakh.  

AUDITORS:

The Present Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. N M Kapadia & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, hold their office 
until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The present auditors have confirmed their willingness and 
eligibility under Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956 for their reappointment for the financial year ending 2011-12 at a 
remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors or Committee thereof.

Your Directors recommend their re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for your approval.

M/s. Kreischer Miller has carried out the US GAAP audit and S.R. Batliboi & Associates has carried out the Indian GAAP Audit 
of DecisionOne Corporation - largest subsidiary of your Company.  

HUMAN CAPITAL:

The Company has expanded its human capital through organic hiring as well as addition through the acquisitions it did. In the 
Company there are stringent selection processes to ensure fairness and employment of the quality resources. The Company 
carries out various initiatives for the talent management within the organization and to this intent, various employee centric 
programs such - Glodyne Care, Excellence workshops, Glofest etc have been designed and are carried out. These various 
initiatives are aimed to promote healthy competition, motivate the workforce, and aligning them to the organization’s objectives. 
The attrition rate of your company’s employees’ has been below the industry average. Your Company provides opportunities 
to the employees for growth in congruence with the Company’s goals.

QUALITY INITIAVIES:

The Company being the Service industry follows norms and procedures of international standards. The Company has been 
certified with by International Organization for Standardization (ISO) with ISO 27001, the highest certification standard on 
information security. The Company is also an ISO 9001:2000 certified and CMMi level 3 compliant Company.

AWARDS & ACCOLADES:

During the year under review, your Company was awarded with the following Awards:

 l Maharashtra IT 2010 award

 l Best Under a Billion award for the year by Forbes Asia

 l Deloitte Technology Fast 500 AsiaPac and Fast 50 India programs

 l Super ranked 4th by Business Standard 

 l Ranked 8th by India Inc amongst the best performing midsized companies in the year

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board of Directors put on record their sincere thanks to the clients, business partners, bankers, media, analysts, research 
houses for their continued support and co-operation.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the business associates and shareholders. Your Directors also thank all 
the Government and regulatory authorities connected with the Company’s business for their support during the year.

Your Directors also appreciate and value the contribution of each member of Glodyne family including the contribution of the 
employees at all levels in the growth of the organization.

     For and on Behalf of the Board                                                                                                 

     Sd/-  
Place : Mumbai  Annand Sarnaaik
Date : August 05, 2011 Chairman & Managing Director

Directors’ Report 
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Information to be disclosed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (during the F.Y. ended March 31, 2011):
A. Summary of Status of ESOPs Granted  
 The position of the existing schemes is summarized as under -

Sr. 
No.

Particulars ESOP 2006 ESOP 2010

1 Details of the Meeting Authorized by 
Shareholders of 
the Company on 
29th September 

2006

Authorized by 
Shareholders of 
the Company on 
24th December 

2010

2 The Pricing Formula "Market price" as 
defined by SEBI

"Market price" as 
defined by SEBI

3 Options Granted* 2,959,773 1,180,980

4 Options Vested and Exercisable* 412,946 0

5 Options Exercised* 1,402,520 0

6 Options Cancelled* 478,878 0

7 Options Lapsed* 0 0

8 Total Number of Options in force * 1,078,375 1,180,980

9 Variation in terms of ESOP Not Applicable Not Applicable

10 Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 1,402,520 0

11 Money realized by exercise of options during the year(` In Lakhs) 47.26 0

*The options have been adjusted for split - Face value of ` 10/- split to face value of ` 6/-  as on Feb 10, 2011 and a bonus of 
1:1 share as on August 20, 2009

B.	 Employee-wise	details	of	options	granted	during	the	financial	year	2010-11	to:

(i) Senior managerial personnel no. 10

(ii) Employees who were granted, during any one year, options amounting to 
5% or more of the options granted during the year.

6 employees

(iii) Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year equal 
to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants 
and conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

Nil

C. Weighted average Fair Value  of Options granted during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price 280

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NA

(c) Exercise price is less than market price 227.59

 Weighted average Exercise price of options granted during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price 569.90

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NA

(c) Exercise price is less than market price 581.45

Annexure to the Directors’ Report
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D.

Where the company has calculated the employee 
compensation cost using the intrinsic value of the stock 
options, the difference between the employee compensation 
cost so computed and the employee compensation cost that 
shall have been recognized if it had used the fair value of the 
options, shall be disclosed. The impact of this difference on 
profits and on EPS of the company shall also be disclosed.

The stock-based compensation cost calculated as per the 
intrinsic value method for the financial year 2010-11 is Nil. 
If the stock-based compensation cost was calculated as 
per the fair value method, the total cost to be recognised 
in the financial statements for the year 2010-11 would 
be ` 416.44. The profits would have been lower by 
` 416.44 lakhs and basic and diluted earnings per share  
would have been lower by ` 0.96 & ` 0.90 respectively.  

E. Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year:
 The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model
 The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Variables 9-Jun-10 13-Jan-11
1. Risk Free Interest Rate 6.25%-6.56% 7.74%-7.95%
2. Expected Life 2-3 years 2-5 years
3. Expected Volatility 64.92%-66.72% 56.86%-65.87%
4. Dividend Yield 0.76% 0.76%
5. Price of the underlying share in market at the time of the option grant.(`) 581.45 569.90

Annexure to the Directors’ Report
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Report on Corporate Governance
1. The Company’s Philosophy

 For Glodyne, good Corporate Governance is the key for creating and maintaining public/stakeholders’ trust in the Company. 
Glodyne continuously strives for best corporate governance practices and ensures better transparency, accountability and 
fairness in dissemination of information to its stakeholders. 

 Glodyne considers itself committed to ensure that the operations of the Company result in enhancing the shareholders’ 
value as also carrying on the business with maximum possible transparency. Formal Corporate Governance practices 
at Glodyne includes Constitution of various committees for monitoring specific areas, presence of independent directors 
on the Board etc., Glodyne has not only adopted practices mandated in Clause 49, but also implemented certain non-
mandatory recommendations.

 Glodyne has implemented the followings policies for better corporate governance practices:

 • Glodyne Prohibition of Insider Trading Code

 • Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors

 • Code of Conduct for the Senior Management

 The codes are available on the Company’s website. The Company shall continue to focus its resources, strategies and 
strengths to achieve Company’s vision of becoming global name, with upholding the core values of integrity, responsibility 
& transparency.

 The Company has in place an Information Security Policy for ensuring proper utilization of IT resources. 

 This section, along with the section on Management Discussion & Analysis and Additional Shareholder Information, 
reports Glodyne’s compliance under Clause 49.

2. Board of Directors

 A) Composition of Board of Directors:

  The Chairman & Managing Director along with the other Executive Director/Whole Time Director manages the day-to 
-day affairs of the Company. The Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors 
for its independent functioning with fifty percent of the Board of Directors comprising of non-executive directors. All 
pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the Company is disclosed in the Annual 
Report. As on the date of this report, the Board comprises of 6 Directors, consisting of 3 Executive Directors and 3 
Non-Executive Directors. All Non-Executive Directors are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Company is 
Executive Chairman and the composition of the Board of Directors is consistent with the provisions of the Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreements entered with the Stock Exchanges. 

  No Director is related to any other Director on the Board in terms of the definition of ‘relative’ given under the 
Companies Act, 1956, except Mr. Annand Sarnaaik and Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik who are respectively related to 
each other as spouse.

  None of the Directors on the Board are Members of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five 
Committees across all the companies in which they are Directors. The requisite disclosures regarding Committee 
positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2011 have been made by the Directors to the Board. For 
the purpose of reckoning this limit only Membership / Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Investor’s Grievance 
Committee as defined under the Listing Agreement are considered.

  During the year, the applicable and incident based information, if any, as mentioned in Annexure 1A to Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreements was placed before the Board for its consideration.

  The departments of the Company schedule their work plans in advance, particularly with regard to matters requiring 
consideration at the Board/Committee Meetings. All such matters are communicated to the Company Secretary in 
advance so that the same could be included in the Agenda for the Board/Committee Meetings and accordingly important 
decisions taken at the Board/Committee Meetings are promptly communicated to the concerned departments.

  The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings during the year and at 
the last Annual General Meeting and also the number of Directorships held by them in other Companies are given 
below:- 
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Report on Corporate Governance

Name of the Directors Category Attendance at As on March 31, 2011

BM LAST AGM Directorships in other 
companies#

Mr. Annand Sarnaaik Promoter &  
Executive Director

5 YES 6

Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik Promoter &  
Executive Director

5 YES 6

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary Independent & Non-
Executive Director

5 YES 1

Mr. Alok Sharma Independent & Non-
Executive Director

5 YES -

Mr. R.S.P. Sinha Independent & Non-
Executive Director

5 YES -

Mr. Shantanu Rooj* Non Independent & 
Whole- time Director

1 YES 1

Mr. Y. Krishnamurthy** Independent & Non – 
Executive Director

4 YES N.A.

  #  The Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include Alternate Directorships and Directorships 
in Foreign Companies, Companies Registered under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Private 
Limited Companies. Includes directorships in Public Limited Companies only, excluding directorship in Glodyne 
Technoserve Limited.

  * Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f November 25, 2010, was regularized and Appointed as Whole time Director 
w.e.f December 24, 2010. 

	 	 **	 Retired	from	the	Office	w.e.f	December	24,	2010

  No Director of the Company is a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairman of more than five committees 
across all companies in which they are Director(s).The confirmation in the said regard has been obtained from the 
Directors. For the purpose of reckoning the limits, Chairmanships/Memberships of Board Committees include only 
Audit and Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committees. 

 B) Non-Executive Directors’ Compensation and Disclosures:

  The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fee at the rate of ` 6000/-, ` 3000/- & ` 1000/- for attending each meeting 
of the Board, Audit Committee & Investor’s Grievance Committee respectively. The Sitting fees during the year were 
increased by the Board of Directors in accordance with the limits mentioned under the Companies Act. For the 
remaining part of the year the Non- Executive Directors are paid sitting fee at the revised rates of ` 20,000/- for each 
meeting of the Board and ` 15,000/- each for Committee meetings. Apart from the said referred meetings no sitting 
fees was paid to the Directors for any other Committee meetings held during the year.

  All sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are fixed by the Board of Directors. The Shareholders of the 
Company at their Ninth Annual General Meeting had approved the payment of commission to the Non-Executive 
Director’s up to 1% of the profit of the Company. However, no such commission has been paid to the Non-Executive 
Directors for the year under consideration. During the financial year ended March 31, 2011, 15,000 stock options 
of face value of ` 10/- per share were granted to the Non Executive Directors under the Employees Stock Option 
Scheme, 2006. Details of the fees paid to the Non Executive Directors are disclosed else where in this report.

 C) Other provisions related to Board and Committees:

  No. of Board Meetings held during the year:

  During the financial year 2010 – 2011, Five (05) Board Meetings were held. The Company has held at least one Board 
meeting in every three months and the maximum time gap between any such two meetings was not more than four 
months. Request for Leave of Absence, if any, requested by the Directors was granted accordingly. All the information 
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required to be placed before the Board as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement was made available to the Board. 
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The dates on which the said meetings were held were as 
follows:

  May 12, 2010; July 23, 2010; October 25, 2010; November 25, 2010; & January 24, 2011 

3. BOARD COMMITTEES 

 The Board of Directors of the Company has formed following committees for the effective exercise of powers and 
responsibilities as envisaged in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 A. Audit Committee

  In accordance with the provisions of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, 
an independent and qualified Audit Committee of the Board consisting of three Independent and one Non-Independent 
Director, has been constituted. 

  Five (05) Audit Committee Meetings were held during 2010-11. The dates on which the said meetings were held were 
as follows:

  May 12, 2010; July 23 2010; October 25, 2010; November 25, 2010; & January 24, 2011 

  The Composition of and the details of the Audit Committee meetings held are given below:

Name Designation / Category No. of Meetings attended during 
the year 2010-11

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary Chairman (Independent) 05
Mr. Y. Krishnamurthy* Member (Independent) 04
Mr. Annand Sarnaaik Member (Non Independent) 05
Mr. RSP Sinha# Member (Independent) 04

* Retired	from	the	Office	w.e.f.	December	24,	2010.
  # Added as a member of the Audit Committee vide Board resolution dated May 12, 2010.

  The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows:
  a) To review compliance with internal control systems;
  b) To review the findings of the Internal Auditor relating to various functions of the Company.
  c) To hold periodic discussions with the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company concerning the 

accounts of the Company, internal control systems, scope of audit and observations of the Auditors/Internal 
Auditors;

  d) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company before submission to the Board;
  e) To make recommendations to the Board on any matter relating to the financial management of the Company, 

including the Statutory & Internal Audit Reports.
  f) Recommending the appointment of statutory auditors and also fixation of their remuneration.
  g) Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, 

with the particular reference to:
   (i) matter required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement forming part of the Board’s report in 

terms of clause (2AA) of Section 217 of Companies Act, 1956.
   (ii) Changes if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
   (iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by management.
   (iv) Significant adjustments made in financial statement arising out of audit findings.
   (v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statement.
   (vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions.
   (vii) Qualifications in draft Audit Report, if any.
  h) To review financial statements including investments made by Unlisted Subsidiary Companies.
  i) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval
  j) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal 

control systems.
   The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

Report on Corporate Governance



31Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2010 - 2011

 B. Remuneration Committee

  The Company has a Remuneration Committee of Directors constituted in accordance with Schedule XIII of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Remuneration Committee deliberates and 
determine on matters like the remuneration and annual performance payable, terms and conditions of appointment 
and other matters relating to executive directors/ managerial persons; to deliberate and recommend on the structuring 
of the remuneration package and formulate remuneration policies and other matters as the Board may request the 
Committee to consider and recommend/approve from time to time.

  During the F.Y. 2010-11, 1 (One) Meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on November 25, 2010.

  The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

  Remuneration Policy:

  The Company’s remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance and achievements. The remuneration 
consists of basic pay, perquisites, performance allowances, bonus, incentives and commission. The remuneration 
and structure varies as per the various grades depending upon the job responsibilities, qualifications, experience etc. 
The policy aims to drive the human resources to achieve higher levels of performance, reward the merits and work as 
a motivating force.

  The remuneration of the Executive Directors is approved by Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors and the 
shareholders of the Company. 

  Details of remuneration paid to all the Directors for the F.Y. 2010 -2011: 

(` in ‘Lakhs’)

Name Salary includes 
Perquisites, Commission 

& Bonus

Sitting Fees Total

Annand Sarnaaik 69.35 - 69.35
Divvyani A. Sarnaaik 55.75 - 55.75
Alok Sharma - 0.44 0.44
Dhiren B. Kothary - 0.89 0.89
RSP Sinha - 0.68 0.68
Y. Krishnamurthy - 0.36 0.36
Shantanu Rooj 19.89 - 19.89

Details of remuneration paid to all the Directors of erstwhile Compulink Systems Limited for the period  
01.04.2010 - 30.11.2010:

(` in ‘Lakhs’)

# Name Salary includes 
Perquisites, Commission 

& Bonus

Sitting Fees Total

Sajit Kumar - 0.05 0.05

Shridhar Shukla - 0.20 0.20

Vishwas Sharad Mahajan 30.40 - 30.40

Uday Madhukar Kothari 30.89 - 30.89

Yadhunath Deshpande - 0.05 0.05

  #	The	above	mention	Directors	of	the	erstwhile	Compulink	Systems	Limited	have	vacated	their	office,	pursuant	to	
Amalgamation of the Compulink with the Company.

  Notes: 

  a) Salary includes Medical Benefits, Group Hospitalisation Benefits, Leave Travel Allowance, Privileged Leave , 
encashment of unutilized privileged Leave, Gratuity, Commission, etc. No performance linked incentives were 
paid to the Directors. The terms of remuneration of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik & Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik were 
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fixed for a period of three years from September 25, 2007 to September 24, 2010. The shareholders vide their 
resolution dated December 24, 2010 approved the revised remuneration scale for both Mr. Annand Sarnaaik 
& Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik for the remaining term of their office, i.e. the revised salary will be paid upto their 
remaining term of office ending September 24, 2012. 

   The revised remuneration details are given below:

   Mr. Annand Sarnaaik: Not exceeding ̀  87,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Seven Lakhs Only), effective from September 
25, 2010.

   Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik: Not exceeding ̀  69,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Nine Lakhs), effective from September 25, 
2010. 

  b) Mr. Annand Sarnaaik & Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik were appointed as Chairman & Managing Director and 
Executive Director respectively for a term of five years from September 25, 2007 and hold office till September 
24, 2012. The appointment is on contractual basis, which can be terminated with six months’ notice period for 
severance and no fees for severance. 

  c) Mr. Shantanu Rooj was appointed as a Whole Time Director of the Company, for a period of three years from 
December 24, 2010 to December 23, 2013. The appointment is on contractual basis, which can be terminated 
with six months’ notice period for severance and no fees for severance. 

  d) No commission has been paid to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company are paid sitting fees for attending Board/Committee Meetings as approved by the Board within the 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956. The Non-Executive Directors are eligible for Stock Options, the 
details of the stock options granted to them is mentioned in below section of this Report

  e) The Company did not have any material pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Non-Executive Directors, 
except to the disclosures, if any made in any other part of the Annual Report.

 C. Shareholders/ Investor’s Grievance Committee 

  The Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Company, specifically look into the redressal of Investors’ complaints like 
transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet and non-receipt of declared dividend, etc., The Committee comprises 
of the following

  1. Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary - Chairman (Independent)

  2. Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik - Member (Non- Independent)

   Four (04) meetings of the Investors’ Grievance Committee were held during the F.Y. 2010-11. 

   May 12, 2010; July 23, 2010; October 25, 2010 & January 24, 2011.

   The details of the meetings attended by the Directors are given below:

Names of the Members No. of Meetings held during the 
year 2010-11

No. of Meetings attended during 
the year 2010-11

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary 04 04
Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik 04 04

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee.

   Shareholder/Investor Complaints

Complaints pending as on April 01, 2010 NIL
During the period April 01, 2010 to March 31, 2011, complaints identified and reported under 
Clause 41 of the Listing Agreements

18

Complaints disposed off /resolved during the year ended March 31, 2011 18
No. of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders Complaints pending as on 
March 31, 2011

NIL

   The above complaints includes 1 (one) SEBI complaint which is duly redressed by the Company.

   As on March 31, 2011, the shareholding position of the Company in dematerialized form stood at 88.89% of the 
share capital.
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 D. Managing Committee

  The Managing Committee of Board of Directors is empowered to take decision on the routine matters within its defined 
scope of authority including delegated borrowing powers upto limits laid by the Board. The Committee enables the 
management to take quick decisions pertaining to the routine business occurring on day to basis and save the 
valuable time of the Board, it also helps in avoiding the administrative difficulties. The Managing committee had met 
frequently during the year under review to manage its day to day functions.

 E. Compensation Committee

  The Compensation Committee of the Board of our Company, consist of Executive & Non - Executive Directors, 
comprising of the following members:

  • Mr. Annand Sarnaaik
  • Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary 
  • Mr. Alok Sharma

  The Committee primarily administers the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company. The brief description of 
terms of reference include:

  (i) Formulating detailed terms and conditions of Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS), including the quantum of 
options to be granted under the scheme, the conditions under which options vested in employees may lapse in 
case of termination of employment, the exercise period within which the employee shall exercise the option and 
the option would lapse on failure to exercise the option within the exercise period, the specified time period within 
which the employee shall exercise the vested option in the event of termination or resignation of an employee, 
etc managing and supervising the scheme, 

  (ii) framing of suitable policies and systems to ensure compliances with applicable rules and regulations and to 
perform such other functions, that the Committee is required under SEBI’s guidelines, recommending the overall 
compensation structure of the Organization and review thereof as required by the Management. 

 F. Employee Stock Option Scheme Committee:

  The Company has a Committee named as Employee Stock Option Scheme Committee (ESOS Committee), which 
inter alia administers the exercise of stock options and matter relating to allotment of shares consequent to exercise 
of options and listing of shares. The Company has two stock options schemes, namely: (i) Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2006 (ESOS 2006) (ii) Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 (ESOS 2010)

  During the year, the Company has granted / allotted stock options as follows (Pre sub-division details):

Grant details Allotment details

Date of stock options 
granted during the FY 
2010 -11

No. of stock options 
granted (right to apply for 
one Equity Share of ` 10/- 
each)

Date of allotment during 
FY 2010 -11

No. of equity shares (face 
value 10/- each) allotted 
pursuant to exercise of 
stock options 

June 10, 2010 36000 June 16, 2010 9,420

January 13, 2011 708589 December 22, 2010 70,568

Total 7,44,589 Total 79,988

The details of the options granted to the Non –Executive Directors of the Company during the year is given below:

Name of the Director No. of options granted Scheme

Mr. Alok Sharma 5000 ESOS 2006

Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary 5000 ESOS 2006

Mr. RSP Sinha 5000 ESOS 2006

Pursuant to the sub-division of the shares of the Company from ` 10/- each to ` 6/- each and shareholders resolution 
passed at the Annual General Meeting held on December 24, 2010, the exercise price for the options has been re-
priced & no. of options granted in respect of ESOS-2006 and ESOS-2010 Schemes has been revised by reducing 
face value of `10/- per share to ` 6/- per share. 

  Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik & Mr. Shantanu Rooj, are the Members of the said Committee.
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4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

 The Company has 6 direct subsidiaries & 5 step down subsidiaries, out of which 9 are Foreign subsidiaries and 2 are 
Indian subsidiaries. As on March 31, 2011, the Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary Company 
and hence, it is not required to have an Independent Director of the Company on the Board of such subsidiary Company. 

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

 A detailed report on the Management Discussion and Analysis is prepared in accordance with Sub-clause F (i) of Clause 
49 is enclosed and forms part of this Annual Report.

6. DISCLOSURES

 i. Related Party Transactions 

  Besides the transactions mentioned elsewhere in the Annual Report, there were no other materially significant related 
party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. However, the particulars 
of transactions between the Company and the related parties as per the Accounting Standard 18 are set out in Notes 
forming part of the accounts. 

  The Accounts have been drawn in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards. The Company periodically carries 
Risk Analysis & Management procedure review through systematic framework.

 ii. Compliances by the Company

  The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities & no 
penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange, SEBI or other statutory authorities 
relating to the capital markets during the last three years. 

 iii. Mandatory requirements of Clause 49

  The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 iv. Non Mandatory requirements of Clause 49

  The Company has adopted the following non-mandatory requirement as prescribed in Annexure I D to the Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges:

  (a) The Company has adopted Whistle-Blower Policy and affirms that no employee of the Company has been denied 
access to the Audit Committee.

  (b) The Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee, details of which have been given earlier in this Report.

 v. Code of Conduct

  The Board has laid down two separate Code of Conduct (Codes), one for Board Members and other for 
Senior Management of the Company. These Codes have been posted on the Company’s website http://www.
glodynetechnoserve.in. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with these 
codes. A declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.

 vi. Share Capital Audit

  A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital to reconcile the total admitted 
capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
and the total issued and listed capital. The Reconciliation confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement 
with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and 
CDSL.
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7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 The details of the last three Annual General Meetings held, were as under:

Financial Year Location Date Time Special resolutions passed

2009-10 Exchange Plaza, NSE 
Auditorium, Ground Floor, 
Bandra–Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East),  
Mumbai - 400 051

24.12.2010 11.00 A.M 1.  Appointment of Mr. Shantanu Rooj, as a 
Whole Time Director of the Company and 
his terms of remuneration.

2.  Terms of remuneration of Mr. Annand 
Sarnaaik, Chairman & Managing Director 
of the Company for his remaining period 
of two years of his existing term of 
appointment.

3.  Terms of remuneration of Mrs. Divvyani 
A. Sarnaaik, Executive Director of the 
Company for her remaining period of two 
years of her existing term of appointment.

4.  Raising funds by way of placement 
shares and/or other permitted securities 
to Qualified Institutional Buyer through 
QIP placement.

5.  Raising funds by way of placement 
shares and/or other permitted securities 
through FCCB / ADR / GDR / Convertible 
securities.

6.  Sub-division of the share capital of the 
Company from ` 10/- each into ` 6/- each 
fully paid-up.

7.  Alteration of the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company for increase 
in the Authorized Share Capital of the 
Company

8.  Alteration of the Articles of Association 
of the Company for increase in the 
Authorized Share Capital.

9.  Glodyne Employees Stock Option 
Scheme 2010 and issue and grant of 
Equity Stock Options to the eligible 
present and future employees and 
Directors of the Company under the 
Scheme.

10.  To extend benefits of the Glodyne 
Employees Stock Option Scheme 
2010 to all eligible present and future 
employees and Directors of existing and 
future Indian and /or Foreign subsidiary 
(ies) of the Company

2008-2009 Exchange Plaza, NSE 
Auditorium, Ground Floor, 
Bandra–Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East),  
Mumbai - 400 051

24.08.2009 11.00 A.M NIL

2007-2008 Exchange Plaza, NSE 
Auditorium, Ground Floor, 
Bandra–Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East),  
Mumbai - 400 051

29.09.2008 11.00 A.M 1.  Alteration in Memorandum of Association 
consequent to increase in Authorized 
Capital.
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Financial Year Location Date Time Special resolutions passed

2.  Alteration of Articles of association 
consequent to increase in Authorized 
Capital.

3.  Approval for Investment by Foreign 
Institutional Investors (FIIs) in the 
equity share capital of the Company not 
exceeding, 49% of the paid-up Equity 
Share Capital of the Company.

4.  Raising funds in domestic / international 
markets by way of Public/Private issue / 
offering of FCCBs or GD`

5.  Raising funds by way of placement 
shares and/or other permitted securities 
to Qualified Institutional Buyer through 
QIP placement.

There was no special resolution passed last year through postal ballot nor it is proposed to conduct any business through 
postal ballot for the year ended March 31, 2011. 

During the year 2010-11, one Extra –Ordinary General meeting of the Company was held on June 10, 2010. The details 
of the same are given as follows:

Location Date Time Special resolutions passed

Exchange Plaza, NSE Auditorium, Ground 
Floor, Bandra–Kurla Complex, Bandra 
(East), Mumbai - 400 051

10.06.2010 10.30 
A.M

1.  Preferential Issue of Equity Shares to 
Non Promoter Subscribers

2.  Preferential Issue of Warrants to the 
Promoters/Promoter Group Company

During the year 2010-11, two Court convened meeting of the equity shareholders was held, the details of the same are 
given as follows:

Location Date Time Nature of 
meeting

Special resolutions passed

Exchange Plaza, NSE Auditorium, 
Ground Floor, Bandra–Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East),  
Mumbai - 400 051

15.07.2010 11.00 A.M Equity 
Shareholders

Approved the Scheme of 
Arrangement & Amalgamation of 
Compulink Systems Limited with 
the Company.

Exchange Plaza, NSE Auditorium, 
Ground Floor, Bandra–Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East),  
Mumbai - 400 051

24.08.2010 11.00 A.M Equity 
Shareholders

Approved the Scheme of 
Arrangement & Amalgamation of 
Broadllyne Technologies Limited 
with the Company.

8. SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION.

 According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors retires by rotation and if eligible, seek re-appointment 
at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders. As per Article 120 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Dhiren B. Kothary 
will retire at the ensuing 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company, however in accordance with company’s policy for 
rotation of Independent Directors, he would be retiring and will not be re-appointed. 

 The Board put on record its appreciation towards the contribution made by the him to the Company.

 Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors has approved the appointment of Mr. Bryan Sanderson, Dr. Mohan 
Kaul  & Mr. Samar Ray as Additional Directors on the Board. As per section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 Mr. Bryan 
Sanderson, Dr. Mohan Kaul & Mr. Samar Ray hold the office of Director upto the date of AGM. The Company has 
received notices under section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 from the members, proposing the respective candidature 
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of Mr. Bryan Sanderson, Dr. Mohan Kaul & Mr. Samar Ray for appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual general Meeting. The detailed profile of the Directors are provided in the Notice of Annual General Meeting 
annexed to the Annual report.

 During the year, Mr. Shantanu Rooj, has been appointed as a Whole time Director on the Board of the Company. As 
the merger of Compulink Systems Limited & Broadllyne Technologies Limited was effected in the month of October 
& November, the Company had sought an extension for convening the Annual General Meeting for the financial year  
2009-10 and accordingly the AGM for the said Financial Year was held on December 24, 2010. 

 A) Directors’ shareholding as on March 31, 2011: 

Name of the Directors No. of Shares % of total share capital
Executive Directors Promoter Directors
1.  Annand Sarnaaik 15135210 34.54
2.  Divvyani A. Sarnaaik 8984543 20.50
Non Promoter Director
3.  Shantanu Rooj# 286900 0.65
Non Executive Directors
4. Dhiren B. Kothary 4666 0.01
5.  Alok Sharma 5000 0.01
6. R. S. P. Sinha 0 0.00

  # Mr. Shantanu Rooj is appointed as a Whole Time Director w.e.f. December 24, 2010.

  As on March 31, 2011, all the present Non Executive Directors hold 25000 stock options (each vested option carrying 
the entitlement to exercise for one equity share of ` 6/- each) put together, of the Company.

 B) Means of communication:

  The Company has promptly reported to the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed, its 
quarterly / half yearly / annual financial results. The Company also simultaneously sends to the Stock Exchanges 
press releases, if any, issued by it. The Company’s periodical financial results as well as the press releases are 
displayed on the website of the Company – www.glodynetechnoserve.in. The financial results are published in one 
English and one Marathi daily newspaper, normally in Business Standard and Sakal / Lokmat respectively. 

  Since the periodical financial results are published in leading newspapers and posted on the Company’s website, the 
results are not sent to the households of the shareholders. During the year, the Company has made presentations to 
Institutional Investors, analysts, etc and the same is available on the website of Company.

 C) General shareholder information

Date and time of Annual General Meeting September 15, 2011. 3.30 p.m.

Venue of Annual General Meeting Exchange Plaza, NSE Auditorium, Ground Floor, Bandra Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

Financial year April 01 to March 31
Board Meetings
Financial reporting for the second quarter 
ending September 30, 2011

By end of October 2011/ 1st week of November

Financial reporting for the third quarter ending 
December 31, 2011

By end of January 2012

Financial results for the year ending
March 31, 2012

By end of April 2012 if Un-audited and May 2012 if Audited

General Meeting
Annual General Meeting for the year ending 
March 31, 2012

August / September 2012

Date of Book closure for dividend September 15, 2011

Report on Corporate Governance



Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2010 - 201138

Dividend Payment Date Dividend if declared will be paid on or after September 15, 2011 
i.e. within 30 days from the date of declaration at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Glodyne Shares are traded on

Listing on Stock Exchanges 1.  Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
 Scrip Code: 532672
2.  National Stock Exchange of India Limited
 Scrip Code: GLODYNE

 
The ISIN of Company’s equity shares with NSDL and CDSL is INE932G01021

  The Annual listing fees for the year 2011-12 has been duly paid to the stock exchanges pursuant to clause 38 of listing 
agreement in which the Company’s shares are listed.

	 D)	 Auditors	Certificate	on	Corporate	Governance
  As required under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Auditor’s certificate on compliance of the Corporate 

Governance norms is attached with this report.
 E) Postal Ballots
  There are no ordinary or special resolution which is required to be passed by the shareholders through postal ballot 

for the year ended March 31, 2011.
 F) Unclaimed Dividend
  As per the section 205 of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company is mandated to transfer the dividend amount 

that has been unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of declaration from the Unpaid dividend account 
to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF). The dividend schedule giving the details of the Company’s past 
dividend is given below, if unclaimed within a period of seven years, it will be transferred to IEPF:

Financial Year Dividend per share (`) Date of Declaration Date on which dividend 
will become part of IEPF

2005-06 1 29.09.2006 28.09.2013
2006-07 1.2 24.09.2007 23.09.2014
2007-08 1.2 29.09.2008 28.09.2015
2008-09 4.2 24.08.2009 23.08.2016
2009-10 4.2 24.12.2010 23.12.2017

9. MARKET PRICE DATA
 a) Monthly high and low prices: 
  The monthly high and low prices of the Company’s shares traded at the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for the year ended March 31, 2011, as given below. 

Month & Year BSE NSE
High (`) Low (`) High (`) Low (`)

April 2010 773.90 716.50 773.90 645.00
May 2010 742.70 586.25 748.70 587.00
June 2010 799.20 568.35 799.70 570.95
July 2010 872.95 756.00 873.70 750.00
August 2010 949.00 812.00 949.00 818.20
September 2010 1212.00 905.00 1214.90 853.00
October 2010 1245.00 1100.00 1250.05 1100.00
November 2010 1293.00 782.00 1307.40 775.55
December 2010 1150.00 590.00 1144.00 579.40
January 2011 780.90 554.00 781.70 556.00
February 2011* 755.00 309.90 753.75 355.00
March 2011* 473.00 350.15 470.00 350.00

*Note: From February 11, 2011 onwards, pursuant to the sub division of the shares of the Company from ` 10 to ` 6 
each,	the	price	was	proportionately	reduced.	The	figures	from	February	2011	onwards	reflect	the	post	sub-division	
price. 
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 b) Performance in comparison to broad based indices:

  The Performance of the Company’s Share relative to the BSE Sensex is given in the chart below:

  

The Performance of the Company’s Share relative to the NSE Sensitive Index (S&P CNX Nifty index) is given in the chart 
below:

  

** Glodyne share price is adjusted down wards on the Stock Exchanges pursuant to Sub division of the shares of the Company 
from ` 10/- to ` 6/- each in February 2011.
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10. REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT 
 Bigshare Services Private Limited is the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) of your Company. The R & T agent 

has adequate infrastructure and skill set to service the investors. Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to 
the R&T Agent of the Company, at the correspondence address mentioned in point 16 below. 

11. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

 The request for transfer of shares held in physical form, are normally processed within 15 days, subject to lodgement of 
the duly completed documents, with the Registrar & Transfer Agent. The Registrar & Transfer Agent also processes all 
dematerialization / rematerialization requests, within the prescribed time. The Investors’ Grievance Committee is also 
empowered to approve the Share transfer requests, request relating to issue of share certificates on account of split / 
consolidation, duplicate issue, remat of shares etc. The Demat Status report and the bought and sold report in respect of 
the shares held in demat form are periodically reported to the Committee / Board.

12. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2011

 Distribution of shareholding by number of shares held:

Range (in `) Total 
Holders

% of Total  
Holders

Total Holding in 
Rupees

% of Total  
Capital

1-5000 14833 93.73 10151652 3.86
5001-10000 446 2.82 3322206 1.26
10001 - 20000 218 1.38 3222960 1.22
20001 - 30000 102 0.64 2601948 0.99
30001 - 40000 35 0.22 1228044 0.47
40001 - 50000 31 0.20 1411914 0.54
50001 - 100000 56 0.35 3891960 1.48
100001 - 99999999 104 0.66 237121026 90.18
Total 15825 100.00 262951680 100.00

Distribution of shareholding by ownership

Category 
code

Category of shareholder Total Number of shares Total shareholding as 
a percentage of total 

number of shares
(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group

Indian
1. Promoter Individuals 24119753 55.03

Promoter Group Company 200000 0.46
Foreign 0 0
Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter 
Group

24319753 55.49

(B) Public shareholdings
Institutions

2. Financial Institutions/ Banks 354552 0.81
3. Foreign Institutional Investors 3526342 8.05

Non-institutions
4. Bodies Corporate 6323023 14.43
5. Individuals - 8378509 19.12
6. Venture Capital Funds 62656 0.14
7. Any Other - Clearing members 88772 0.20

- Trust 83 0.00
- NRI 246548 0.56
- Foreign National 59818 0.14
- OCB 465224 1.06

Total Public Shareholding 19505527 44.51
TOTAL (A)+(B) 43825280 100.00
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13. Dematerialization of shares

 Your Company’s shares can only be traded in compulsory demat segment in the stock exchanges. As on March 31, 2011, 
88.89% of the Company’s shares are held in electronic form. The break up of shares in physical and demat form as on 
March 31, 2011 is as follows:

Category No. of shares % of total shares
Shares in Demat form 3,89,55,298 88.89
Shares in Physical form 48,69,982 11.11
Total 4,38,25,280 100.00

14. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs / warrants/convertible instruments and their conversion date and likely impact on 
equity

 The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants as on March 31, 2011. During the year, the Company has issued 
stock options under Glodyne Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2006 & Glodyne Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2010. 

 During the year the Company in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2009 had issued 6,00,000 warrants to  
M/s. Glodyne Global Pvt. Limited, a promoter group Company. Each warrant carries the right for allotment of one equity 
share of ` 10/- each. Post sub-division of the shares of the Company, the issued warrants have been proportionately 
increased by issuing an additional 4,00,000 warrants, the issue price of the warrants has been repriced accordingly. The 
details of the stock options are given in the annexure to the Directors’ report. The impact of the conversion of the stock 
options and Warrants has been taken into consideration while calculating the Earnings per Share (EPS) and has been 
disclosed in the accounts of the Company.

15.	 Office	locations
 Since the Company is in the service industry, it does not have any plant locations. The office locations are given below.
 Registered	Office: 801, Balarama Building, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
     Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400 051. 
 Corporate	Office: C/03, Ground Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
     Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051.
 Subsidiary(ies): Smaarftech Technologies Pvt. Limited
     Plot  538, A G Palace, East Boring Canal Road, Patna - 800 001.
     DecisionOne Corporation  
     426 West Lancaster AvenueDevon, Pennsylvania 19333.
16.	 Compliance	officer
 Mr. Amit Jaste is the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of the Company.
17. Address for correspondence
 All correspondences by Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar & Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) M/s. Bigshare 

Services Pvt. Ltd. or the Registered Office of the Company at the addresses mentioned below. 

Report on Corporate Governance



Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2010 - 201142

 In case any shareholder is not satisfied with the response or do not get any response within reasonable period from the 
R&T Agent, they may approach the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the Registered Office / Corporate 
Office of the Company.

	 R&T	Agent	 	 Registered	Office:	 Corporate	Office:	
 Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. 801, Balarama Bldg., C/03, Ground Floor, Fortune 2000,
 E-2, Ansa Industrial Estate Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra Kurla Complex,
 Saki Vihar Road, Sakinaka Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051 Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051
 Andheri (East),Mumbai - 400 072

Declaration of Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel

I, Annand Sarnaaik, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, hereby declare that pursuant to Clause 49 I (D) of the 
Listing Agreement, the Board members and Senior Management personnel have given affirmation about their compliance with 
their respective Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2011.

     For Glodyne Technoserve Limited

     Sd/-
Place : Mumbai  Annand Sarnaaik
Date : August 5, 2011 Chairman & Managing Director 

Auditor’s	Certificate	of	compliance	with	the	Corporate	Governance	requirements	 
under Clause 49 of Listing Agreement

To,

The Members of Glodyne Technoserve Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Glodyne Technoserve Limited (“the 
Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2011, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai. The compliance with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company during the year for ensuring the compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance referred to above. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, we hereby 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing 
Agreements for the year ended March 31, 2011.

We state that our report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner

Date: August 05, 2011.  
Membership No: 033697

Information/Disclosure regarding “Group’’ within the meaning of Monopolies & Restrictive Trade Practices read with 
Regulation 3(1)(e)(i) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 1997 are disclosed 
below:

Mr. Annand Sarnaaik, Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik, M/s. Glodyne Ventures & Holding Pvt. Limited, M/s. Glodyne Global Pvt. 
Limited, M/s. Sixdyne Wealthserve Private Limited, Glodyne Power Limited, Globetor Gaming Projects Private Limited, 
Paradyne Infoservices Private Limited, Glodyne Promedia Limited.

Report on Corporate Governance



43Glodyne Technoserve Limited Annual Report 2010 - 2011

Management Discussion and Analysis
Industry overview and Glodyne Businesses

Today, Glodyne’ businesses are diverse in terms of the geographies and the customer set served by the company. However, 
some common themes run through the businesses which are - long term contracts, predictable revenue streams, good 
profitability and an opportunity to expand presence within the existing customer set.

Over the past several years, the company’s vision of becoming globally one of the largest technology infrastructure managed 
service (IMS) provider is rapidly taking shape. Our clients are increasingly providing us with not just technology management 
but also business process ownership so they can focus on their core business while we create technology driven infrastructure 
platforms for them. This has increasingly allowed us to scale up the value chain, drive higher margins and fuel growth in the 
organization.

Glodyne India business was driven by our presence in sectors that are rapidly expanding spends namely - banking (financial 
inclusion), e-governance and education. Each of these sectors witnessed sharp increases in spending by the customers. 
Our strongly developing legacy and the body of work we have built over the past several years has positioned us well to take 
advantage of the expansion in the marketplace.

Here is a synopsis of each of the businesses and an analysis of the market context under which we operate.

Banking - Financial Inclusion

Market Environment: Financial inclusion is the delivery of financial services at affordable costs to sections of disadvantaged 
and low income segments of society. It is argued that as banking services are in the nature of public good, it is essential that 
availability of banking and payment services to the entire population without discrimination is the prime objective of public 
policy. Financial inclusion is now a common objective for many central banks among the developing nations.

The Reserve Bank of India(RBI) set up a commission (Khan Commission) in 2004 to look into financial inclusion and the 
recommendations of the commission were incorporated into the mid-term review of the policy (In the report RBI exhorted the 
banks with a view of achieving greater financial inclusion to make available a basic “no-frills” banking account.)

RBI wants to connect every Indian to the country’s banking system. Its vision for 2020 is to open nearly 600 million new 
customers’ accounts and service them through a variety of channels by leveraging IT. However, illiteracy and the low income 
savings and lack of bank branches in rural areas continue to be a road block to financial inclusion in many states. Consider the 
following statistics per RBI’s statements in public record:

1. 60% of the country’s population does not have bank accounts 

2. 90% of the country’s population does not get loans

3. 99.4% do not have any kind of non-life insurance cover while 90% do not have any life insurance cover

RBI is concerned about these issues because lack of financial inclusion results in lost growth opportunities, inadequate 
utilization of resources, exclusion of people from mainstream society and loss of control on cash arising from government 
programs, thereby losing an important lever on corruption in the system

Glodyne View: We believe at Glodyne that the financial inclusion space is currently undergoing significant changes- and is in a 
transient stage. Several models are currently being experimented upon with varying degrees of success. In our view, the true 
test of the model will be based on:

1. How much value it adds to the beneficiaries of financial inclusion

2. How much value it adds to the banking system 

3. How economically efficiently is the model executed

Glodyne’ financial inclusion service for our banking partners is designed to address the precise needs articulated by the 
RBI and the banks. The program extends beyond just opening “no frills” accounts for individuals and facilitates business 
transactions to meet the broader objectives of financial inclusion as outlined by the governing bodies

How the program achieves this is by making use of software and technology, smart linking of the financial inclusion program 
with other government run programs and creating innovative performance management programs to align the people with the 
broader business and social objectives 

Our services have been very well received by the banking institutions and are being embraced in different parts of the country.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
E Governance

Market Environment: The e-governance sector in India is experiencing an expansion driven in part by transparency, 
accountability and higher service levels expectations from the government by the citizens. The Indian government recognizes 
that technology holds the key to driving these standards and has rolled out ambitious programs across the country involving 
significant IT outlays.

The national e-Governance plan created by the Government of India in 2006 outlines 27 mission mode programs driven by 
central and state governments, with some programs involving joint execution by the central and state governments. While we 
are excited about the impact and the possibilities these generate for the country, we tend to take a cautiously optimistic view 
and believe that the business opportunity created by these programs should be evaluated on each program’s own merit. Some 
programs in particular carry a high business value owing to several criteria including:

- Synergistic and accountable partnership under Public Private Partnership model

- Potential for expansion in adjacent services (Government to citizen, business to citizen)

- Enabling reach to millions of citizens 

And these lead to predictable revenue streams.

Glodyne View: Our analysis determined that banking, public distribution and employment exchanges related projects offered 
great windows of opportunities to maximize business in the immediate term and were the dominant areas of focus for the 
company during the financial year. The strategic focus arising out of this analysis paid off handsome returns not just for the 
year but also have recurring revenue streams for the subsequent years.

Our work in ‘e-shakti’ project has been hailed as a model e-governance project by several publications. This project has 
involved automating the Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme (MNREGS) process in the state 
of Bihar using advanced technologies for one of the deprived sections of the society in the country. To execute this project, 
Glodyne implemented a solution involving highly complex set of technologies and processes. This has resulted in a large 
number of MNREGS projects across various villages getting managed and tracked using a highly sophisticated system of 
biometric authentication, smart cards, hand-held devices and automated payments to the beneficiaries using linkages with 
financial inclusion. 

Our learning from the Bihar MNREGS experience has been on several fronts - not only did we mature our processes to 
deliver on an advanced stack of technologies, but also further refined our deep know-how on guiding complex government 
machinery to implement large scale changes such projects bring about . This has positioned us very well amongst other state 
governments and has enabled immense mind share.

Education

Market Environment: Education is a big market in India. Consider the following statistics:

• India has the 3rd largest education system globally and has a network of more than 1 million schools and 18000 higher 
education institutions.

• This sector is favored by encouraging Indian demographics, with 673mn (60%) of the population below 30 years of age 
(median age: 25 years). This showcases that more than half of the country’s population falls in the target market for 
education and related services.

• The Indian education sector is estimated to be USD 28bn in size, and is expected to be at USD 46bn over a period of 5-6 
years.

• India has an estimated student base of 232 million & 15.5 million in schools and colleges.

• The governments, both at central and state levels, already spend approximately $30 billion annually on the sector which 
represents ~3.7% of India’s GDP.

• The importance of private participation is underlined by the fact that even though only 7.5% of total schools are private, 
they provide education to close to 30% of India’s total students enrolled.

• In the higher education space, 74% of India’s ~21,000 higher education providers are private, making it the largest private 
higher education market globally (in terms of number of providers).

• During the eleventh five year plan, the government envisages an outlay of ` 2,700 billion towards the education sector, a 
four-fold increase over the 10th five year plan allocation of ` 540 billion.

• A major thrust area of government intervention is likely to be via the Public Private Partnership (PPP) route, thus opening 
up further opportunities for such companies.
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Glodyne View:

The vibrancy in the Indian education market brings up many interesting opportunities both in the private and public sectors. 
Our current offering – a public cloud based Glodyne education managed service allows us to gain a strong foothold in both 
the retail i.e. schools and colleges and Enterprise i.e. university spaces. This offering extends a robust technology platform 
to automate the school’s core functions and is offered as a service on a per student per month basis. Our dual strategy in the 
education space has been to 

a) continue to rapidly expand our presence in new and diverse sets of schools and colleges 

b) deepening of our revenue base within existing customer sets by offering additional services and conveniences. 

This dual strategy has begun to bear fruits with addition of several new clients this year and expansion of service portfolio within 
the existing client base. We expect this trend to accelerate in the coming years

In our view, the education market has significant untapped potential. The market is growing, has low risk profile and has 
a growing appetite for technology. The market is also nuanced and needs to be well understood in terms of the customer 
purchase behavior and service expectations. The company with the right product, right service model and the right price points 
will generate tremendous value for this segment and quickly capture market share. Glodyne was able to generate such value 
and has established itself as the company of choice amongst a large and growing set of customers.

Infrastructure Managed Services

Market Environment:

Several studies have indicated the large potential and footprint of infrastructure managed services. Per Gartner, the current 
global market size of IMS is estimated to be $510 billion and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4 percent over the next four 
years. Out of this, 40 percent of the market is outsourced. On the path to recovery, many medium and large companies 
are increasing their outsourcing projects to reduce the cost and to focus on their core areas, which make the infrastructure 
management services industry to get a growth bump. The Indian domestic market too is slated to grow to a market size of $1.4 
billion growing at a CAGR of 44 percent, (according to Zinnov study on infrastructure management services.)- 43 percent of 
which comes from the Banking Financial Services Insurance (BFSI) market. 

According to a NASSCOM report, up to 75 percent of all infrastructure management roles could be outsourced globally, which 
would create a $26 billion to $28 billion revenue potential by 2013. The Indian companies could capture approximately 50 
percent of this revenue.

Glodyne View: With the acquisition of DecisionOne, Glodyne has gained a strong global footprint in Infrastructure Managed 
Services. The business combination provides Glodyne with several opportunities:

1. Access to the North America technology services market

2. Ability to expand services portfolio in this market

3. Access to service delivery platforms and know-how

4. Ability to leverage these capabilities on a global basis

5. Ability to manage costs utilizing offshore platforms

This year, Glodyne initiated efforts to take advantage of these opportunities by coordinating a global approach to sales, 
marketing and delivery across the two organizations. Our delivery platforms span the three principle delivery channels for 
infrastructure managed services: onsite, advanced exchange and depot repair, and remote services.

The infrastructure managed services market is experiencing several interesting dynamics. At the top, North American Fortune 
100 customers are supported by large technology organizations such as DecisionOne and its partners. Glodyne, with the 
acquisition of DecisionOne, gains immediate access to these customers and channels. While consolidation and in-sourcing 
continue among certain segments of our client base, notably among technology providers, managed service delivery channels 
continue to grow. This market segment, coupled with Glodyne DecisionOne’s focus on refining and expanding its delivery 
model, will yield substantial market share and profitability, particularly as the delivery platforms become global and more 
efficient. 

Glodyne has reorganized the IMS business to address the rapidly evolving set of market opportunities. We have created 
organizational focus around specific segments: traditional — working with large technology providers for service repair; 
managed services — working with clients directly and indirectly to provide a broad spectrum of IT managed services; and, 
emerging businesses — to address new and upcoming areas of opportunity. 

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS ANAYSIS

During the financial year ending March 2011, the Company revenues grew by 133 % to ` 1,750 Cr and profit after tax by 74 
% to 174.12 Cr. Over the last 5 years we have grown our revenues at the CAGR of 82%.  Technology IMS which forms the 
majority of the revenues has contributed 95% of total revenues

Glodyne is primarily in the business of technology IMS, focused on optimizing the operational expense of our clients, a core 
expense they can’t do away with unlike other capex intensive initiatives which could go slow in case of a slowdown.

 Geographical Presence

 In 2010-2011, the company has presence in India, Canada and United States of America. The company is headquartered 
in Mumbai, India with sales and support presence across India and US. The North America operations are headquartered 
at Philadelphia which ensures support and sales across N. America.

 Sector presence

 The company provides services across ten sectors Government/PSU, IT/ITES, BFSI, Manufacturing, Retail, Media, 
Telecom, Education, Travel and Healthcare in India and North America. 

 Mergers and acquisition: 

 In the year 2010 - 2011, the company completed the acquisition of DecisionOne Corporation and has completed the 
consolidation and integration of the company. DecisionOne Corporation is one of the largest independent technology 
IMS company in North America. It has a 20+ client relationships with Fortune 100 clients and has presence across the 
continent.

 The acquisition of DecisionOne has broadened Glodyne’ portfolio of IMS services and provides an opportunity to serve 
the North American clients with efficient remote and onsite IMS services. The acquisition complements Glodyne’ IMS 
capabilities with a strong managed services model and would create a strong value proposition for the clients.

 Through the acquisition the company has been able to gain geographical expansion, marquee client relationships and 
addition of talent/enhancement of the senior management.

 Awards and Recognition

 The company was awarded as the “Best Under a Billion” Company by Forbes Asia in the year. The company also received 
the ‘Maharashtra IT Award’ 2010 for the outstanding work it has done in the state. During the year the company was 
declared winner in the Deloitte Technology Fast 50 India and Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific Programs. The company 
was also the winner in the India Inc 500 awards for top performing companies in the Country and was ranked 8th. The 
company was ranked 4th by Business Standard in the list of Top 1000 Companies in India in the year.

 Geographic Mix

 For the year, about 58% of the Glodyne’ revenues were from the domestic(India) market. The balance 42% of revenues 
comes from the North America where the company has presence through its subsidiaries. 

Opportunities and risks

Opportunities

1. Our India businesses stand at an important juncture where we have gained adequate foothold on some of the most crucial 
sectors of the Indian economy. Owing to the market growth, these sectors: education, e-governance are termed as sunrise 
sectors of the economy. Our success depends on our ability to expand our scale of operations to execute on our customer 
contracts and promises

2. Our US business has significant growth potential both from a revenue and profitability standpoint. The long standing 
presence of the DecisionOne entity provides us with strong credibility and access to important customer base in North 
American markets. Our success depends on our ability to leverage our scale in North American to global markets, expand 
our service offerings and continuously invest in optimizing our delivery platform

3. Overall, the global Glodyne Corporation is in a strong position to capitalize on the opportunities created by market trends 
and acquisitions. To prepare for such opportunities, the corporation will invest significantly in making its processes and 
capabilities robust in each of the focus areas. Examples of such investments include:
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 a. Refinement of our global planning and performance management processes and systems that will provide detailed 
view on financial and operational metrics in the organization

 b. Enhancement of our global incentive and long term pay management system to extend the performance pay platform 
to the global organization for better executive and organizational alignment to corporate objectives

 c. Adoption of the Whizible project management platform to manage all large projects undertaken by the corporation 
globally and provide the same world class project management services internally as we do externally to our clients

 d. Increased R&D investments to ensure our software and IPR platforms provide value to our clients and result in 
significant cost/efficiency benefits

 e. Launch of leadership development and people development initiatives to develop pipeline of leaders in the organization

Risks

In an economically uncertain global environment, several risks can arise. Also, large scale project execution can result in 
operational risks. Glodyne is well aware of these risks and several others that a complex business like ours can face. We have 
taken several steps to address these risks 

Strategic and competitive risks

Significant shifts in industry trends, consolidations and changes in customer preferences can result in strategic risks. Some 
aspects of our business especially the IMS tends to be highly competitive. Changes in the competitive posture including client 
consolidation, service offerings, price points and relationships can result in business risks.

These risks are mitigated by way of customer level analysis, planning and risk adjustments in the forecasting process.

Operational and Execution Risks

Our success in meeting our revenue guidance has a high degree of dependency on our ability to execute against large 
scale customer contracts. Any large scale implementation effort with complex interdependencies can have operational risks 
associated with it.

These risks are very well recognized within the Glodyne environment and a significant amount of effort is expended in business 
and operational planning for each project. Each project has its own financial and operational metrics that are planned, linked 
to performance measures in form of explicit targets and reviewed on a weekly basis. These activities are performed using 
industry strength tools like Whizible which allows us to maintain centralized visibility of the deviations against plans and what 
action items are associated against each. Projects roll up into revenue business units, headed by a seasoned executive. The 
revenue business units are supported by shared services units that carry deep areas of expertise on subjects like IT, Software, 
procurement, vendor management etc.

The Glodyne execution model is published internally and has explicit guidance on the time tested rules of execution including 
building and managing work by making smart use of outsourcing where permissible within the context of client contracts. These 
rules allow the Glodyne management team to gain a higher view of execution risks, develop redundancies and assure quality 
using effective program management and cost optimization techniques.

The company employs a large number of six sigma black belts and process experts to ensure our processes are built and 
managed by strong, capable people

Security Risks

Glodyne teams often work in remote places and handle sensitive data collection and management work. The security 
vulnerabilities in such situations can be physical or information related.

Our IT shared services unit oversees the security aspects of our projects to ensure that the physical access to our premises is 
tightly controlled using the same biometric authentication that we provide as a service to our clients on several of our projects; 
the information security is managed using a series of very stringent guidelines and toolsets that govern the usage of data. To 
address any disasters, a business continuity plan is drawn up and executed by the IT SSU based on the requirements of each 
project.

Macroeconomic/Policy risks

Our business is affected by the global macro economic environment and has a degree of dependency on public policies 
especially in the Indian context. 
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These global risks manifest themselves in the growth expectations of our North American business at a strategic level and, the 
foreign exchange fluctuations that can occur from time to time at a tactical level. Our forecasting and risk mitigation processes 
these uncertainties into account by risk adjusting the forecasts and by hedging against the fluctuations.

The risks arising out of the public policy changes or political re-alignment pertain to the domestic market. While some degree of 
risk is inherent when doing significant volumes of e-governance business, a large portion of the risk is mitigated by appropriate 
selection of the programs. Glodyne participates in relatively few of the government mandated mission mode programs that 
have lesser political risks than others, owing to their maturity and impact on a large portion of the population. 

Foreign Exchange 

The company has 42% of its business coming from the US geography. Huge fluctuations in the currency exchange rate could 
affect the company’s onsite business. 

The company has a defined policy for managing its foreign exchange exposure. The company tracks the foreign exchange 
markets closely and takes appropriate hedging decisions from time to time. With the remote delivery which mainly addresses 
the export market, the company also has a natural hedge to a limited extent.

Outlook 

During the financial year ending March 2011, we grew our revenues by 133% to ` 1750 Crores and profit after tax by 74% to 
` 174.12 Crores. The management is focused to build the company into a leader in the global technology IMS market. With the 
IMS industry opening up huge opportunity for Indian companies, Glodyne is focused on capitalizing on the same by providing 
high quality services to global clients through a robust onsite- remote delivery model. The company would continue to grow 
its client base and client share with special focus on the DecisionOne clients as they have an appetite for IMS off shoring 
and for geographic de-risking. The company has built a strong execution base in the Indian market and it envisions huge 
market creating opportunities in India in the government, banking and education sectors. The education managed services, 
e-governance managed services, financial inclusion services, and onsite- remote IMS services will be key growth driver for 
the company in the future. Keeping in view the potentials of the projects in hand, credentials in the domestic market and the 
company’s expertise in the focused area, the outlook remains to be positive.

Internal Controls and its Adequacy

The Company had identified the key risks and control process to mitigate the same. The company has been partnering with 
various clients for implementing large projects in the country. The company has completed the acquisition of DecisionOne 
Corporation in the year.  A dedicated integration program with timelines has been defined with the help of one of the big 4 to 
ensure the objectives are met in timely manner. To ensure support the growth and expanded services, the internal organization 
re-alignment program has been initiated. In addition, a strong leadership alignment program which also includes identification 
and grooming of future Glodyne leaders to support our growth was also conducted.

The Company is continuously upgrading its internal control systems by measuring state of controls at various locations. 
Controls in the management system have been strengthened with help of review conducted by the formation of corporate audit 
team. The team ensures regular reviewing of financial and risk management policies, significant audit findings, the adequacy 
of internal controls and compliance with the accounting standards.

To celebrate the ‘Glodyne Spirit’, Glofest which is celebrated every year where we honour the performance, felicitate the 
achievements and share the celebration with the entire Glodyne family was held in Jan 2011. The awards presented on the 
event night included, Superstar, Rising Star, Persistent, Tenacious, and Best Team awards. The celebration invitation was 
also extended to Glodyne partners and alumni members. The annual Glodyne Cricket league (GCL) a pan India affair was 
conducted with great success.

The Company also started a key employee support program to facilitate them with work-life balance. There are counselors 
who support the ones who need any kind of support through online, over telephone or one-one medium. For the female team 
members there were special scheme launched like leadership development, support group for expecting mothers, generating 
health awareness, etc. Also, Glodyne Care Foundation launched its flagship program ‘Nanhe Kadam’, which is a unique 
employee engagement program in the area of children’s education and health.

Glodyne places a huge emphasis on fostering a culture of teamwork and intends to allow people within the Company to realize 
human potential. The company has built a unique work environment that brings together talent from multiple backgrounds and 
skills sets to work together and feel a sense of belonging to the team. The success of this can be judged from the low level of 
attrition that the company has been able to maintain and the stability in its senior and middle management teams.
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Consolidated Auditors’ Report

1. We have examined the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED (“the Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Glodyne Group”) as at 31st March, 2011 and also the consolidated 
Profit and Loss Account and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date.

2. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an identified financial 
reporting framework and are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have also audited the financial statements of subsidiaries viz. Glodyne Peoplepower Limited , Smaarftech Technologies 
Private Limited, Compulink USA Inc, Compulink Europe Ltd, Glodyne Technoserve Inc, Glodyne Technoserve Singapore 
Pte. Ltd. whose financial statements have been considered in the consolidated financial statements.  

4. We did not audit the financial statements of Compulink Software Pte Ltd. These financial statements were audited by 
another auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in 
respect of the said Subsidiary is based solely on the report of another auditor. The details of assets, revenues and cash 
flows in respect of the said subsidiary is as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary Total Assets Total Revenue Net Cash Inflows/ (Outflows)
1 Compulink Software Pte Ltd  3.91 NIL (0.52)

5. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s Management in accordance 
with the requirements of the Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, as notified under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

6. Based on our audit and on consideration of report of another auditor on separate financial statements and the other 
financial information on the component, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

 (a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Glodyne Group as at 31st March, 2011;

 (b) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the consolidated results of operations of the Glodyne 
Group for the year ended on that date; and

 (c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Glodyne Group for the year ended 
on that date.

For N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 107072W

Nilesh M Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.:033697

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

  

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE 
LIMITED ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE 
LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Schedule  As at 31.03.2011  As at 31.03.2010
SOURCES OF FUNDS 
Shareholders’ Funds 
Share Capital  A  2,629.52  2,251.33 
Share Suspense Account [Refer Note. B1 (f) of 
Schedule “L”]

 -  277.96 

Share Application Monies (Pending Allotment)  4.08  - 
Convertible Warrants (Refer Note. B3 of 
Schedule “L”)

 1,080.00  - 

Reserves and Surplus  B  52,254.97  24,592.54 
Securities Premium Suspense Account  -  2,401.33 
(Refer Note B2 of Schedule ‘L’) 

 55,968.57  29,523.16 
Loan Funds  C 
Secured Loans  60,187.76   9,712.48  
Unsecured Loans - 60,187.76 56.80 9,769.28 
Deferred Tax Liability  1,687.78  1,116.97 
Minority Interest  316.61  208.90 

TOTAL  118,160.72  40,618.31 
APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
Fixed Assets  D 
Gross Block  45,196.64  17,455.91 
Less:- Depreciation  (19,379.51)  (4,925.36) 
Net Block  25,817.13  12,530.55 
Capital Work in progress  403.88  2,355.72 
Intangible Assets under Capitalisation  145.84  809.79 

 26,366.85  15,696.06 
Goodwill (on Consolidation)  47,526.44  3,367.34 
Investments  E  3.63  3.63 
Current Assets, Loans & Advances  F 
Inventories  4,030.89  446.81 
Work in Progress  1,805.11  841.20 
Unbilled Revenue  77.71  - 
Sundry Debtors  37,557.69  16,509.00 
Cash and Bank Balances  5,163.73  4,191.92 
Loans and Advances  25,450.58  7,599.28 

74,085.71  29,588.21  
Current Liabilities and Provisions  G 
Current Liabilities  24,618.55  4,543.96 
Provisions  5,203.36  3,492.97 

29,821.91   8,036.93  
Net Current Assets  44,263.80  21,551.28 

TOTAL  118,160.72  40,618.31 
Significant Accounting policies and Notes to 
Consolidated Accounts

 L

As per our report of even date 
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Schedule  Year ended 31.03.2011  Year ended 31.03.2010 
INCOME 
Revenue from Operations  H  175,052.27  74,926.87 
Other Income (Net)  I  93.52  (632.60)

TOTAL  175,145.79  74,294.27 
EXPENDITURE 
Operating & other expenses  J  143,427.07  57,819.84 
Finance Charges  K  3,248.54  1,388.69 
Depreciation / Amortisation  D  5,174.41  2,089.00 

TOTAL  151,850.02  61,297.53 
Profit before Tax  23,295.77  12,996.74 
Add: Adjustment on account of Alignment in 
Accounting Policy 

 -  325.91 

Less: Provision for Taxation 
Current Taxes [(net of ` NIL (` 18.89 Lakhs) 
towards excess provision of 

 (5,205.00)  (2,570.72)

earlier years] 
Fringe Benfit Tax  (0.02)  (30.60)
[being short provision for earlier years] 
Wealth Tax  (0.70)  (0.22)
Deferred Taxes  (570.80)  (685.17)
Net Profit after Tax Before minority interest  17,519.25  10,035.94 
Less :Minority Interest  (107.70)  (35.89)
Net Profit for the Year Avaialable for 
Appropriation 

 17,411.55  10,000.05 

Appropriation: 
Less: Transfer to General Reserve  (1,441.62)  (1,917.19)
Less: Proposed Dividend  (1,845.80)  (1,103.70)
Less: Tax on Proposed Dividend  (299.44)  (183.31)
Profit after Appropriation  13,824.69  6,795.85 
Add : Balance brought forward  18,930.69  13,015.67 
Less : Adjustment on Amalgamation  -  (804.10)
Add : Transfer from Debenture Redemption 
Reserve 

 -  42.00 

Less : Utilised for Issue of bonus Shares  -  (118.73)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet  32,755.38  18,930.69 
Significant Accounting policies and 
Notes to Consolidated Accounts  L 
Earning per Share - Basic  40.32  24.56 
                              - Diluted  36.76  23.48 
[refer Note B-16 of Schedule ‘L’] 

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2011 

As per our report of even date 
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2011

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended 31.03.2011  Year ended 31.03.2010 

Net Profit before Taxation and extraordinary items  23,295.77  12,996.74 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Adjustment for :

Depreciation /Amortisation  5,174.41  2,089.00 

Preliminary Expenses Written Off  -  0.12 

Interest and other Finance Charges  3,248.54  1,388.68 

Interest received  (245.34)  (405.48)

Rent received  (18.64)  (53.93)

Dividend received  (0.56)  (0.56)

Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset  (1.41)  (0.49)

Profit on Disposal of Subsidiary (5.23)

Bad Debts Written - off and Provision for Doublful Debts  524.66  149.83 

Impairment on Fixed Assets  -  0.30 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss / (Gain) [unrealised]  102.70  83.31 

Sundry Balances written back (net)  (2.08)  8,777.05  (93.05)  3,157.73

Operating Profit before working capital changes  32,072.82  16,154.48 

Adjustment for :

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories & Work in progress  (4,547.99)  (715.75)

Decrease / (Increase) in Unbilled revenue  (77.71)

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade & Other Receivables  (39,486.98)  (5,225.69)

(Decrease) / Increase in Trade & Other Payables  20,141.61  (23,971.07)  (8.12)  (5,949.56)

Cash generated from operations  8,101.75  10,204.92 

Taxes paid (including Fringe Benefit Tax)  (4,600.81)  (2,245.75)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  3,500.94  7,959.17 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Interest received  245.34  405.48 

(Increase) / Decrease in Investments  -  - 

Dividend received  0.56  0.56 

Rent Received  18.64  53.93 

(Increase) / Decrease in fixed deposits  (15.73)  (436.62)

(under lien with scheduled banks)

Expenses on Amalgamation  (126.34)  (22.97)

Increase in Goodwill on Consolidation  (44,159.09)  - 

Proceeds from Disposal of Subsidiary  0.004  - 

Increase in fixed assets & Capital Work-in Progress  (16,880.24)  (2,389.00)

(Increase) / Decrease in Intangible Assets Pending 
Capitalisation

 663.95  (809.78)

Sale Proceeds of Fixed assets  10.92  0.71 

Net Cash from Investment Activities  (60,241.99)  (3,197.69)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2011

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended 31.03.2011  Year ended 31.03.2010 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares (including 
Securities Premium)

 10,438.61  278.13 

Increase in Share Application monies  4.08 

Proceeds from Issue of Convertible Warrants  1,080.00 

Increase in Capital Reserve  108.53 

Proceeds / (Repayment) of Secured loans (net)  50,475.29  486.82 

Proceeds / (Repayment) of Unsecured loans  (56.79)  (526.86)

Interest and other Finance Charges  (3,248.55)  (1,388.69)

Dividend paid (including Dividend Tax)  (1,104.02)  (549.01)

Net Cash from from Financing Activities  57,697.15  (1,699.61)

Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalent  956.09  3,061.87 

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  3,590.15  137.08 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year  4,546.24  3,198.95 

Addition on Account of Amalgamation  -  391.20 

Total  4,546.24  3,590.15 

Fixed Deposits held by Scheduled banks under lien  617.49  601.76 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year (as per 
Schedule F)

 5,163.73  4,191.92 

As per our report of even date 
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE ‘A ‘ SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED:
9,00,00,000 (3,20,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) each 5,400.00 3,200.00 

85,00,000 (50,00,000) Preference Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) each 510.00 500.00 
(Refer Note B-1 of Schedule ‘L’) 5,910.00 3,700.00 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP:
4,38,25,280 (2,25,13,272) Equity Shares of (` 6/-) (` 10/-) each 
fully paid up (Refer note B-1 of Schedule ‘L’) Of the above:

2,629.52 2,251.33 

2,43,23,910 (1,45,94,346) Equity Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) each 
were allotted as Bonus Shares by way of capitalisation of General 
Reserve, balance in Profit and Loss Account and Securities 
Premium Account

SCHEDULE ‘B’ - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(A) Securities Premium

Opening Balance 2,054.38 1,001.53
Additions on Issue of Shares (Refer note B-2 of Schedule ‘L’) 12,739.71 257.98
Additions on Amalgamation - 1,843.23
Less : Share Issue Expenses Written off - (46.83)
Less : Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares - (1,001.53)
Closing Balance 14,794.09 2,054.38 

(B)  Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 961.11 -
Additions during the year - -
Additions on account of Amalgamation 108.53 984.08
(Refer note B-4 of Schedule ‘L’) - -
Less : Expenditure incurred on Amalgamation (126.34) (22.97)
Closing balance 943.30 961.11 

(C)  Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance - 42.00
Less: Transferred to Profit and Loss Account - (42.00)
Closing balance - - 

(D)  Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
(arising on Consolidation)
Opening Balance (169.93) 61.27
Less:- Adjustment for the Current Financial Year (326.35) (231.20)
Closing Balance (496.28) (169.93)

(E)  General Reserve
Opening Balance 2,816.86 887.90
Add:- Additions on account of Amalgamation - 11.20
Add:- Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 1,441.62 1,917.19
Closing balance 4,258.48 2,816.29 

(F)  Profit and Loss Account 32,755.38 18,930.69
52,254.97 24,592.54 

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

(` in Lakhs)
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE ‘C’ LOAN FUNDS

Secured Loans

(Refer Note B-8 of Schedule ‘L’)

From Banks

Cash Credit & other Working Capital Facilities 10,868.83 8,032.14

Working Capital Demand Loans 2,416.40 491.77

Other Term Loans from Banks 46,513.12 1,101.40

Vehicle loans 389.41 60,187.76 87.17 9,712.48

[Amount Due within one year in resepct of Loans from Banks

` 2245.60 Lakhs (` 391.79 Lakhs)]

Debentures

9% Secured Non-Convertible Redeemable

Debentures issued to Wipro Limited - 42.00

Less: Redeemed during the year - (42.00)

Total Secured Loans 60,187.77 9,712.48 

Unsecured Loan

Short Term Unsecured Loan from a Scheduled Bank - 13.07

Inter Corporate Deposits - - 43.73 56.80

Total 60,187.77 9,769.28 

(` in Lakhs)
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2011
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2011

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE  ‘E’  INVESTMENTS 
Long Term Investments (at Cost) 
 Trade Investments ( Unqouted - Fully Paid Up) 
 2,600 (2,600) Equity Shares of Saraswat Co-operative Bank 
Ltd. 

 0.26  0.26 

 [Face Value per share `10/- each] 
16,845 (16,845) Shares of  Cosmos Co- operative Bank Limited  3.37  3.37 
 [Face Value per share: ` 20/- each] 

 Total     3.63  3.63 

SCHEDULE ‘F’  CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND 
ADVANCES   
CURRENT ASSETS 
1.  INVENTORIES 
 (As taken , valued and certified by the Management) 
 Goods for Resale 
 Computer Equipments, Peripherals and Softwares  4,030.89  446.81 
2.  Work in Progress  1,805.11 
 (As taken , valued and certified by the Management)  -    841.20 
3.  Unbilled Revenue 77.71 -

4.  SUNDRY DEBTORS : ( Unsecured) 
Outstanding for over six months 
- Considered Good  982.16  650.93 
- Considered Doubtful  976.88 1,959.04  122.18 773.11
Others 
- Considered Good  36,575.53  15,858.07 
- Considered Doubtful - 36,575.53  -   15,858.07
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  (976.88)  (122.18)

Total  37,557.69  16,509.00 
5.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

- Cash on Hand  31.46  22.93 
- Cheques In Transit  -    49.80 
Balances with Scheduled Banks 

(i)  In Deposit Accounts  3,575.38  3,031.13 
 [held under lien by Scheduled banks ` 617.49 Lakhs 
 (` 601.76 Lakhs]  -   
(ii)  In Current  585.22  1,052.61 
(iii)  In Dividend Account  2.71  2.41 
(iv)  In Exchange Earners’ Foreign Currency Account  11.60  14.36 

Balances with Non - Scheduled Banks 
In Current Accounts 
Bank of America USA  30.07  17.20 
[Maximum Balance Outstanding during the year 
` 4,405.22  (` 1281.81 Lakhs)] 
HSBC Ltd - Europe 0.57  0.80 
(Maximum Balance Outstanding during the year  
` 2.72 Lakhs (` 1.23 Lakhs) 

(` in Lakhs)
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

Wells Fargo LLC 667.59

HSBC Ltd - Singapore 0.16  

(Maximum Balance Outstanding during the year  
` 2.11 Lakhs (` 11.65 Lakhs ) 

0.68

 In Deposit Accounts - Wellsfargo LLC 258.97 5,163.73 - 4,191.92

6.  LOANS AND ADVANCES  

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 

 (i)  Advances to Suppliers  19,940.59  5,419.79 

 (ii)  Advances to Staff  222.67  249.15 

 (iii)  Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 
to be received

 3,961.24  1,430.26

 (iv)  Deposits  1,240.06  483.81 

 (v)   Other Current Assets  86.02 25,450.58  16.27 7,599.28

 TOTAL  74,085.71  29,588.21 

SCHEDULE ‘G’ CURRENT LIABILITIES 

AND PROVISIONS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES : 

(i)  Sundry Creditors for goods, services and expenses 

 - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 2.73 -

 - Others  11,958.43  2,714.48 

(ii)  Advances from Customers  9,320.50  1,283.59

(iii)  Unclaimed Dividend *  2.71  2.41 

(* There is no amount due & outstanding to be credited to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund) 

(iv)  Deposits  27.46  10.05 

(v)  Other Liabilities  3,306.72  533.43 

(vi)  Income received in advance dues to Subsidiaries  - 24,618.55  -  4,543.96

PROVISIONS : 

For Staff Retirement Benefits  106.23  41.66 

For Proposed Dividend  1,845.18  1,103.70 

For Tax On Dividend  482.75  183.31 

For Income Tax (including Fringe Benefit Tax)  2,769.20 5,203.36  2,164.30  3,492.97

[net of relative payments, if any] 

TOTAL  29,821.91  8,036.92 

SCHEDULE ‘H’ REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Revenue from Products and Services 

Technology IMS  164,898.05  63,762.98 

Software Services  10,154.22  11,163.89 

TOTAL  175,052.27  74,926.87 

(` In Lakhs)
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Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE ‘I’ OTHER INCOME 
Interest received - Gross  245.34  405.48  
(Tax deducted at Sources ` 19.42 Lakhs)
(` 10.58 Lakhs) 

-   

Dividend  0.56  0.56 
Rent  18.64  53.93 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain (net)  (182.92)  (1,186.88)
Sundry Balances written back (net)  2.08  93.05 
Profit on Disposal of Subsidiary   5.23  0.49 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  1.41  0.49 
Miscellaneous Income  3.19  0.77 

TOTAL  93.52  (632.60)

SCHEDULE ‘J’ ‘OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES 
Material Cost, Software Development,Contract & Service 
Charges 

 79,472.18   46,151.59 

Staff Costs 
Salaries, allowances, Incentives & Contractual payments  40,826.40  7,881.76 
Contribution to Statutory Funds  2,094.25  60.62
Staff Welfare  3,620.19  56.50 
Staff Training & Recruitment  30.09 46,570.93  29.11  8,027.99
Directors’ Remuneration 
Salaries and allowances  211.20  194.66 
Contribution to Statutory Funds  24.60  2.59 
Sitting Fees  2.67  238.47  1.87 202.14
Communication Costs  1,668.21  123.03 
Advertisement, Publicity and Business Promotion  143.64  40.76 
Legal & Professional Expenses  2,102.94  368.54 
Restructuring expenses 897.70 -
Office Maintenance  108.70  112.58 
Traveling & Conveyance  3,933.75  353.81 
Electricity Charges  75.20  55.67 
Rent  3,901.88  515.76 
Equipment Lease Rentals  1,479.25  1,413.13 
Insurance  339.72  9.79 
Auditors’ Remuneration  32.76  23.50 
Postage & Courier Charges  15.64  14.28 
Printing and Stationery  322.09  19.89 
Rates & Taxes  336.21  64.57 
Repairs & Maintenance 
- Machineries / Equipments  407.35  11.85 
- Building  1.24 -
- Others  493.02  901.61  39.88  51.73 
Asset Management Fees  109.89 

(` In Lakhs)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
Discount  -  0.25 
Donation  0.99  0.10 
Vehicle Expenses  15.86  15.67 

Commision & Brokerage  144.65  76.83 
Impairment on Assets  -  0.30 
Bad Debts Written off  -  27.65 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  524.66  122.18 
Membership & Subscription  12.75  12.70 
Preliminary Expenses Written off  77.39  0.12 
Miscellaneous Expenses  -  15.28 

TOTAL  143,427.07  57,819.84 

SCHEDULE ‘K’ 
FINANCE CHARGES 
Interest on Debentures  -  4.27 
Interest on Fixed Loans  1,860.55  177.91 
Interest to Banks on Working Capital Facilities  742.25  1020.63 
Interest to Others  103.09  73.91 
Bank Charges and Commission  542.65  111.97 

TOTAL  3,248.54  1,388.69 

(` In Lakhs)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Accounts 
Schedule ‘L’: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Accounts

Company Overview:

Glodyne Technoserve Limited (‘the Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively, referred to as the group) is engaged 
in Technology Infrastructure Management Services and Application Software Services including providing Turnkey Solutions 
for Large Scale Technology Projects, Technology Maintenance and Management in India and Overseas. The Company has 
head quarters at Mumbai, India.

A. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basis of Accounting

	 The	 financial	 statements	 have	 been	 prepared	 in	 accordance	 with	 Indian	 Generally	 Accepted	 Accounting	 Principles	
(IGAAP)	under	the	historical	cost	convention	on	the	accrual	basis.	The	IGAAP	comprises	Accounting	Standards	notified	
under Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 by the Central Government of India under Section 211(3C) of 
the Companies Act, 1956, various pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or 
a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Management 
evaluates all recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an ongoing basis.

2. Use of estimates

	 The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	IGAAP	requires	management	to	make	estimates	and	assumptions	
that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on 
the	date	of	financial	statements.	Examples	of	such	estimates	and	assumptions	include	useful	lives	of	fixed	assets	and	
Intangible assets, taxes, provision for doubtful debts, anticipated obligations under employee retirement plans, etc. The 
recognition,	measurement,	classification	or	disclosures	of	an	item	or	information	in	the	financial	statements	have	been	
made relying on these estimates to a greater extent. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Principles of Consolidation

	 The	Consolidated	financial	statements	relate	to	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries,	which	are	more	than	50%	owned	or	
controlled.	The	consolidated	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	on	the	following	basis:

	 a)	 The	financial	statements	of	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	are	combined	on	a	line-by	-line	basis	by	adding	together	
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances 
and	intra-group	transactions	resulting	in	unrealised	profits	or	losses	in	accordance	with	Accounting	Standard	(AS)	-	21	
-”Consolidated Financial Statements”.

 b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average 
rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any 
exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

 c) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of 
shares	in	the	subsidiaries	is	recognised	in	the	financial	statements	as	Goodwill	or	Capital	Reserve	as	the	case	may	
be.

 d) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets 
less	liabilities	as	of	the	date	of	disposal	is	recognised	in	the	consolidated	statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	account	as	the	
profit	or	loss	on	disposal	of	investment	in	subsidiary.

	 e)	 Minority	Interest’s	share	of	net	profit	of	consolidated	subsidiaries	for	the	year	is	identified	and	adjusted	against	the	
income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the company.

	 f)	 Minority	 Interest’s	share	of	net	assets	of	consolidated	subsidiaries	 is	 identified	and	presented	 in	 the	consolidated	
balance sheet separate from liabilities and equity of the company’s shareholders.

	 g)	 As	 far	 as	 possible,	 the	 consolidated	 financial	 statements	 are	 prepared	 using	 uniform	accounting	 policies	 for	 like	
transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s 
separate	financial	statements.

 h) Notes on these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a means of informative disclosure and a 
guide to better understanding of the consolidated position of the group. Recognising this purpose, the company has 
disclosed	only	such	Notes	from	the	individual	financial	statements,	which	fairly	present	the	needed	disclosures.
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	 i)	 The	list	of	subsidiaries	considered	in	these	consolidated	financial	statements	with	percentage	holding	is	summarised	
below:

Name of Subsidiaries Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion Of 
ownership interest

Glodyne Peoplepower Limited India 60%
Glodyne Technoserve Inc. USA 100%
Glodyne Technoserve Singapore Pte. Limited
[Refer	Note:	B(5)(i)]

Singapore 100%

Smaarftech Technologies Pvt.Limited India 99.95%
Compulink USA Inc. USA 100%
Compulink Europe Limited Europe 100%
Compulink Software Pte. Limited Singapore 100%
Glodyne Technoserve (East) Inc. - U.S.A. (Subsidiary of Glodyne 
Technoserve Inc. - U.S.A.)  

USA 100%

Front	 Office	 Technologies	 Inc.	 -	 U.S.A.	 (Subsidiary	 of	 Glodyne	
Technoserve Inc. - U.S.A.)

USA 100%

DecisionOne Corporation (Subsidiary of Glodyne Technoserve Inc. - 
U.S.A.) w.e.f. from 1st July 2010* 

USA 100%

4. Goodwill:

 Goodwill arising on consolidation / acquisition of assets is not amortised. The same is tested for impairment on a periodic 
basis and written off, if found impaired.

5. Revenue Recognition

 Revenues are recorded net off all the applicable taxes.

 The Direct revenue of the group comprises the income from following principal activities:

 i. Technology Infrastructure Management Services – This represents Technology Integration and Management 
Services. Technology Integration activities include technology management services, turnkey solutions for technology 
deployment, resales and Integration of Hardware / System Software/ Database Software / Networking Products 
with or without one another. Revenue from Technology Integration is recognised on delivery to the customer and 
acknowledgement thereof, in accordance with the terms of the individual contracts. Management Services represents 
amount charged for Facility Management Services, Maintenance upkeep of Hardware / System Software/ Database 
Software / Networking Products. Revenue from Management Services is recognised over the life of the contracts. 
Maintenance revenue on expired contracts on which services have continued to be rendered is recognised on renewal 
of contract or on receipt of payment.

 ii. Software Services - This represents charges for development of software for customer and sale of licenses of 
software and other products. Revenue from Software services is recognised when the software is developed and 
installed/ delivered to the customers as per the terms of the contract. Revenue on sale of licenses of software and 
other products is recognised on delivery / installation, as the case may be.

 iii. Revenue from E-Governance Project:	 Revenue	 from	 the	 project	 comprises	 two	 streams	 of	 revenue	 i.e.	 fixed	
guaranteed revenue against setting up of the system which includes installation of hardware, development of 
Software, capacity building, maintenance and operation of the system as the case may be and variable revenue 
against	 rendering	 of	 services	 or	 from	distribution	 of	 Smart	Cards	with	 embedded	 records	 of	 beneficiaries.	 Fixed	
Revenue is recognized after achieving the milestones deliverable on lapse of time, in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of the agreement and variable revenue is based on achievement of milestones as prescribed in the 
agreement with the respective Government(s). During the year, no such revenue has been recognized based on the 
achievement criterion of the agreement.

 Recognition norms for Indirect Revenue:

 i. Interest Income - Interest Income is recognised based on time proportion and on gross basis.

 ii. Dividend Income - Dividend Income is recognised on when the group’s right to receive dividend is established.

 iii. Rent Income - Rent on immovable properties is recognised on accrual basis as per the respective agreements with 
the parties.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Accounts 
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6. Expenditure
 Expenses are accounted on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.

7. Fixed assets, Intangible Assets, Capital Work-in Progress and Depreciation / Amortisation:
	 i.	 All	fixed	assets	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	depreciation.	For	this	purpose	cost	includes	purchase	price	and	

all other attributable costs of bringing the assets to working condition for intended use.

 ii. Intangible assets are stated at the consideration paid for purchase/ acquisition less accumulated amortization.

	 iii.	 Capital	Work	in	Progress	and	Intangible	Assets	under	capitalisation	includes	advances	paid	for	acquiring	fixed	assets/	
Intangible Assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the balance sheet date.

 iv. Depreciation on all assets is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under straight-line method, at rates prescribed in 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. Intangible assets including Technical Know how are amortised over their 
respective	individual	estimated	useful	lives	(not	exceeding	five	years)	on	a	straight	line	basis,	commencing	from	the	
date the asset is available for its intended use. Leasehold land is amortised over the life of the lease.

	 v.	 Depreciation	on	fixed	assets	of	the	Foreign	Subsidiary	is	provided	pro-rata	to	the	period	of	use,	under	Straight-line	
method,	based	on	the	Management’s	technical	assessment	of	useful	life	of	these	fixed	assets.

8. Incidental Expenditure on Project pending allocation to Fixed Assets:
 Income earned / expenses incurred prior to the commencement of commercial operations of the project have been 

credited/ debited to “Incidental Expenditure on Project pending allocation to Fixed Assets”. The same are carried forward 
in the Balance Sheet and will be capitalized as a part of the Fixed Assets upon underlying Fixed Assets ready for its 
intended use.

9. Borrowing Costs:
	 Borrowing	Costs	attributable	to	acquisition	of	fixed	assets	are	capitalized	as	a	part	of	the	cost	of	asset	up	to	the	date	the	

asset	is	put	to	use.	Other	borrowing	costs	are	charged	to	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account	in	the	year	in	which	they	are	incurred.	
Borrowing	cost	attributable	to	the	assets	not	yet	capitalized	is	reflected	under	“Incidental	Expenditure	on	Project	pending	
allocation to Fixed Assets”.

10. Investments
	 Trade	Investments	are	the	investments	made	to	enhance	the	Group’s	business	interest.	Investments	are	either	classified	

as Long term or Current based on the Management’s intention at the time of purchase. Investments that are readily 
realizable	and	intended	to	be	held	for	not	more	than	a	year	are	classified	as	Current	Investments.	All	other	Investments	
are	classified	as	Long	Term	Investments.	Long	Term	Investments	are	stated	at	Cost.	A	provision	for	diminution	in	value	is	
made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long term investments. Current Investments, if any, are 
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

11. Inventories
 Inventories include stocks of Computer equipments, peripherals and traded software in respect of Technology Infrastructure 

Management Services of the group and the same is valued at lower of cost (net of provision for obsolescence) or net 
realizable value. Cost is determined on First In First Out (FIFO) basis.

12. Work In Progress
 The work in progress includes costs incurred in relation to the service project for which the services are yet to be performed/ 

billed.

13. Foreign exchange transactions
 Transactions in foreign currencies are generally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the exchange 
rate	ruling	on	that	date.	Exchange	differences	on	foreign	exchange	transactions	other	than	those	relating	to	fixed	assets	
are	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.

14. Preliminary / Share Issue Expenses / Expenses on amalgamation
	 Preliminary	expenses	are	charged	to	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account	in	the	year	in	which	incurred.	Share	issue	expenses	

are adjusted against Securities Premium Account as per Section 78(2) of the Companies Act, 1956. Expenditure on 
amalgamation is adjusted against the capital reserve arising on amalgamation.

15. Accounting for Employee Benefits
	 Staff	Costs	and	Directors’	Remuneration	include	Short	term	employee	benefits	such	as	Salaries,	allowances,	incentives,	

and	short	term	compensated	absences	etc.	It	also	includes	group’s	contributions	towards	Defined	Contribution	plans	and	
provisions	for	Defined	Benefit	plans.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Accounts 
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 (a) Short Term Employee Benefits
	 	 Short	 term	employee	benefits	are	 recognised	 in	 the	period	during	which	 the	services	are	 rendered.	Provision	 for	

unused entitlements in respect of compensated absences is made for on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the 
end	of	each	financial	year.

 (b) Post Employment Benefits
 (i) Provident Fund (PF) & Employees’ State Insurance Scheme (ESIC)- Defined Contribution Plans
  Under the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 all eligible employees of the Company 

are	entitled	to	receive	benefits	which	is	a	Defined	Contribution	Plan.	In	addition,	some	employees	of	the	Company	
are	covered	under	ESIC	Act,	1948,	which	is	also	a	Defined	Contribution	Plan.	Both	these	Plans	are	recognised	and	
administered by the Statutory Authorities. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to these 
plans.	The	Company’s	contributions	to	these	schemes	are	recognised	as	expense	 in	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account	
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The Company has no further obligation under 
these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

 (ii) Gratuity- a Defined Benefit Plan
	 	 The	Company	provides	for	Gratuity	in	accordance	with	the	Payment	of	Gratuity	Act,	1972,	a	Defined	Benefit	Plan.	The	

plan, subject to the provisions of the above Act, provides for lump sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and 
tenure of employment. Gratuity liability is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on Projected 
Unit	Credit	Method	made	at	the	end	of	each	financial	year.	Actuarial	gains	/	losses	are	recognised	immediately	to	the	
Profit	and	Loss	Account.	In	respect	of	Compulink	Systems	Limited	which	merged	with	the	Company	during	the	year,	
Gratuity	benefits	are	administered	by	a	Trust	formed	for	this	purpose	through	the	Group	Gratuity	Scheme	of	the	Life	
Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India. In respect of this fund, the adequacy of the accumulated funds available with the 
LIC	has	been	confirmed	on	the	basis	of	an	actuarial	valuation	made	at	the	year	end	and	the	provision	has	been	made	
for the shortfall, if any.

 (iii) Subsidiaries
	 	 Retirement	benefits	are	provided	to	employees	of	foreign	subsidiary	in	accordance	with	the	local	laws	and	regulations	

prevailing in the Country in which the subsidiary is located.
16. Accounting for Taxes
 Tax expense comprises of Current and Deferred tax. Provision for Current tax is made in accordance with the relevant 

provisions of the Income - tax Act, 1961.
	 Deferred	tax	resulting	from	“timing	differences”	between	book	and	tax	profits	is	accounted	for	using	the	tax	rates	and	laws	

that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised and 
carried forward only if there is a virtual/ reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future.

17. Impairment
 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to check any indication of impairment based 

on internal/external factors. Impairment Loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset is in excess of its 
recoverable	amount.	The	Impairment	Loss	is	recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	and	carrying	
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable value.

18. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
 The group recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires 

outflow	of	resources,	which	can	be	reliably	estimated.	Disclosures	for	a	contingent	liability	is	made,	without	a	provision	in	
books,	when	there	is	an	obligation	that	may,	but	probably	will	not	(in	the	opinion	of	the	management),	require	outflow	of	
resources.	Contingent	Assets	are	neither	recognised	nor	disclosed	in	the	financial	statements.

19. Unbilled Revenue
	 The	same	represents	revenue	accrued	as	on	the	date	of	financial	statements	but	not	billed	to	the	customers	as	per	the	

contractual terms for billing.
20. Earning per Share (EPS)
	 The	earning	considered	in	ascertaining	the	group’s	EPS	comprises	the	net	profit	after	tax.	The	number	of	shares	used	in	

computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year duly adjusted for additional 
shares issued during the year, if any.

 The number of shares used in computing diluted EPS comprises the weighted average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic EPS, and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Accounts 
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 Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. 
The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for stock splits and bonus shares issued, if any.

 The EPS for the previous year is restated after adjustment for issue of Bonus share during the year.
21. Cash and Cash equivalents
 Cash and Cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an 

original maturity of three months or less.
22. Cash Flow Statement
	 Cash	Flows	are	reported	using	the	indirect	method,	whereby	net	profits	before	tax	is	adjusted	for	the	effect	of	transaction	

of	non-cash	nature	and	any	deferrals	or	accruals	of	past	or	future	cash	receipts	or	payments.	The	cash	flows	from	regular	
revenue	generating,	investing	and	financing	activities	are	segregated.

B. Notes to Accounts
1. Increase in Authorised Capital and Sub-Division of Shares:
 a. Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation with Compulink Systems Limited (CSL), the authorised share capital of the 

Company stood increased by ` 1500 Lakhs comprising of 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each. Similarly, the 
authorised share capital stood further increased by ` 100 Lakhs comprising of 10,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- on 
account of scheme of amalgamation with Broadllyne Technologies Limited (BTL).

 b. During the year, the company has effected the sub-division of its Equity and Preference Share capital vide Resolution 
passed in the Annual General Meeting dated 24th December 2010. As a result, nominal value of each Equity and 
Preference Share has been reduced from ` 10/- each to ` 6/- per share without impacting the total amount of nominal 
value of Authorised and paid up equity and preference share capital.

 c. As a result, 4,80,00,000 Equity shares of ̀  10/- got converted into 8,00,00,000 Equity shares of ̀  6/- each aggregating 
to ` 4,800 Lakhs Similarly, 50,00,000 Preference Shares of ` 10/- each got converted into 83,33,333 Preference 
shares of ` 6/- each aggregating to ` 500 Lakhs.

 d. The Authorised share capital was further increased by ` 610 Lakhs comprising of 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 6/- 
each and 1,66,667 Preference Shares of ` 6/- each vide resolution passed in the said Annual General Meeting.

 e. During the year, the Company has allotted 1,33,313 (post sub-division) Equity shares of ` 6/- each under ESOP 
Scheme and 24,22,035 (post sub-division) towards Preferential allotment of shares under Section 81(1A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2009. As a result, paid up equity share capital was increased by 
` 153.32 Lakhs.

 f. Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation (the Scheme) with CSL, the Company has issued 8,80,672 (post sub-
division) Equity Shares of ` 6/- each amounting to ` 52.84 Lakhs and 28.67 Lakhs (post sub-division) Equity shares 
of ` 6/- each amounting to ` 172.02 Lakhs on account of scheme of amalgamation (Scheme) with BTL. As a result, 
the paid up equity share capital of the company was increased by ` 224.87 Lakhs. The same was shown under Share 
Suspense Account during the previous year due to non-allotment of shares.

2. Securities Premium Account:
 During the year, ` 2,401.33 Lakhs has been credited to Securities Premium Account on account of issue of 7,50,415 

Compulsorily convertible Preference Shares at a premium of ̀  320/- each to BTL under the Scheme. The said amount was 
reflected	under	Securities	Premium	Suspense	Account	during	the	previous	year	due	to	non-allotment	of	said	shares.

 Further, ` 10,338.39 Lakhs were credited to securities premium account on account of issue of 25,55,348 shares under 
ESOP scheme and Preferential allotment.

3. Convertible warrants:
 During the year, the Company has issued 6,00,000 Convertible warrants at ` 720/- per warrant on 23rd June 2010. Each 

warrant carry the right to subscribe to One Equity Share of the Company at a premium of ̀  710/- at any time within a period 
of 18 months from the date of allotment of the said warrant. Pursuant to the sub division of the shares of the Company 
from ` 10/- each to ` 6/- each, the number of warrants has accordingly increased to 10,00,000 share warrants of the Face 
Value of ` 6 each/-.

4. Capital Reserve Account:
 i. During the year, ` 55.43 Lakhs were credited to Capital Reserve due to difference in issue price of shares alloted on 

Preferential basis and the same amount remitted by the allotees. Further ` 53.10 Lakhs have been credited to Capital 
Reserve Account on account of the difference in the nominal value of shares arising due to conversion of  750,415 
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to ` 75.04 Lakhs into 3,65,757 Equity shares of 
` 21.95 Lakhs.

 ii. Expenditure on Amalgamation amounting to ` 126.34 Lakhs has been adjusted against the Capital Reserve arising 
on account of such Amalgamations.
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5. Acquisition/Disposal of Subsidiary:
 i. During the year, the Company has disposed off one of its Subsidiaries viz. Glodyne Technoserve Singapore Pte Ltd 

at a consieration of ` 350/-.	As	a	result,	the	Company	has	recognized	profit	of	` 5.23 Lakhs arising on account of 
disposal. (Sale proceeds Less Net Assets of the Subsidiary as on date of the disposal being 31st March 2011). 

 ii. During the year, Glodyne Technoserve Inc. USA acquired Decision One Corporation USA and as a result of such 
acquisition, Decision One Corporation became the wholly owned subsidiary of Glodyne Technoserve Inc. with effect 
from	1st	July	2010.	These	consolidated	financial	statements	include	results	of	9	months	ended	31st	March	2011	of	
the said step down subsidiary.

6. Goodwill on Consolidation as on the Balance Sheet date comprises the following:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31st 
March 2011

Year ended 31st 
March 2010

Glodyne Peoplepower Limited 138.07  138.07
Glodyne Technoserve Inc. 47,388.36* 3,229.27
Total 47,526.43 3,367.34

 * The same include `	44,159.09	Lakhs	arising	out	of	consolidation	of	financial	statements	of	DecisionOne	Corporation	
with Glodyne Technoserve Inc. 

7. Operating Leases:
 (a) Operating Lease – Expenses:
	 	 a.	 The	 Company	 has	 various	 operating	 leases	 for	 office	 facilities,	 equipments	 and	 residential	 premises	 for	

employees, which are renewable on a periodic basis and cancelable at its option. Rental expense for operating 
leases included in the income statements for the year is ` 5,381.13 Lakhs (` 1,928.99 Lakhs) and the same are 
debited to Rental expense and Equipment Lease Rentals.

  b. Under these lease agreements, refundable interest free security deposits have been given by the Company 
(excluding certain Equipment Lease Agreements where no such deposits have been given).

  c. These agreements (Excluding certain Equipment Lease Agreements) provide for;
	 	 	 l Increase in rental during the tenure of lease agreement
	 	 	 l Contain renewal clause
	 	 	 l Contain clause for restriction on sub-leasing
	 	 d.	 Future	minimum	lease	payments	under	non-cancellable	leases:
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
l Not later than one year 921.96 139.09
l Later	than	one	year	but	not	more	than	five	years 3,687.82 NIL
l Later	than	five	years 3,226.84 NIL

  e. No asset has been acquired on Finance Lease.
 (b) Operating Leases – Income
	 	 a)	 The	group	has	various	operating	leases	for	office	premises.	All	such	leases	are	renewable	on	a	periodic	basis	

and cancelable at its option. Rental income for operating leases included in the income statements for the year 
is ` 18.63 Lakhs (` 53.93 Lakhs).

  b) These agreements provide for;
	 	 	 l Increase in rental during the tenure of lease agreement
	 	 	 l Contain renewal clause
	 	 	 l Does not contain clause for restriction on sub-leasing
  c) No asset has been given on Finance Lease
8. Securities in respect of Secured Loans:

 Term loans from Banks / Institutions are secured by mortgage of certain movable properties of the Company, personal 
guarantees of promoters and pledge of share of the company held by Promoters. Cash credit facility is secured by the 
hypothecation of book debts and stocks and movable assets of the Company. Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation 
of relative motor vehicles.
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9. The Deferred tax liability / asset as at 31st March 2011 comprises the following:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March 2011

As at
31st March 2010

Deferred	Tax	Liability	on	account	of:
Depreciation 2,235.95 1,141.19
Deferred	Tax	Asset	on	account	of:
Deferrals / Disallowances (34.77) (24.22)
Business losses (513.40) -
Net Deferred Tax Liability 1687.78 1,116.97

10. Related Party Transactions:

	 As	per	Accounting	Standard	18	on	“Related	Party	Disclosures”,	disclosures	of	transactions	with	related	parties	as	defined	
therein	are	given	below:

	 List	of	related	parties	with	whom	transactions	have	taken	place	and	Relationship:

 a) Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

i. Mr. Annand Sarnaaik - Chairman & Managing Director
ii. Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik - Executive Director
iii. Mr. Shantanu Rooj - Director
iv. Mr. Vishwas Mahajan - Director	&	Chief	Executive	Officer	(Part	of	the	period	in	CSL)

v. Mr. Uday Kothari - Director	&	Chief	Technology	Officer	(Part	of	the	period	in	CSL)

 b) Relatives of KMP

i) Mr. Nikhil Sarnaik - Brother of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik
ii) Dr. Archana Sangamnerkar - Sister of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik
iii) Dr. Nitin Sangamnerkar - Brother-in-law of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik
iv) Mr. N. G. Anil Kumar - Brother of Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
v) Mr. N. Lalith Kumar - Brother of Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
vi) Mrs. Manisha Kothari - Wife of Mr. Uday Kothari
vii) Mrs. Kavita Rooj - Wife of Mr. Shantanu Rooj

 c) Enterprise over which certain KMP exercise significant influence

  i. Growdyne Techzone Services Limited

  ii. Glodyne Global Private Limited

 Transactions with Related parties during the financial year
 (` in Lakhs)

Transactions with Related Parties Key Management 
Personnel

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Enterprise over 
which certain KMP 
exercise significant 

influence
Managerial Remuneration 259.66

(205.34)
N.A
N.A

NIL
(NIL)

Issue of Convertible Warrants NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

1,080
(NIL)

Deposits given NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

50
(NIL)
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Transactions with Related Parties Key Management 
Personnel

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel

Enterprise over 
which certain KMP 
exercise significant 

influence
Amount received on Current Account during 
the Year

NIL
(14.45)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Amount repaid on Current Account during the 
year (Net)

14.45
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
(NIL)

Dividend Paid  600.29
(296.53)

26.07
(13.07)

NIL
(NIL)

Balance Payable NIL
(14.45)

NIL
(NIL)

67.21
(NIL)

Note:-	Transactions	in	the	nature	of	reimbursement	of	expenses	are	not	considered	for	the	purpose	of	above	disclosures.	
Previous	year’s	comparatives	have	been	shown	in	Brackets	below	current	financial	year’s	figures.

11. Sundry Debtors and Loans and Advances are unsecured but considered good except otherwise stated, for which the 
company holds no security other than personal security of respective parties.

12. In the opinion of the Board, Current assets, loans and advances are realizable at a value, which is at least equal to the 
amount at which these are stated in the ordinary course of business and provision made for all known and determined 
liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount stated

13.	 During	the	financial	year	as	the	group	has	not	entered	into	Derivative	transactions	and	hence	the	disclosures	regarding	
the same have not been made.

14.	 During	the	financial	year,	Company	has	recognised	following	amounts	in	the	financial	statements:
 a) Defined Contribution Plan:
	 	 Contributions	to	Defined	Contribution	plan,	recognised	for	the	financial	year	are	as	under:

 (` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund 93.52 66.90
Company’s Contribution to Employees State Insurance Fund 8.41 10.63

 b) Defined Benefit Plan:

	 	 Reconciliation	of	Opening	and	Closing	balances	of	Defined	Benefit	Obligation:
 (` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Defined	Benefit	Obligation	at	the	beginning	of	the	financial	year 20.31 37.12
Current Service Cost 8.07 12.49
Interest Cost 2.26 2.93
Actuarial (gain) / loss 39.96 (0.87)
Benefits	Paid (0.14) (8.59)
Defined	Benefit	Obligation	at	the	year	end 70.48 43.48

 (c) Expense recognised during the financial year under the head “Staff Cost”-Refer Schedule-J)

 (` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Current Service Cost 8.07 12.49
Interest Cost 2.26 2.93
Expected Return on Plan assets - (3.67)
Actuarial (gain) / loss 39.96 0.35
Expense	recognised	in	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account 50.30 12.10
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(d) Actuarial Assumptions:
 (` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
 in respect of Gratuity (non-funded)
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.25% 8.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan assets (per annum) 8.25% 8.00%
Salary Escalation (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

  The	above	information	is	certified	by	Actuary

15. Segment information:

 As per Accounting Standard 17 on “Segment Reporting”, the Company has reported segment information on consolidated 
basis including business conducted through its subsidiaries.

 Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. 
Items which are not attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed as un-allocable assets, liabilities, revenue or 
expenses, as the case may be.

 Based on the similarity of activities, risk and reward structure, organization structure and internal reporting system, 
Company	has	structured	its	operations	into	the	following	business	segments:

 i. Technology Infrastructure Management Services – It represents Technology Integration and Technology Infrastructure 
Management Services. Technology Integration activities include technology management services, turnkey solutions 
for technology deployment, resales and Integration of Hardware / System Software/ Database Software / Networking 
Products with or without one another. Technology Infrastructure Management Services represents amount charged 
for Facility Management Services, Maintenance upkeep of Hardware / System Software/ Database Software / 
Networking Products.

 ii. Software Services- representing charges for development of software for customer and sales of licenses of software 
and others products

(A)  Financial Information about Primary Business Segment is given below:

(` In lakhs)

Sr. 
no.

Particulars Reportable Business Segments Total
Technology 

Infrastructure 
Management Services

Software Services

1 Segment Revenue
- Product & Services 164,898.05 10,154.22 175,052.27

(63,762.98) (11,163.89) (74,926.87)
2 Segment Results 28,575.62 2,929.98 31,505.60

(14,721.42) (3,058.43) (17,779.85)
3 Unallocable Income 93.52

(632.60)
4 Unallocable Expenses 5,054.81

(2,762.17)
5 Operating	Profit 26,544.31

(15,650.28)
6 Finance Charges 3,248.54

(1,388.68)
7 Net	Profit	before	tax 23,295.77

(14,261.60)
8 Provision for Tax

Add - Adjustment on account of 
Alignment in Accounting Policy

- 
(Nil)

- Current Tax 5,205.00
(2,570.73)
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Sr. 
no.

Particulars Reportable Business Segments Total
Technology 

Infrastructure 
Management Services

Software Services

- Wealth Tax 0.70
(0.22)

-	Fringe	Benefit	Tax 0.02
(30.60)

- Deferred Tax 570.81
(685.17)

9 Net Profit after Tax before 17,519.25
Minority Interest (10,974.89)
Minority Interest (107.70)

10 Net Profit after Tax and 17,411.55
Minority Interest

Other Information

Sr. 
no.

Particulars Reportable Business Segments Total
Technology 

Infrastructure 
Management Services

Software Services

11 Segment Assets 72,261.77 3,620.93 75,882.71
(27,644.83) (9,789.96) (37,434.79)

12 Unallocable Assets - - 72,099.92
(11,220.45)

13 Total Assets - - 147,982.63
(48,655.24)

14 Segment Liabilities 14,789.72 601.99 15,391.71
(3,107.14) (687.36) (3,794.50)

15 Unallocable Liabilities - - 132,590.92
(15,337.58)

16 Total Liabilities - - 147,982.63
(19,132.08)

16 Capital Expenditure 3,165.11 591.34 3,756.45
incurred during the year (2,422.54) (782.66) (3,205.20)

17 Depreciation 1,823.34 133.54 1,956.88
(1,022.90) (155.67) (1,178.57)

(B)  Financial Information about Geographical Segment is given below:

Sr.
no.

Particulars India Rest of the World Total

1 Segment Revenue 88,834.23
(59,143.01)

86,218.04
(15,783.86)

175,052.27
(74,926.87)

2 Segment Assets 31,718.95
(33,743.28)

44,163.76
(14,911.96)

75,882.71
(48,655.24)

3 Segment Liabilities 9,218.02
(3,148.74)

6,173.69
(2,112.46)

15,391.71
(5,261.20)

Note:	Amounts	in	Bracket	represent	previous	year’s	figures
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16. Earning per share (EPS)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Net	Profit	as	per	Profit	&	Loss	Account	(A) ` In Lakhs 17,411.55 10,000.05
Add:	Amortisation	 of	 employee	 compensation	 cost	 (as	 per	 intrinsic	
Value Method) recognised in the accounts

` In Lakhs - -

Less:	Amortisation	of	employee	compensation	cost	(as	per	Fair	Value	
Method) not recognised in the accounts

` In Lakhs (416.45) (201.94)

Net	 Profit	 for	 the	 period	 (as	 adjusted)	Attributable	 to	 Equity	 share	
holders (B)

` In Lakhs 16,995.10 9,798.11

Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares Outstanding during the year 
(Before adjusting the dilutive potential equity shares but including 
Shares to be issued under the Scheme) (C)

Nos. 43,185,857 40,715,585*

Number of stock options outstanding as on the balance sheet date. Nos. 2,259,355 649,733*
Number of Equity Shares to be issued against CCPS Nos. - 365,757*
Total Number of Dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during 
the year (D)

Nos. 3,042,277 1,015,490*

Total Weighted Average Number of equity shares for calculation of 
Diluted EPS (E = C + D)

Nos. 46,228,134 41,725,428*

Nominal Value of Equity Shares ` 6 6*
Basic EPS As Reported (A/C) ` 40.32 24.56
Basic EPS As Adjusted (B/C) ` 39.35 24.06
Diluted EPS As Reported (A/E) ` 37.66 23.97
Diluted EPS As Adjusted (B/E) ` 36.76 23.48

 (* Re-stated for Sub-division)
17. Employee Stock Options
(a)	 During	the	financial	year,	the	Company	has	granted	12,40,980	(1,44,982)	Stock	Options	to	its	employees	and	employees	

of its subsidiary companies. In accordance with the Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme Guidelines, 1999 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), the Company has elected to 
use the “Intrinsic Value method” to account for the compensation cost of Stock Options to employees. For the year ended 
31st March 2011, the Company has been advised that there is no accounting impact in the books of account in respect of 
such options. Had the Company adopted “Fair Value Method” for calculating the Compensation cost, the total accounting 
impact for the year would have been ` 416.44 Lakhs (`	201.94	Lakhs)	profits	after	tax	lower	by	` 416.44 Lakhs (` 201.94 
Lakhs) and basic and diluted earnings per share would have been lower by ̀  0.96 (` 0.83) and ̀  0.90 (` 0.81) respectively.

(b) Summary of Stock Options:
	 Scheme	Name:	ESOP	2006

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
Number of 

options
Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
(`)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
Average Exercise 

Price (`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year* 1,292,912 83.18 1,572,977 49.25
Granted during the year* 60,000 348.87 483,273 151.21
Cancelled during the year* 141,223 65.46 271,967 55.80
Exercised during the year* 133,313 35.45 491,377 56.61
Expired during the year* - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year* 1,078,375 105.03 1,292,912 83.18
Exercisable at the end of the year* 412,946 110.18 228,576 39.60
Weighted Average Remaining contractual life  
(in years)

4.08 4.95

Weighted average fair value of options granted 
during the year* (`)

227.59 80.83

 *The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of ` 10 split to face value of ` 6 as on Feb 10,2011 and a bonus of 
1:1	share	as	on	August	20,2009
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 Scheme Name: ESOP 2010

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
Number of 

options
Weighted 

Average 
Exercise Price 

(`)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
(`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year* - - - -
Granted during the year* 1,180,980 341.94 - -
Cancelled during the year* - - - -
Exercised during the year* - - - -
Expired during the year* - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year* 1,180,980 341.94 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year* - - - -
Weighted Average Remaining contractual life (in 
years)

5.79 -

Weighted average fair value of options granted 
during the year* (`)

280.38 -

 *The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of ` 10 split to face value of ` 6 as on Feb 10,2011 and a bonus of 
1:1	share	as	on	August	20,2009

(c) Average share price on the date of exercise of the option Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 31st 
March 2011:

Date of Exercise Average Share Price on the date of Exercise (`)
Adjusted to Sub-division price

16/06/2010 415.89

23/12/2010 438.61

(d) Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 31st March 2011

 The details of Exercise Price for stock options outstanding as on 31st March 2011

Range of Exercise Price Number of Options 
Outstanding

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

ESOP 2006
` 20  to ` 160 1,031,708 4.19 94.00

` 161 to ` 350 46,667 1.62 348.87
ESOP 2010
` 340 to ` 350 1,180,980 5.79 341.94

 The details of Exercise Price for stock options outstanding as on 31st March 2011

Range of Exercise Price Number of Options 
Outstanding

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

ESOP 2006

` 20 to ` 160 1,292,912 4.95 83.18

(e) The fair value of option granted on 20th November 2006, 6th March 2007, 28th March 2007, 27th September 2007, 29th 
January 2008, 30th October 2008, 1st July 2009 and 28th July 2009, 9th June 2010 and 13th January 2011 are ` 12.26, 
11.42, ` 12.84, ` 33.92, ` 55.87, ` 45.50, ` 72.39, ` 85.65, 133.90 & 149.80 and 168.23 per share respectively.
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(f) The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Options Pricing Model and the significant assumptions 
made in this regard are as follows:

Particulars 9th June 2010 13th Jan 2011
Risk free interest rate (Range) 6.25%	-	6.56% 7.74%	-7.95%
Expected life 2–3 years 2–3 years
Expected volatility 64.92%	-	66.72% 56.86%-	65.87%
Expected dividend yield 0.76% 0.76%
Exercise Price (Adjusted to ` 6 Face Value) 348.87 341.94

Stock Price as on the date of grant (`) (Adjusted to ` 6 Face 
Value)

348.87 341.94

	 Note	:	The	Information	given	above	is	based	on	the	post	sub	division	options	position	and	adjusted	to	the	split.

18. Contingent Liabilities and commitments not provided for:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.11 As at 31.03.10
a. Unexpired Letters of Credit 322.10 NIL
b. Guarantees issued by bankers against company’s counter guarantee. 1,070.97 1,844.49
c. Capital Commitments in respect of Capital-work-in-progress (net of advances 

paid)
240.00 227.75

d. Guarantees given by the company in respect of the loans 48,416.80 3,668.45
e. Claims Against the company not acknowledged as debt 84.54 84.54

Total 49,584.41 5,825.23

19. Notes of these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a means of informative disclosure and a 
guide to better understanding of the consolidated position of the companies. Recognising this purpose, the company has 
disclosed only such Notes from the individual Financial Statements, which fairly present the needed disclosure. Practical 
considerations made it desirable to exclude Notes to Financial Statements, which in the opinion of the management 
could	be	better	viewed,	when	referred	from	the	individual	financial	statements	of	the	Company.	Notes	referred	to	in	these	
Financial Statements are references to the Notes to the independent Financial Statements of the Company.

20.	 The	Previous	year’s	figures	have	been	regrouped,	reclassified	and	recast	wherever	required.	Figures	in	bracket	indicate	
previous	year’s	figures.

As per our report of even date

For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN	:	107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	August	5,	2011

Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	August	5,	2011
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Smaarftech 
Technologies 

Private 
Limited

Glodyne 
Peoplepower 

Limited

Glodyne 
Technoserve 

Inc.

Compulink 
USA Inc.

Compulink 
Europe Ltd

Compulink 
Software Pte 

Limited

Issued & Subscribed 
Share Capital

460.00 420.00 11,359.85 247.48 171.05 465.63

Preferred Stock NIL NIL 2400.56 NIL NIL NIL

Reserves 103.48 377.09 4,039.92 (314.79) (203.22) (477.88)

Total Assets 6,888.23 3,360.38 73,315.72 (29.16) 0.06 2.07

Total Liabilities 6,324.75 2,563.29 55,515.39 38.15 32.23 14.33

Turnover 4,338.88 1,510.98 83,680.78 58.94 -   -

Profit	/	Loss	before	
Taxation

194.67 342.55 2,238.01 7.49 (5.11) (58.68)

Provision for taxation 94.25 73.43 -   -   -   -

Profit	/	Loss	after	
Taxation

100.42 269.12 2,238.01 7.49 (5.11) (58.68)

Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Statement relating to Subsidiary Companies as on March 31, 2011
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Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF
GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of GLODYNE TECHNOSERVE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31st March, 
2011 and related Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, 
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 as amended by Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) 
Order, 2004 (together ‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 
of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’), and on the basis the information and explanations given to us and books and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief we give in the Annexure 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to above, we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of the audit;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as appears 
from our examination of the books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement 
with the books of account;

 d) In our opinion the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report 
comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act, to the extent 
applicable;

 e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2011 and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2011 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act; and 

 f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts, 
read together with the notes thereon, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

  i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2011;

  ii) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

  iii) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697
Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report
[Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date to the members of Glodyne Technoserve Limited]

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fixed assets.

 (b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year at regular 
intervals. In our opinion, the periodicity of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. As informed to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 (c) The fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial, and therefore, do not affect the going concern 
assumption.

(ii) (a)  As informed to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the Management. In our opinion, the frequency 
of such verification is reasonable. 

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures adopted by the 
Management for the physical verification of inventories are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the 
company and the nature of its business.

 (c) On the basis of our examination of records of inventory, in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on physical verification of the stocks as compared to the book records.

(iii) (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to seven subsidiaries covered in the register maintained under Section 
301 of the Act. The maximum amount involved during the year was ` 19,083.81 Lakhs and the year end balance 
of these loans was ` 18,858.61 Lakhs.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the rate of interest and other terms 
and conditions for the loans mentioned in para (iii) (a) above, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

 (c) Since the loans mentioned in para (iii) (a) above are without any fixed repayment schedule, the question of 
examining the regularity of repayment of the Principal amount and interest thereon, does not arise.

 (d) For the same reasons given in para (iii) (c) above, the question of examining the overdue amount and commenting 
on the reasonableness of the steps taken by the Company for the recovery of such loans does not arise except for 
advances amounting to ` 46.55 Lakhs for which the provision for doubtful recovery has been made

 (e) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loan, 
secured or unsecured from any party covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Hence 
clause 4(iii) sub clauses (f) and (g) of the said order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control 
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of 
inventory and fixed assets and for sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination of books and 
records of the Company, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across 
nor have been informed of any continuing failure to correct major weakness in the aforesaid internal control system.

(v) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the 
particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 of the Act have been entered in the register 
required to be maintained under that section.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance 
of such contracts or arrangements exceeding the value of Rupees five lakhs during the year, have been made at 
prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits 
from the public during the year.

(vii) The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out its internal audit function. In our opinion, 
internal audit system is commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge, the Central Government has 
not prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for the products/ 
services of the Company. 
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(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books and records examined by us, 
in our opinion, the Company has been generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employee State Insurance, Value Added Tax (VAT), Service Tax, Income 
Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it except certain instances of delays were noticed. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory 
dues which have remained outstanding as at 31st March 2011 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute with the Statutory authorities, except ` 25.28 Lakhs, ` 15.43 Lakhs and ` 20.57 Lakhs 
being disputed Income Tax demands for Assessment Year 2005-06, 2006-07 and 2007-08 respectively. All these 
demands being contested by the Company in appeals pending before the Commissioner (Appeals).

(x) The Company neither has accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2011 nor has it incurred any cash losses during the 
current financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given by management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to any financial institution, bank or debenture 
holders.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans 
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of share, debentures and other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / 
mutual benefit fund /society.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in 
shares, securities, debentures and other Investments.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has given Guarantees to banks in respect of 
loans taken by two of its subsidiaries. In our opinion, the terms and conditions of such guarantees are prima facie not 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has applied the term loans 
for the purpose for which such loans were obtained.

(xvii) Based on the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the 
Company, in our opinion, there are no funds raised on a short term basis which have been used for long term investment.

(xviii) During the year under Audit, the Company has issued Convertible warrants amounting to ` 1,080 Lakhs to one of 
the Companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the price at which the said warrants have been issued is not prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company.

(xix) As the Company has not issued any debentures, question of commenting on the securities created in respect thereof 
does not arise.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year. Accordingly clause 4(xx) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xxi) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have not come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the Management.

For N M Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697
Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2011
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Schedule As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital A 2,629.52 2,251.33
Share Application Monies (Pending Allotment) 4.08 -
Share Suspense Account - 277.96
(Refer Note No.B 1(f)of Schedule “L”)
Convertible Warrants 1,080.00 -
(Refer Note No.B -3 of Schedule “L”)
Reserves & Surplus B 48,678.35 23,685.52
Securities Premium Suspense Account - 52,391.95 2,401.33 28,616.14
(Refer Note B-2 of Schedule ‘L’)
Loan Funds
Secured Loans C 14,625.63 8,356.12
Unsecured Loans - 14,625.63 56.80 8,412.92
Deferred Tax Liability 1,620.37 1,112.24

TOTAL 68,637.95 38,141.30
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets D
Gross Block 17,475.43 12,556.76
Less:- Depreciation (5,937.18) (3,583.23)
Net Block 11,538.25 8,973.53
Capital Work in progress 347.70 64.18
Intangible Asset under Capitalisation 145.84 12,031.79 209.04 9,246.75

Investments E 15,154.85 4,450.60
Current Assets, Loans & Advances F
Inventories 157.37 446.81
Sundry Debtors 18,160.57 15,625.41
Cash and Bank Balances 3,501.73 3,915.33
Loans and Advances 27,235.63 9,799.39

49,055.30 29,786.94
Current Liabilities and Provisions G
Current Liabilities 2,474.30 2,096.03
Provisions 5,129.69 3,246.96

7,603.99 5,342.99
Net Current Assets 41,451.31 24,443.95

TOTAL 68,637.95 38,141.30
Significant Accounting policies and Notes 
to Accounts

L

As per our report of even date
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2011
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Schedule Year ended
31.03.2011

Year ended
31.03.2010

INCOME
Revenue from Operations H 98,207.45 70,730.76
Other Income (Net) I 674.38 (719.46)

Total 98,881.83 70,011.31
EXPENDITURE
Operating & other expenses J 74,453.32 54,624.20
Finance Charges K 2,054.66 1,289.54
Depreciation / Amortisation D 2,348.84 1,642.20

Total 78,856.82 57,555.94

Profit before Tax 20,025.01 12,455.36
Add: Adjustment on account of alignment in Accounting Policy - 325.91
Less: Provision for Taxation
Current Taxes [net of ` NIL (` 18.89 Lakhs towards excess 
provision of earlier years]

(5,100.00) (2,381.11)

Fringe Benefit Tax (being short provsion for earlier years) (0.02) (30.60)
Wealth Tax (0.70) (0.22)
Deferred Taxes (508.13) (686.94)
Net Profit after Tax 14,416.16 9,682.40
Appropriations :
Less :Transfer to General Reserve (1,441.62) (1,917.19)
Less :Proposed Dividend (1,845.80) (1,103.70)
Less :Tax on Proposed Dividend (299.44) (183.31)
Profit after Appropriation 10,829.30 6,478.20
Add : Balance brought forward 17,853.74 11,404.75
Add: Additions on account of Amalgamation - 47.52
Add: Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve - 42.00
Less : Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares - (118.73)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 28,683.04 17,853.74
Significant Accounting policies and Notes to Accounts L
Earning per Share - Basic 33.38 23.78
    - Diluted 30.28 22.72
[refer Note B-20 of Schedule ‘L’]

As per our report of even date 
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2011

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2011 Year ended 31.03.2010 
Net Profit  before Taxation and extraordinary items  20,025.00 12,455.36

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Adjustment for :

Depreciation /amortisation  2,348.84  1,642.20 

Preliminary Expenses written off  -    0.12 

Interest and other Finance Charges  2,054.66  1,289.54 

Interest received  (1,062.69)  (389.83)

Dividend received  (0.56)  (0.56)

Rent Received  (18.22)  (53.93)

Profit on Sale of Fixed assets  (0.03)  (0.49)

Profit on Disposal of Subsidiary  (0.001)

Impairment of Fixed assets  -    0.30 

Impairment of Investments  636.67  -   

Bad debts written of and Provision for Doubtful debts & 
Advances

267.04  149.83 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss / (Gain) [unrealised] 147.19  84.03 

Sundry Balances written back (net)  (2.08)  (89.63)

 4,370.83  2,631.58 

Operating Profit before working capital changes  24,395.83  15,086.94 

Adjustment for :

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  289.44   125.45  

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade & Other Receivables  (1,483.46)  (5,580.01)

(Decrease) / Increase in Trade & Other Payables  439.61  (754.41)  536.98  (4,917.58)

Cash generated from operations  23,641.43  10,169.36 

Taxes paid (including Fringe Benefit Tax)  (4,318.46)  (1,981.94)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  19,322.96  8,187.41 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Interest received  1,062.69  389.83 

Dividend received  0.56  0.56 

Rent received  18.22  53.93 

Increase in Investments in subsidiaries  (11,340.93)  (107.03)

Proceed from Disposal of Subsidiary  0.004

Loans to Subsidiaries  (18,903.11)  (1,297.29)

Expenses on Amalgamation  (126.34)  (22.97)

(Increase) / Decrease in fixed deposits  208.78  (356.00)

(under lien with scheduled banks)

Increase in fixed assets & Capital Work-in Progress  (5,134.25)  (2,970.78)

Sale of Fixed Assets  0.40  0.71 

Net Cash from Investment Activities  (34,213.97)  (4,309.03)
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(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2011 Year ended 31.03.2010 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities :

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares (including Securities 
Premium)

10,438.61  278.13 

Proceeds from Issue of Convertible Warrants  1,080.00  -   

Share Application monies  4.08   

Increase in Capital Reserve 108.52

Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Secured loans (net)  6,270.45  1,279.98 

Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Unsecured loans  (56.79)  (526.86)

Interest and other Finance Charges  (2,054.66)  (1,289.54)

Dividend paid (including Dividend Tax)  (1,104.02) (549.01)

Net Cash from from Financing Activities 14,686.19 (807.31)

Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalent  (204.82)  3,071.08 

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  3,529.89  73.13 

Add:- Addition on Account of Amalgamation  -    385.68 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year  3,325.07  3,529.89 

Fixed Deposits held by Scheduled banks under lien  176.66 385.44 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of year (as per 
Schedule F)

 3,501.73   3,915.33

As per our report of even date 
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN : 107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Place : Mumbai
Date  : August 5, 2011

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2011
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE ‘A’ - SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:

9,00,00,000 (3,20,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) each

5,400.00 3,200.00

85,00,000 (50,00,000) Preference Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) each 510.00 500.00

(Refer Note B-1 of Schedule ‘L’) 5,910.00 3,700.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP:

4,38,25,280 (2,25,13,272) Equity Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) each 
fully paid up

2,629.52 2,251.33

(Refer note B-1 of Schedule ‘L’)

Of the above:

2,43,23,910 (1,45,94,346) Equity Shares of ` 6/- (` 10/-) 
each were allotted as Bonus Shares by way of capitalisation 
of General Reserve, balance in Profit and Loss Account and 
Securities Premium Account

SCHEDULE ‘B’ - RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(A) Securities Premium

Opening balance 2,054.38 1,001.53

Additions on Issue of Shares (Refer note B-2 of Schedule ‘L’) 12,739.71 257.98

Additions on Amalgamation - 1,843.23

Less :Share Issue expenses written off - (46.83)

Less: Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares - (1,001.53)

Closing balance 14,794.09 2,054.38

(B) Capital Reserve

(Refer note B-4 of Schedule ‘L’)

Opening Balance 961.11 -

Additions during the year 108.53 -

Additions on account of Amalgamation - 984.08

Less : Expenditure incurred on Amalgamation (126.33) (22.97)

Closing balance 943.31 961.11

(C) Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance - 42.00

Less: Transferred to Profit and Loss Account - (42.00)

Closing balance - -

(D ) General Reserve

Opening Balance 2,816.29 887.90

Add: Additions on account of Amalgamation - 11.20

Add:- Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 1,441.62 1,917.19

Closing balance 4,257.91 2,816.29

(E ) Profit and Loss Account 28,683.04 17,853.74

Total 48,678.35 23,685.52

Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
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Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE ‘C’ LOAN FUNDS

Secured Loans

(refer Note B-11 of Schedule ‘L’)

From Banks

Cash Credit & other working capital facilities 10,845.03 7,764.57

Working Capital Demand Loans 2,416.40 491.77

Other Term Loans from Banks 1,193.70 22.89

Vehicle loans 170.50 14,625.63 76.89 8,356.12

(Amount due within one year in respect of above loans  
` 624.69 Lakhs (` 389.89 Lakhs)

Debentures
9% Secured Non-Convertible Redeemable

Debentures issued to Wipro Limited - 42.00

Less: Redeemed during the year - - (42.00) -

Total Secured Loans 14,625.63 8,356.12

Unsecured Loans

Short Term Unsecured Loan from a Scheduled Bank - 13.07

Inter Corporate Deposits - 43.73

Total Unsecured Loans - 56.80

Total 14,625.63 8,412.92

Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
(` in Lakhs)
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE ‘E’ INVESTMENTS
Long Term Investments (at Cost)
Trade Investments ( Unquoted - Fully Paid Up)
(a)  25,20,000 (25,20,000) Equity Shares of Glodyne 

Peoplepower Limited
354.60 354.60

 A Subsidiary Company [Face Value per share: `10/- 
(` 10/-) each] [Out of the above, 93,718 (93,718) 
Equity Shares were received as Bonus]

(b)  45,97,600 (45,97,600) Equity Shares of Smaarftech 
Technologies Private Limited

459.76 459.76

 A Subsidiary Company [Face Value per share: `10/- 
(` 10/-) each]

(c)  2,40,03,012 (3,012) Equity Shares of Glodyne 
Technoserve Inc. USA

11,914.09 638.89

 A wholly owned subsidiary [Total investment value 
USD 2,54,42,000 (USD14,42,000)]

(d)  1,29,033 (1,29,033) Preferred Stock of Glodyne 
Technoserve Inc. USA

2,175.29 2,175.29

 A wholly owned subsidiary
 [Total investment value USD 53,76,390 (USD 

53,76,390)]
(e)  Nil (10) Equity Shares of Glodyne Technoserve 

Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore
- 0.003

 A Wholly Owned Subsidiary [Total investment value 
SGD 10 (SGD 10)]

(f)  2,11,740 (2,11,740) Equity Shares of Compulink 
Europe Limited, U.K.

171.05 171.05

 A Wholly Owned Subsidiary [Total Investment Value 
GBP 2,11,740 (GBP 2,11,740)]

 Less : Provision for diminution in the value of 
Investments

(171.05) - - 171.05

(g)  5,51,482 (5,51,482) Equity Shares of Compulink 
USA Inc.,USA

247.48 247.48

 A Wholly Owned Subsidiary [Total Investment Value 
USD 5,51,482 (USD 5,51,482)]

(h)  14,95,500 (13,01,500) Equity shares of Compulink 
Software Pte Ltd., Singapore

465.63 399.90

 A Wholly Owned Subsidiary [Total Investment Value 
SGD 14,95,500 (SGD 13,01,500)]

 Less : Provision for diminution in the value of 
Investments

(465.63) - - 399.90

(i)  2,600 (2,600) Equity Shares of Saraswat  
Co-operative Bank Ltd.

0.26 0.26

 [Face Value per share: `10/- (` 10/-) each]
(j)  16,845 (16,845) Shares of Cosmos Co- operative 

Bank Limited
3.37 3.37

 [Face Value per share: ` 20/- (` 20/-) each] 15,154.85 4,450.60
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE ‘F’ CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND 
ADVANCES
CURRENT ASSETS
1. INVENTORIES
(As taken , valued and certified by the Management) 
Goods for Resale 

Computer Equipments, Peripherals and Softwares 157.37 446.81

2. SUNDRY DEBTORS : (Unsecured)
Outstanding for over six months
- Considered Good 811.12 484.96
- Considered Doubtful 220.49 1,031.61 122.18 607.14

Others
- Considered Good 17,349.45 15,140.45
- Considered Doubtful - 17,349.45 - 15,140.45
[including ` 3,620.60 Lakhs (` 2,636.97 Lakhs) due from 
Subsidiaries]
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts (220.49) (122.18)

Total 18,160.57 15,625.41

3. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
- Cash on Hand 29.94 19.25

- Cheques in transit - 49.80
Balances with Scheduled Banks
(i)  In Deposit Accounts 3,393.52 2,814.81
 [` 176.66 Lakhs ( ` 385.44Lakhs) held under lien by 

Scheduled banks]
(ii)  In Current/ Cash Credit Accounts 63.96 1,014.70
(iii)  In Dividend Account 2.71 2.41
(iv)  In Exchange Earners’ Foreign Currency Account 11.60 3,501.73 14.36 3,915.33

LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(i)  Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries 18,858.61 5,828.23
 Less : Provision for advances considered doubtful (46.55)

18,812.06
(ii)  Advances to Suppliers 6,627.51 2,229.18
(iii)  Advances to Staff 217.26 227.06
(iv)  Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for  

value to be received
483.94 860.36

(v)  Deposits 1,047.45 638.29
 (including to ` 185.00 Lakhs (` 185.00 Lakhs) to a 

subsidiary)
(vi)  Other Current Assets 47.41 27,235.63 16.27 9,799.39

Total 49,055.30 29,786.94

(` in lakhs)
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Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE ‘G’ CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISION

CURRENT LIABILITIES :

(i)  Sundry Creditors for goods, services and expenses

 - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 2.73 -

 - Others 1,751.88 1,635.08

 (Refer Note B-18 of Schedule “L”)

(ii)  Dues to Subsidiaries - 0.48

(iii)  Advances from Customers 15.41 223.40

(iv)  Unclaimed Dividend * 2.71 2.41

 [*There are no amounts due and outstanding to be 
credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund]

(v)  Deposits 1.46 10.05

(vi)  Other Liabilities 700.11 2,474.30 224.61 2,096.03

PROVISIONS :

For Staff Retirement Benefits 98.12 38.57

For Proposed Dividend 1,845.18 1,103.70

For Tax On Dividend 482.75 183.31

For Income Tax [net of relative payments, if any] 2,703.64 5,129.69 1,921.38 3,246.96

Total 7,603.99 5,342.99

SCHEDULE ‘H’ - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Technology IMS 88,968.25 60,525.03

Software Services 9,239.20 98,207.45 10,205.74 70,730.76

Total 98,207.45 70,730.76

SCHEDULE ‘I’ - OTHER INCOME (NET)

Interest received - Gross 1,062.69 389.84

(including ` 900.51 Lakhs (` 314.78 Lakhs) from 
Subsidiaries [Tax deducted at Sources ` 58.50 Lakhs 
(` 32.51 Lakhs)]

Dividend 0.56 0.56

Rent 18.22 53.93

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain / (Loss) [net] (411.24) (1,254.68)

Profit on disposal of Subsidiary 0.001 -

Profit on Sale of Assets 0.03 0.49

Sundry Balances written back (net) 2.08 89.63

Miscellaneous Income 2.04 0.77

Total 674.38 (719.46)

Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
(` in lakhs)
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Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

SCHEDULE ‘J’ - OPERATING & OTHER EXPENSES

Material Cost, Software Development, Contract & 
Service Charges

59,730.91 45,107.06

Staff Costs

Salaries, allowances, Incentives & Contractual 
payments

8,342.70 5,982.78

Contribution to Statutory Funds 66.24 60.04

Staff Welfare 111.04 52.05

Staff Training & Recruitment 28.71 8,548.69 29.08 6,123.95

Directors’ Remuneration

Salaries and allowances 211.20 194.66

Contribution to Statutory Funds 24.60 5.61

Sitting Fees 2.67 238.47 1.87 202.14

(Refer Note B-9 of Schedule ‘L’)

Communication Costs 139.26 115.64

Advertisement, Publicity and Business Promotion 101.38 36.29

Legal & Professional Expenses 392.40 281.07

Office Maintenance 86.89 65.66

Travelling & Conveyance 430.99 243.62

Electricity Charges 65.45 55.07

Rent 938.23 477.03

Equipment Lease Rentals 2,398.54 1,413.13

Insurance 8.24 7.83

Auditors’ Remuneration 17.25 15.95

(Refer Note B -10 of Schedule’L’)

Postage & Courier Charges 13.54 13.17

Printing and Stationery 33.11 19.36

Rates & Taxes 76.26 57.14

Repairs & Maintenance

- Machineries / Equipments 18.29 11.85

- Building 1.24 -

- Others 2.76 22.29 38.74 50.59

Asset Management Fees 109.89 75.57

Donations 0.99 0.100

Vehicle Expenses 15.86 14.01

Commission 143.88 72.52

Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

(` in lakhs)
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Particulars As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE ‘J’ (Contd.)

Brokerage 0.52 2.44

Provision for diminution in the value of Investments 636.67 -

Provision for advances considered doubtful 46.55

Impairment of Assets - 0.3032

Bad debts written off - 27.65

Provision for Doubtful Debts 220.49 122.18

Membership & Subscription 12.75 12.49

Preliminary Expenses written off - 0.122

Miscellaneous Expenses 23.82 12.12

74,453.32 54,624.20

SCHEDULE ‘K’ - FINANCE CHARGES

Interest on Debentures  -  4.27

Interest to Banks on Fixed Loans  483.64  177.91 

Interest to Banks on Working Capital & Other Facilities  1,103.79  948.13 

Interest to others  13.78  51.24 

Bank Charges and Commission  453.45  107.99 

Total  2,054.66 1,289.54

Schedules attached to and forming part of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
(` in lakhs)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 
Schedule ‘L’: Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
Company Overview:
Glodyne Technoserve Limited (‘the Company”) is engaged in Technology Infrastructure Management Services and Application 
Software Services including providing turnkey solutions for large scale technology projects, technology maintenance and 
management in India and Overseas. The Company has head quarters at Mumbai, India. 

A. Significant Accounting Policies
 1. Basis of Accounting
	 	 The	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	Indian	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Principles	

(IGAAP)	under	the	historical	cost	convention	on	accrual	basis.	The	IGAAP	comprises	Accounting	Standards	(“AS”)	
notified	under	Companies	Accounting	Standards	Rules,	 2006	by	 the	Central	Government	 of	 India	 under	Section	
211(3C)	of	 the	Companies	Act,	 1956,	 various	pronouncements	of	 the	 Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	 India	
(“ICAI”),	and	the	relevant	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956	and	guidelines	issued	by	the	Securities	and	Exchange	
Board	of	India	(“SEBI”).

	 	 Accounting	policies	have	been	 consistently	 applied	except	where	a	newly	 issued	Accounting	Standard	 is	 initially	
adopted	or	a	revision	to	an	existing	Accounting	Standard	requires	a	change	in	the	accounting	policy	hitherto	in	use.	
The Management evaluates all recently issued or revised Accounting Standards on an ongoing basis.

 2. Use of estimates
	 	 The	 preparation	 of	 financial	 statements	 in	 conformity	 with	 IGAAP	 requires	management	 to	make	 estimates	 and	

assumptions	that	affect	the	reported	amount	of	assets,	liabilities,	revenues	and	expenses	and	disclosure	of	contingent	
liabilities	on	the	date	of	financial	statements.	Examples	of	such	estimates	and	assumptions	include	useful	 lives	of	
fixed	assets,	Intangible	assets,	taxes,	provision	for	doubtful	debts,	anticipated	obligations	under	employee	retirement	
plans,	 etc.	 The	 recognition,	measurement,	 classification	 or	 disclosures	 of	 an	 item	 or	 information	 in	 the	 financial	
statements	have	been	made	relying	on	 these	estimates	 to	a	greater	extent.	Actual	 results	could	differ	 from	those	
estimates.

 3. Revenue Recognition 
		 	 Revenues	are	recorded	net	off	all	the	applicable	taxes.	

  Direct revenue of the Company comprises the income from following principle activities:
  i. Technology Infrastructure Management Services – This represents Technology Integration and Management 

Services. Technology Integration activities include Technology Management services, turnkey Solutions for 
Technology Deployment, resales, leasing and Integration of Hardware / System Software/ Database Software/ 
Networking	 Products	 with	 or	 without	 one	 another.	 Revenue	 from	 Technology	 Integration	 is	 recognised	 on	
delivery to the customer and acknowledgement thereof, in accordance with the terms of the individual contracts.  
Management Services represents amount charged for Facility Management Services, Maintenance upkeep of 
Hardware	/	System	Software/	Database	Software	/	Networking	Products	and	consultancy	thereon.	Revenue	from	
Management	Services	is	recognised	over	the	life	of	the	contracts.	Maintenance	revenue	on	expired	contracts	on	
which services have continued to be rendered is recognised on renewal of contract or on receipt of payment.  

  ii. Software Services - This represents charges for development of software for customer and sale of licenses of 
software and other products. Revenue from Software services is recognised when the software is developed and 
installed / delivered to the customers as per the terms of the contract. Revenue on sale of licenses of software 
and other products is recognised on delivery / installation, as the case may be.

  Indirect Revenue of the Company generally comprises the following items:
  i. Interest Income - Interest Income is recognised based on time proportion and on gross basis.

  ii. Dividend Income - Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.

  iii. Rent Income - Rent on immovable properties is recognised on accrual basis as per the respective agreements 
with the parties.

 4. Expenditure
	 	 Expenses	are	accounted	on	the	accrual	basis	and	provisions	are	made	for	all	known	losses	and	liabilities.

 5. Fixed assets, Intangible Assets, Capital Work-in Progress and Depreciation/Amortisation
	 	 i.	 All	fixed	assets	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	depreciation.	For	this	purpose	cost	includes	purchase	price	

and all other attributable costs of bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use. 

  ii. Intangible assets are stated at the consideration paid for purchase / acquisition less accumulated amortization. 
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	 	 iii.	 Capital	Work	in	Progress	/	Intangible	Assets	under	capitalization	include	expenditure	incurred	/	advances	paid	for	
acquiring	fixed	/	Intangible	assets	and	cost	of	assets	not	ready	for	intended	use	before	the	balance	sheet	date.

  iv. Depreciation on all assets is provided pro-rata to the period of use, under straight-line method, at rates prescribed 
in	Schedule	XIV	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956.	Intangible	assets	including	Technical	Know	how	are	amortised	over	
their	respective	individual	estimated	useful	lives	(not	exceeding	five	years)	on	a	straight	line	basis,	commencing	
from the date the asset is available for its intended use. Leasehold land is amortised over the life of the lease. 

 6. Borrowing Costs
	 	 Borrowing	Costs	directly	attributable	to	the	acquisition	or	construction	of	fixed	assets	are	capitalized	for	the	period	

until	the	asset	is	ready	for	its	intended	use.	Other	borrowing	costs	are	recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	period	in	which	
they are incurred.

 7. Investments
  Trade Investments are investments made to enhance the Company’s business interest. Investments are either 

classified	as	Long	term	or	Current	based	on	the	Management’s	intention	at	the	time	of	purchase.	Investments	that	
are	 readily	 realizable	and	 intended	 to	be	held	 for	not	more	 than	a	year	are	classified	as	Current	 Investments.	All	
other	Investments	are	classified	as	Long	Term	Investments.	Long	Term	Investments	are	stated	at	Cost.	A	provision	
for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long term investments. 
Current Investments, if any, are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. 

 8. Inventories
  Inventories include stocks of Computer equipments, peripherals and traded software in respect of Infrastructure 

Management Services of the Company and the same is valued at lower of cost (net of provision for obsolescence) or 
net realizable value. Cost is determined on First In First Out (FIFO) basis.

 9. Foreign exchange transactions 
	 	 Transactions	in	foreign	currencies	are	generally	recorded	at	the	exchange	rate	prevailing	on	the	date	of	the	transaction.	

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency and outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the 
exchange	rate	ruling	on	that	date.	Exchange	differences	on	foreign	exchange	transactions	are	recognised	in	the	profit	
and loss account. 

	 	 Investments	 in	 overseas	 subsidiaries	 are	 recognised	 at	 the	 relevant	 exchange	 rates	 prevailing	 on	 the	 dates	 of	
allotment / investments.

 10. Preliminary / Share Issue Expenses / Expenses on amalgamation
	 	 Preliminary	expenses	are	charged	to	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account	in	the	year	in	which	incurred.	Share	issue	expenses	

are	adjusted	against	Securities	Premium	Account	as	per	Section	78(2)	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956.	Expenditure	on	
amalgamation is adjusted against the capital reserve arising on amalgamation.  

 11. Accounting for Employee Benefits
	 	 Staff	 Costs	 and	 Directors’	 Remuneration	 include	 Short	 term	 employee	 benefits	 such	 as	 Salaries,	 allowances,	

incentives,	 and	 short	 term	 compensated	 absences	 etc.	 It	 also	 includes	 company	 contributions	 towards	 Defined	
Contribution	plans	and	provisions	for	Defined	Benefit	plans.

  (a) Short Term Employee Benefits
				 	 	 Short	term	employee	benefits	are	recognised	in	the	period	during	which	the	services	are	rendered.	Provision	for	

unused entitlements in respect of compensated absences is made for on the basis of actuarial valuation made at 
the	end	of	each	financial	year.	

  (b) Post Employment Benefits
   (i) Provident Fund (PF) & Employees’ State Insurance Scheme (ESIC)- Defined Contribution Plans
	 	 	 	 Under	the	Employees’	Provident	Funds	and	Miscellaneous	Provisions	Act,	1952	all	eligible	employees	of	the	

Company	are	entitled	to	receive	benefits	which	is	a	Defined	Contribution	Plan.	In	addition,	some	employees	
of	the	Company	are	covered	under	ESIC	Act,	1948,	which	is	also	a	Defined	Contribution	Plan.	Both	these	
Plans	are	recognised	and	administered	by	the	Statutory	Authorities.	Both	the	employees	and	the	Company	
make monthly contributions to these plans. The Company’s contributions to these schemes are recognised 
as	expense	 in	 the	Profit	and	Loss	Account	during	 the	period	 in	which	 the	employee	 renders	 the	 related	
service. The Company has no further obligation under these plans beyond its monthly contributions. 

   (ii) Gratuity- a Defined Benefit Plan
	 	 	 	 The	 Company	 provides	 for	 Gratuity	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 Payment	 of	 Gratuity	Act,	 1972,	 a	 Defined	

Benefit	Plan.	The	plan,	subject	to	the	provisions	of	the	above	Act,	provides	for	lump	sum	payment	to	eligible	

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 
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employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee’s salary and tenure of employment. Gratuity liability is accrued and provided for on 
the	basis	of	an	actuarial	valuation	on	Projected	Unit	Credit	Method	made	at	the	end	of	each	financial	year.	
Actuarial	gains	/	losses	are	recognised	immediately	to	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account.	In	respect	of	Compulink	
Systems Limited which merged with the Company during the Financial year	2009-10,	Gratuity	benefits	are	
administered by a Trust formed for this purpose through the Group Gratuity Scheme of the Life Insurance 
Corporation (LIC) of India. In respect of this fund, the adequacy of the accumulated funds available with the 
LIC	has	been	confirmed	on	the	basis	of	an	actuarial	valuation	made	at	the	year	end	and	the	provision	has	
been made for the shortfall, if any.

 12. Accounting for Taxes 
	 	 Tax	expense	comprises	of	Current	and	Deferred	tax.	Provision	for	Current	tax	is	made	in	accordance	with	the	relevant	

provisions	of	the	Income	-	tax	Act,	1961.	

	 	 Deferred	 tax	 resulting	 from	“timing	differences”	between	book	and	 tax	profits	 is	accounted	 for	using	 the	 tax	 rates	
and	 laws	that	have	been	enacted	or	substantially	enacted	as	on	the	balance	sheet	date.	Deferred	tax	assets	are	
recognised and carried forward only if there is a virtual/ reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future. 

 13. Impairment
  The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to check any indication of impairment based 

on	internal/external	factors.	Impairment	Loss	is	recognised	whenever	the	carrying	amount	of	an	asset	is	in	excess	of	
its	recoverable	amount.	The	Impairment	Loss	is	recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	and	
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable value.

 14. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
  The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably 

requires	outflow	of	resources,	which	can	be	reliably	estimated.	Disclosures	for	contingent	liability	is	made,	without	
a provision in books, when there is an obligation that may, but probably will not (in the opinion of the management), 
require	outflow	of	resources.	Contingent	Assets	are	neither	recognised	nor	disclosed	in	the	financial	statements.

 15. Earning per Share (EPS)
	 	 The	earning	considered	in	ascertaining	the	Company’s	EPS	comprises	the	net	profit	after	tax.	The	number	of	shares	

used	in	computing	Basic	EPS	is	the	weighted	average	number	of	shares	outstanding	during	the	year	duly	adjusted	
for additional shares issued during the year, if any. 

	 	 The	number	of	shares	used	 in	computing	diluted	EPS	comprises	 the	weighted	average	number	of	equity	shares	
considered	for	deriving	basic	EPS,	and	also	the	weighted	average	number	of	equity	shares	that	could	have	been	
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

  Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later 
date.  The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for stock splits and bonus shares 
issued, if any.

 16. Cash and Cash equivalents
  Cash and Cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with 

an original maturity of three months or less. 

 17. Cash Flow Statement
	 	 Cash	 Flows	 are	 reported	 using	 the	 indirect	 method,	 whereby	 net	 profits	 before	 tax	 is	 adjusted	 for	 the	 effect	 of	

transaction of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash 
flows	from	regular	revenue	generating,	investing	and	financing	activities	are	segregated.

B. Notes to Accounts
1. Increase in Authorised Capital and Sub-Division of Shares:
	 (a)	 Pursuant	 to	the	scheme	of	amalgamation	(“The	Scheme”)	with	Compulink	Systems	Limited	(CSL),	 the	authorised	

share capital of the Company stood increased by `	1500	Lakhs	comprising	of	1,50,00,000	Equity	Shares	of	` 10/- 
each. Similarly, the authorised share capital stood further increased by `	100	Lakhs	comprising	of	10,00,000	Equity	
Shares of ` 10/- on account of scheme of amalgamation with Broadllyne Technologies Limited (BTL).

	 (b)	 During	the	year,	the	company	has	effected	the	sub-division	of	its	Equity	and	Preference	Share	capital	vide	Resolution	
passed	in	the	Annual	General	Meeting	dated	24th	December	2010.	As	a	result,	nominal	value	of	each	Equity	and	
Preference	Share	has	been	reduced	from	` 10/- each to `	6/-	per	share	without	impacting	the	total	amount	of	nominal	
value of Authorised and paid up equity and preference share capital.
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	 (c)	 As	a	result,	4,80,00,000	Equity	shares	of	̀ 	10/-	got	converted	into	8,00,00,000	Equity	shares	of	̀ 	6/-	each	aggregating	
to `	4800	Lakhs.	Similarly,	50,00,000	Preference	Shares	of	`	10/-	each	got	converted	 into	83,33,333	Preference	
shares of `	6/-	each	aggregating	to	` 500 Lakhs. 

 (d) The Authorised share capital was further increased by `	610	Lakhs,	comprising	of		1,00,00,000		Equity	Shares	of	
`	 6/-	each	and	1,66,667	Preference	Shares	of	`	6/-	each	vide	resolution	passed	in	the	said	Annual	General	Meeting.	

	 (e)	 During	 the	year,	 the	Company	has	allotted	1,33,313	 (post	sub-division)	Equity	shares	of	`	6/-	each	under	ESOP	
Scheme	 and	 24,22,035	 (post	 sub-division)	 towards	Preferential	 allotment	 of	 shares	 under	 Section	 81(1A)	 of	 the	
Companies	Act,	1956	and	SEBI	(ICDR)	Regulations	2009.	As	a	result,	paid	up	equity	share	capital	was	increased	by	
` 153.32 Lakhs.

	 (f)	 Pursuant	 to	 the	scheme	of	amalgamation	with	CSL,	 the	Company	has	 issued	8,80,672	(post	sub-division)	Equity	
Shares of ` 6/-	 each	amounting	 to	`	 52.84	Lakhs	and	28,67,140	 (post	 sub-division)	Equity	 shares	of	`	 6/-	 each	
amounting to `	172.02	Lakhs	on	account	of	the	scheme	with	BTL.		As	a	result,	the	paid	up	equity	share	capital	of	
the company was increased by `	224.87	Lakhs.	The	same	was	shown	under	Share	Suspense	Account	during	the	
previous year due to non-allotment of shares.

2. Securities Premium Account:

 During the year, `	2,401.33	Lakhs	has	been	credited	 to	Securities	Premium	Account	on	account	of	 issue	of	7,50,415	
Compulsorily	convertible	Preference	Shares	at	a	premium	of	` 320/- each to BTL under the Scheme. The said amount 
was	 reflected	under	Securities	Premium	Suspense	Account	during	the	previous	year	due	to	non-allotment	of	said	shares.

 Further, `		10,338.39	 Lakhs	 were	 credited	 to	 securities	 premium	 account	 on	 account	 of	 issue	 of	 25,55,348	
(Post	sub-division)	shares	under	ESOP	scheme	and	Preferential	allotment.

3. Convertible warrants:

	 During	the	year,	the	Company	has	issued	6,00,000	Convertible	warrants	at	`	720/-	per	warrant	on	23rd	June	2010.	Each	
warrant	carry	the	right	to	subscribe	to	One	Equity	Share	of	the	Company	at	a	premium	of	̀ 	710/-	at	any	time	within	a	period	
of	18	months	from	the	date	of	allotment	of	the	said	warrant.	Pursuant	to	the	sub	division	of	the	shares	of	the	Company,	the	
number of warrants has accordingly increased to 10,00,000 having the Face Value of `	6	each/-.

4. Capital Reserve Account:

 i. During the year, `	55.43	Lakhs	were	credited	to	Capital	Reserve	due	to	difference	in	issue	price	of	shares	alloted	
on	Preferential	basis	and	the	amount	remitted	by	the	allotees.	Further,	` 53.10 Lakhs have been credited to Capital 
Reserve	Account	on	account	of	the	difference	in	the	nominal	value	of	shares	arrising	due	to	conversion	of	750,415	
Compulsorily	Convertible	Preference	Shares	 (CCPS)	amounting	 to	`	75.04	Lakhs	 into	3,65,757	Equity	Shares	of	
` 21.95 Lakhs.

	 ii.	 Expenditure	on	Amalgamations	amounting	to	`	126.34	Lakhs	has	been	adjusted	against	the	Capital	Reserve	arising	
on account of such amalgamations.

5. Operating Leases:

 A. Operating Lease -  Expenses 

	 a)	 The	Company	has	various	operating	leases	for	office	facilities,	equipments	and	residential	premises	for	employees,	
which	are	renewable	on	a	periodic	basis	and	cancelable	at	its	option.	Rental	expense	for	operating	leases	included	in	
the income statements for the year is `	3,336.76	Lakhs	(`	1,890.16	Lakhs).	

	 b)	 Under	these	lease	agreements,	refundable	interest	free	security	deposits	have	been	given	by	the	Company	(excluding	
certain	Equipment	Lease	Rental	Agreements	where	no	such	deposits	have	been	given).

	 c)	 These	agreements	(Excluding	certain	Equipment	Lease	Rental	Agreements)	provide	for:

	 	 •	 Increase	in	rental	during	the	tenure	of	lease	agreement

	 	 •	 Contain	renewal	clause

	 	 •	 Contain	clause	for	restriction	on	sub-leasing
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	 d)	 Future	minimum	lease	payments	under	non-cancellable	leases:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
l Not later than one year 921.96																				 139.09
l Later	than	one	year	but	not	more	than	five	years 3,687.82               NIL
l Later	than	five	years 3,226.84 NIL

 e) No asset has been acquired on Finance Lease.

 B. Operating Leases – Income
	 a)	 The	Company	has	various	operating	leases	for	office	premises.	The	company	also	has	operating	lease	for	equipments	

to a subsidiary. All such leases are renewable on a periodic basis and cancelable at its option. Rental income for 
operating leases included in the income statements for the year is ` 1,248.07	Lakhs	(`	917.18	Lakhs).

	 b)	 These	agreements(other	than	Equipment	lease	Rental	Agreements)	provide	for:	;

	 	 •	 Increase	in	rental	during	the	tenure	of	lease	agreement

	 	 •	 Contain	renewal	clause

	 	 •	 Does	not	contain	clause	for	restriction	on	sub-leasing

 c) No asset has been given on Finance Lease.

6. Earnings in foreign Currency (on accrual basis):
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Software Services 2,650.29 1,029.42
Technology Infrastructure Management Services 12,572.79 10,170.99
Total 15,223.08 11,200.41

7. Expenditure in foreign Currency
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Travelling	Expenses 31.25 9.72
Membership & Subscriptions 0.99 2.44
Marketing	&	Other	Expenses 5.04 5.79
Total 37.28 17.95

8. Particulars of dividend declared and paid to non-residents
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Number of Non-resident shareholders 27 40
Number of shares held by them 8,291 11,361
Dividend (` In Lakhs) 0.35 0.48

9. Managerial Remuneration
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011* 2009-2010
Salaries, Allowance etc. 235.06 199.73
Contribution	to	Provident	Fund 24.60 5.61
Total 259.66 205.34

* Including `	23.86	Lakhs	(`	5.07	Lakhs)	capitalised	as	part	of	 the	Fixed	assets.	The	above	 includes	remuneration	 to	
Directors	of	CSL	&	BTL	as	well,	No	commission	is	paid	to	directors	and	hence	computation	of	net	profits	under	section	198	
of the Companies Act is not applicable.
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10. Auditors’ Remuneration: Excluding Service Tax 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010
Audit Fees 12.00 											11.65	
Tax	Audit	Fees 3.00              2.05 
Taxation	Matters 2.00 1.00
Certification 0.25 -
Total 17.25 14.70 
 

11. Securities in respect of Secured Loans:
 Term loans from Banks / Institutions are secured by mortgage of certain movable properties of the Company. Working 

Capital	Facilities	are	secured	by	 the	hypothecation	of	book	debts,	 stocks	and	movable	fixed	assets	of	 the	Company,	
personal	guarantees	of	promoters	and	pledge	of	shares	of	the	Company	held	by	Promoters.	Vehicle	loans	are	secured	by	
hypothecation of relative motor vehicles.  

12. The Deferred tax liability / asset as at 31st March 2011 comprises the following:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2011

As at 
31st March, 2010

Deferred	Tax	Liability	on	account	of:
Depreciation 1,652.21 1,125.05
Deferred	Tax	Asset	on	account	of:
Deferrals	/	Disallowances	under	Income-Tax	Act,	1961 (31.84) (12.81)
Deferred	Tax	Liability	(Net) 1,620.37 1,112.24 

13. Related Party Transactions:

	 As	per	AS-18	on	“Related	Party	Disclosures”,	disclosures	of	transactions	with	related	parties	as	defined	therein	are	given	
below:

 List of related parties and Relationship:

 a)   Subsidiary Companies-Country of Incorporation

  i.	 Glodyne	Peoplepower	Limited	-	India

	 	 ii.	 Smaarftech	Technologies	Private	Limited	-	India

  iii. Glodyne Technoserve Inc. - U.S.A. 

	 	 iv.	 Glodyne	Technoserve	Singapore	Pte.	Ltd.	–	Singapore	[Refer	Note	B(14)]

  v. Compulink USA Inc. - USA

	 	 vi.	 Compulink	Europe	Limited	-	U.K.

	 	 vii.	 Compulink	Software	Pte	Ltd	-	Singapore

	 	 viii.	 Glodyne	Technoserve	(East)	Inc.-	U.S.A.	(Subsidiary	of	Glodyne	Technoserve	Inc.	-	U.S.A	)

	 	 ix.	 Front	Office	Technologies	Inc.-	U.S.A.	(Subsidiary	of	Glodyne	Technoserve	Inc.	-	U.S.A.)

	 	 x.	 DecisionOne	Corporation	(Subsidiary	of	Glodyne	Technoserve	Inc.	-	U.S.A.)	w.e.f.	1st	July,	2010

 b) Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

i. Mr. Annand Sarnaaik - Chairman & Managing Director
ii. Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik - Executive	Director
iii. Mr. Shantanu Rooj - Director
iv. Mr. Vishwas Mahajan - Director	&	Chief	Executive	Officer	(Part	of	the	period	in	CSL)
v. Mr.	Uday	Kothari - Director	&	Chief	Technology	Officer	(Part	of	the	period	in	CSL)
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 c) Relatives of KMP

i) Mr. Nikhil Sarnaik - Brother of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik

ii) Dr. Archana Sangamnerkar - Sister of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik

iii) Dr. Nitin Sangamnerkar - Brother-in-law of Mr. Annand Sarnaaik

iv) Mr.	N.	G.	Anil	Kumar - Brother of Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik

v) Mr.	N.	Lalith	Kumar - Brother of Mrs. Divvyani A. Sarnaaik

vi) Mrs.	Manisha	Kothari	 - Wife	of	Mr.	Uday	Kothari

vii) Mrs.	Kavita	Rooj - (Wife of Mr. Shantanu Rooj)

 d) Enterprise over which certain KMP exercise significant influence

  i. Growdyne Techzone Services Limited

	 	 ii.	 Glodyne	Global	Private	Limited

 Transactions with Related parties during the current financial year
 (` in Lakhs)

Transactions with Related Parties Subsidiary 
Companies

Key 
Management 

Personnel

Relatives 
of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Enterprise over 
which certain KMP 
exercise significant 

influence

Remuneration N.A.
(N.A.)

259.66	
(205.34)

7.91
(15.70)

NIL 
(NIL)

Issue of Convertible Warrants NIL 
(NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

1,080	
(NIL)

Loans and Advances given during the 
year (net of repayment)

13,033.21 
(982.30)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

Less:	 Provision	 for	 advances	
considered doubtful

46.55
(NIL)

(NIL)
(NIL)

(NIL)
(NIL)

(NIL)
(NIL)

Deposits given NIL
(NIL)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

50 
(NIL)

Amount received on Current Account 
during the year (Net)

NIL
(NIL)

NIL
	(14.45)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

Amount repaid on Current Account 
during the year (Net)

NIL
(NIL)

14.45
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

Investments in Subsidiaries during 
the year

11,340.93
(107.03)

N.A.
(N.A.)

N.A.
(N.A.)

N.A.
(N.A.)

Provision	 for	diminution	 in	 the	value	
of investment

636.67
(NIL)

N.A.
(N.A.)

N.A.
(N.A.)

N.A.
(N.A.)

Sale of Investment (Disposal of 
Subsidiary) during the year

0.003
(NIL)

N.A.
(N.A.)

N.A.
(N.A.)

N.A.
(N.A.)

Revenue	from	Product	&	Services 13,838.96
(3,278.02)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL  
(NIL)

Services received 621.55
(105.00)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL  
(NIL)

Interest received on Loans 900.51
(314.78)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL  
(NIL)

Rent paid 1.08
(1.08)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

460.98		
(NIL)
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Dividend paid N.A.
(N.A.)

600.29
	(296.53)

26.07	
(13.07)

NIL  
(NIL)

Guarantees given by the Company 
in respect of loans taken by the 
subsidiaries

48,416.80
(3,668.45)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL  
(NIL)

Total Investment in Subsidiaries as 
on Balance Sheet date

15,151.22
(4,446.97)

N.A. N.A. N.A.

Balance Receivable 
(Net of provisions)

25,065.88
(8,570.30)

NIL
 (NIL)

NIL 
(NIL)

NIL  
(NIL)

Balance	Payable NIL
 (NIL)

NIL
(14.45)

NIL 
(NIL)

67.21		
(NIL)

Note:-	Transactions	in	the	nature	of	reimbursement	of	expenses	are	not	considered	for	the	purpose	of	above	disclosures.	
Previous	year’s	comparatives	have	been	shown	in	Brackets	below	current	financial	year’s	figures.	

14.	 During	the	year,	the	Company	has	disposed	off	one	of	its	Subsidiaries	viz.	Glodyne	Technoserve	Singapore	Pte	Ltd	at	
a consideration of ` 350/-.	As	a	result,	the	Company	has	recognized	profit	of	`	61/-	arising	on	account	of	disposal.	(Sale	
proceeds Less Cost of the Investment).

15.	 Sundry	Debtors	and	Loans	and	Advances	are	unsecured	but	considered	good	except	otherwise	stated,	 for	which	 the	
company holds no security other than personal security of respective parties. 

16. In the opinion of the Board, Current assets, loans and advances are realizable at a value, which is at least equal to the 
amount at which these are stated in the ordinary course of business and provision made for all known and determined 
liabilities	are	adequate	and	not	in	excess	of	the	amount	stated.

17.	 During	the	financial	year	as	the	Company	has	not	entered	into	Derivative	transactions	and	hence	the	disclosures	regarding	
the same have not been made.

18.	 The	following	disclosures	are	made	for	the	amounts	due	to	the	Micro	and	Small	Enterprises:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

(a) Principal	 amount	 and	 the	 interest	 due	 thereon	 remaining	 unpaid	 to	
suppliers

(i) Principal 2.73  NIL

(ii) Interest due thereon  NIL NIL

(b) (i) The Delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the 
appointed date during the entire accounting year

 NIL NIL

(ii) Interest	 actually	 paid	 under	 section	 16	 of	 the	 Micro,	 Small	 and	
Medium	Enterprises	Development	Act,	2006

 NIL NIL

(c) (i) Normal Interest accrued during the year, for all the delayed 
payments, as per the agreed terms

 NIL NIL

(ii) Normal Interest payable for the period of delay in making payment 
as per the agreed terms

 NIL NIL

(d)  (i) Total Interest accrued during the year  NIL NIL

(ii) Total Interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid  NIL NIL

	 The	above	information	regarding	Micro,	Small	and	Medium	Enterprises	has	been	determined	to	the	extent	such	parties	
have	been	identified	on	the	basis	of	information	available	with	the	company.	This	has	been	relied	upon	by	the	Auditors.
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19.	 During	the	financial	year,	the	Company	has	recognised	following	amounts	in	the	financial	statements:
 a) Defined Contribution Plan:

	 	 Contributions	to	Defined	Contribution	plan,	recognised	for	the	financial	year	are	as	under:
 (` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

Company’s	Contribution	to	Provident	Fund 82.08 60.61

Company’s	Contribution	to	Employees	State	Insurance	Fund 7.30 10.56

 b)  Defined Benefit Plan:

	 	 Reconciliation	of	Opening	and	Closing	balances	of	Defined	Benefit	Obligation:
 (` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

Defined	Benefit	Obligation	at	the	beginning	of	the	financial	year 19.21 37.12

Current Service Cost 6.61 11.39

Interest Cost 2.06 2.93

Actuarial (gain) / loss 38.78 (0.87)

Benefits	Paid (0.14) (8.59)

Defined	Benefit	Obligation	at	the	year	end 66.53 41.98

  i) Expense recognised during the financial year under the head “Staff Cost”- (Refer Schedule-J)
(` In lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

Current Service Cost 6.61 11.39

Interest Cost 2.06 2.93

Expected	Return	on	Plan	assets NA (3.67)

Actuarial (gain) / loss 38.78 0.35

Expense	recognised	in	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account 47.45 11.00

  ii) Actuarial Assumptions:

Particulars in respect of Gratuity (non-funded) 2010-2011 2009-2010

Discount Rate (per annum) 8.25% 8.00%

Expected	Rate	of	Return	on	Plan	assets	(per	annum) 8.25% 8.00%

Salary	Escalation	(per	annum) 5.00% 5.00%

	 	 	 The	above	information	is	as	certified	by	the	Actuary.	

20. Earning per share (EPS)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

Net	Profit	as	per	Profit	&	Loss	Account	(A) ` In Lakhs 14,416.16 									9,682.40	

Add:	Amortisation	of	employee	compensation	cost	 (as	per	 intrinsic	
Value Method) recognised in the accounts

` In Lakhs - -

Less:	Amortisation	of	employee	compensation	cost	(as	per	Fair	Value	
Method) not recognised in the accounts

` In Lakhs (416.45) (201.94)

Net	 Profit	 for	 the	 period	 (as	 adjusted)	Attributable	 to	 Equity	 share	
holders (B)

` In Lakhs 13,999.71 9,480.46	
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Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

Weighted	Average	No.	of	Equity	Shares	Outstanding	during	the	year	
(Before adjusting the dilutive potential equity shares but including 
Shares to be issued under the Scheme) (C)

Nos. 43,185,857	 40,715,585*	

Number of stock options outstanding as on the balance sheet date Nos. 2,259,355 649,733*	

Number	of	Equity	Shares	to	be	issued	against	CCPS Nos. - 365,757*

Total Number of Dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during 
the year (D)

Nos. 3,042,277 1,015,490*

Total Weighted Average Number of equity shares for calculation of 
Diluted	EPS	(E	=	C	+	D)

Nos. 46,228,134 41,725,428*

Nominal	Value	of	Equity	Shares ` 6 6*

Basic	EPS	As	Reported	(A/C) ` 33.38 23.78

Basic	EPS	As	Adjusted	(B/C) ` 32.42 23.28

Diluted	EPS	As	Reported	(A/E) ` 31.18 23.21

Diluted	EPS	As	Adjusted	(B/E) ` 30.28 22.72

 (* Re-stated for Sub-division)

21. Segment information:

 As	per	Accounting	Standard	17	on	“Segment	Reporting”,	the	Company	has	reported	segment	information	on	consolidated	
basis including business conducted through its Subsidiaries.

22. Disclosures as required under Clause 32 of the listing agreement relating to loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
subsidiaries:

(` In Lakhs)

Name of the Company Outstanding
Balance as on

March 31, 2011

Maximum
Outstanding

during the year

Glodyne Technoserve Inc. (Refer note) 12,550.84 12,673.69

Glodyne	Peoplepower	Limited NIL 97.86

Smaarftech	Technologies	Private	Limited 6,223.07 6,223.07

Compulink USA Inc. 38.15 39.82

Compulink	Europe	Limited	
Provision	for	Advances	considered	doubtful

32.23 
(32.23)

32.23

(N.A.)

Compulink	Software	Pte	Limited	
Provision	for	Advances	considered	doubtful

14.33	
(14.33)

14.33
(N.A.)

	 Note	:	Glodyne	Technoserve	Inc.	has	made	the	following	investments	in	its	subsidiaries:

Sr. Name of the Subsidiaries No. of shares
1. Glodyne	Technoserve	(East)	Inc.-U.S.A. 5,000

2. 	Front	Office	Technologies	Inc.-U.S.A. 200

3. Decision One Corporation- U.S.A 241,02,792

 The	Company	has	not	exercised	the	option	available	under	Notification	No.	G.S.R.	225(E)	dated	March	31,	2009	issued	by	
the	Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs,	optionally	providing	for	a	modification	in	the	accounting	of	certain	foreign	currency	items	
pursuant	to	AS-11	notified	under	section	211	(3C)	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956.	Accordingly,	the	treatment	in	that	respect	
continues	to	be	in	conformity	with	AS-11	“Accounting	for	the	Effects	of	Changes	in	Foreign	Exchange	Rates”.
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23. Employee Stock Options 
  (a)	 During	the	financial	year,	the	Company	has	granted	12,40,980	(1,44,982)	Stock	Options	to	its	employees	and	

employees	of	its	subsidiary	companies.	In	accordance	with	the	Employee	Stock	Option	Scheme	and	Employee	
Stock	Purchase	Scheme	Guidelines,	1999	issued	by	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(“SEBI”),	the	
Company	has	elected	to	use	the	“Intrinsic	Value	method”	to	account	for	the	compensation	cost	of	Stock	Options	
to employees.  For the year ended 31st March 2011, the Company has been advised that there is no accounting 
impact	in	the	books	of	account	in	respect	of	such	options.	Had	the	Company	adopted	“Fair	Value	Method”	for	
calculating the Compensation cost, the total accounting impact for the year would have been `	416.44	Lakhs	
(`	201.94	Lakhs)	profits	after	tax	lower	by	`	416.44	Lakhs	(`	201.94	Lakhs)	and	basic	and	diluted	earnings	per	
share would have been lower by `	0.96	(` 0.83)	and	` 0.90 (`0.81)	respectively.	

  (b) Summary of Stock Options:
	 	 	 Scheme	Name:	ESOP	2006

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10

Number of 
options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price (`)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price (`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year* 1,292,912 83.18 1,572,977 49.25

Granted during the year* 60,000 348.87 483,273 151.21

Cancelled during the year* 141,223 65.46 271,967 55.80

Exercised	during	the	year* 133,313 35.45 491,377 56.61

Expired	during	the	year* - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year* 1,078,375 105.03 1,292,912 83.18

Exercisable	at	the	end	of	the	year* 412,946 110.18 228,576 39.60

Weighted Average Remaining contractual life (in years) 4.08 4.95

Weighted average fair value of options granted 
during the year* (`)

227.59 80.83

 *The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of ` 10/- split to face value of `	6/-	as	on	Feb	10,	2011	and	
a	bonus	of	1:1	share	as	on	August	20,	2009.

   Scheme Name: ESOP 2010

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
Number of 

options
Weighted 

Average 
Exercise Price 

(`)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
(`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year* - - - -
Granted during the year* 1,180,980 341.94 - -
Cancelled during the year* - - - -
Exercised	during	the	year* - - - -
Expired	during	the	year* - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year* 1,180,980 341.94 - -
Exercisable	at	the	end	of	the	year* - - - -
Weighted Average Remaining contractual life 
(in years)

5.79 -

Weighted average fair value of options 
granted during the year* (`)

280.38 -

 *The options have been adjusted for split – Face value of ` 10/- split to face value of `	6/-	as	on	Feb	11,	2011	and	
a	bonus	of	1:1	share	as	on	August	20,	2009

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 
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	 	 (c)	 Average	share	price	on	the	date	of	exercise	of	the	option	Information	in	respect	of	Options	outstanding	as	at	31st	
March	2011:

Date of Exercise Average Share Price on the date of Exercise (`)
Adjusted to Sub-division price

16/06/2010 415.89

23/12/2010 438.61

  (d) Information in respect of Options outstanding as at 31st March 2011

 The details of Exercise Price for stock options outstanding as on 31st March, 2011 

Range of Exercise Price Number of Options 
Outstanding

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

ESOP 2006

` 20 to `	160 1,031,708 4.19 94.00

`	161	to	` 350 46,667 1.62 348.87

ESOP 2010

`	340	to	` 350 1,180,980 5.79 341.94

	 	 	 The	details	of	Exercise	Price	for	stock	options	outstanding	as	on	31st	March	2010

Range of Exercise Price Number of Options 
Outstanding

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life (in years)

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (`)

ESOP 2006

` 20 to `	160 1,292,912 4.95 83.18

	 	 (e)	 The	fair	value	of	option	granted	on	20th	November	2006,	6th	March	2007,	28th	March	2007,	27th	September	
2007,	29th	January	2008,	30th	October	2008,	1st	July	2009	and	28th	July	2009,	9th	June	2010	and	13th	January	
2011 are `	12.26,	11.42,	`	12.84,	` 33.92, `	55.87,	` 45.50,	`	72.39,	`	85.65,	133.90	&	149.80	and	168.23	per	
share respectively.

	 	 (f)	 The	fair	value	has	been	calculated	using	the	Black	Scholes	Options	Pricing	Model	and	the	significant	assumptions	
made	in	this	regard	are	as	follows:

Particulars 9th June 2010 13th Jan 2011

Risk free interest rate (Range) 6.25%	-	6.56% 7.74%	-7.95%

Expected	life 2–3 years 2–3 years

Expected	volatility 64.92%	-	66.72% 56.86%-	65.87%

Expected	dividend	yield 0.76% 0.76%

Exercise	Price	(Adjusted	to	`	6	Face	Value) 348.87 341.94

Stock	Price	as	on	the	date	of	grant	(`) 
(Adjusted to `	6	Face	Value)

348.87 341.94

   Note: The information given above is based on the post sub division options position and adjusted to the split.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 
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24. Information with regard to Purchases, Sales, Opening and Closing Stocks of Computer Equipments, Peripherals, 
Traded Software etc. in respect of Technology Infrastructure Management Services of the Company:

Particular
 

Unit 2010-2011 2009-2010

 Qty ` in Lakhs Qty ` in Lakhs

Opening Stock Nos. 110 446.81 113 572.26

Purchases Nos. 16,786 13,045.50 13,772 	12,733.80	

Sales Nos. 16,806 21,282.00 13,775 				14,733.21	

Closing Stock Nos. 90 157.37 110 446.81	

	 Note	:	In	respect	of	the	software	development	work	for	various	clients	based	in	different	geographies,	the	production	and	
sale	of	such	software	cannot	be	expressed	in	generic	unit.	Therefore	it	is	not	possible	to	give	the	quantitative	details	of	
sales	and	certain	information	as	required	under	Paragraph	3,	4C	and	4D	of	Part	II	of	Schedule	VI	to	the	companies	Act,	
1956.	

25. Contingent Liabilities and commitments not provided for:
           (` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2010-2011 2009-2010

a) Unexpired	Letters	of	Credit 322.10 -   

b) Guarantees issued by Bankers against Companies
Counter Guarantee

520.97 227.09	

c) Capital	Commitments	in	respect	of	Capital-work-in-Progress	(net	of	advances	paid) 240.00 180.00	

d) Guarantees  given by the company in respect of the loans taken by a subsidiary 
company 

48,416.80 3,668.45			

e) Claims against the company not acknowledged debts 84.54 84.54

TOTAL 49,584.41 4,160.08	

26.	 The	figures	 for	 the	previous	year	have	been	regrouped,	 reclassified	and	recast	wherever	 required.	Figures	 in	bracket	
indicate	previous	year’s	figures.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 
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(` in Lakhs)

Disclosure as Required Vide Part IV of Schedule VI of the Companies Act 1956

I. Registration Details

Registration No. 112281 State Code 11

Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2011

II. Capital Raised During the year

Public	Issue	 Nil Right Issue Nil

Bonus Issue Nil Private	Placement	 1044.44

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of funds

Total Liabilities Total Assets 

Sources of Funds

Paid-up	Capital	 2629.52 Reserves & Surplus 48678.35

Secured Loan 14625.66 Unsecured Loan Nil

Deffered	Tax	Liability	 1620.37

Application of Funds

Net	Fixed	Assets	 12031.79 Investment 15154.85

Net Current Assets 41451.31

Misc.Expenses	 –

Accumulated Losses Nil

IV. Performance of Company

Turnover 98207.45 Total	Expenditure	 78856.82

Profit/Loss	Before	Tax	 20025.01 Profit/Loss	after	Tax 14416.16

Earning	Per	Share	in	` 33.38 Dividend Rate @ `	4.2	per	share 70%

V. Generic Name of Principal Products/Services of Company

Item Code No.(ITC Code)

Product	Description	 Information 
Technology

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

As per our report of even date 
For N M Kapadia & Co
Charatered Accountants
FRN	:	107072W

For and on behalf of the Board

Nilesh M. Kapadia
Partner
Membership	No.033697

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing 
Director

Shantanu Rooj
Whole-time Director

RSP Sinha
Director

Divvyani A. Sarnaaik
Executive	Diector

Dhiren B. Kothary
Director

Alok Sharma
Director

Amit Jaste
Company Secretary

Place	 :	Mumbai
Date		 :	August	5,	2011

Place	 :	Mumbai
Date		 :	August	5,	2011
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Particulars Smaarftech 
Technologies 

Private 
Limited

Glodyne  
Peoplepower  

Limited

Glodyne  
Technoserve 

Inc.

Compulink 
USA Inc.

Compulink 
Europe Ltd

Compulink 
Software Pte 

Limited

The Company’s interest in 
the subsidiary as on March 
31,	2011:

1)  No. of Shares 	46,00,000 25,20,000 2,40,03,012 551482 211470 1301500

2)  Face Value Rs. 10/- Rs. 10/- USD 0.001 USD1 GBP	1 SGD 1

3)		 Extent	of	Holding 100.00% 60% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Net	Aggregate	Profit	/(Loss)	
of the subsidiary Company 
so far as it concerns the 
members of the Company 
for	the	financial	year	ended	
31.3.2011:	(` in Lakhs)

1)  Not dealt with in the 
books of accounts of the 
Holding Company

100.42 161.47 2238.01 7.49 (5.11) (58.68)

2)  Dealt with in the books of 
accounts of the Holding 
Company

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Net	Aggregate	Profit	/	(Loss)		
of the subsidiary Company 
so far as it concerns the 
members of the Company 
for	the	previous	financial	
years since it became the 
subsidiary:	(` in Lakhs)

1)  Not dealt with in the 
books of accounts of the 
Holding Company

103.48 245.39 4333.75 7.49 (5.11) (58.68)

2)  Dealt with in the books of 
accounts of the Holding 
Company

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Statement Regarding Subsidiary Companies Pursuant To Section 212 of The Companies Act, 1956

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Annand Sarnaaik
Chairman & Managing Director

Place	 :	Mumbai
Date		 :	August	5,	2011
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